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Consolidated Income Statement

HZE2024F 12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Bt ARETFT ARBTF T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 6 80,650,914 80,418,075
HEM AR Cost of sales (53,955,271) (55,950,986)
FEAH Gross profit 26,695,643 24,467,089
E bz Other revenue 7 356,972 540,694
EFUA Other net income 8 440,079 893,447
AR Distribution costs (18,041,843) (17,883,440)
THER Administrative expenses (2,827,531) (2,615,681)
HihaL e & H Other operating expenses (270,294) (230,480)
B %58 A Finance costs 9 (423,313) (519,122)
JE(EBa A NI EE Share of results of an associate
and joint ventures 20, 21 129,941 126,954
BR B AR Profit before taxation 9 6,059,654 4,779,461
g Taxation 11 (1,737,519) (1,262,794)
AEERF Profit for the year 4,322,135 3,516,667
FEARRF Profit attributable to:
¥iN/NET 2 Owners of the Company 3,734,429 3,117,461
DERIR R M Non-controlling interests 587,706 399,206
76 g F Profit for the year 4,322,135 3,516,667
BRER Earnings per share 13
HAR Basic AR#66.280 AR¥5533%
RMB66.28 cents RMB55.33 cents
e Diluted AR¥66.28% AR 553145

RMB66.28 cents RMB55.31 cents

2024 ANNUAL REPORT ##k 2”]



e EERER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BELZE 20244 12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
it ARETT ARETF T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
R E R F Profit for the year 4,322,135 3,516,667
Ha2mE(EFE) WE - Other comprehensive (loss) income:
TEELEEERMIEL  Items that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss:
AERNEEZEHE Remeasurement of defined benefit
obligations 33 (19,812) (9,596)
HBERAAEESBRREEAM Fair value changes in equity instruments
2HEREREENEZ THE  designated as at fair value through
NREBEZE other comprehensive income (347) (3,611)
(20,159) (13,207)
B R E A R ESIHE Items that are or may be reclassified
Ba kP RIEE - subsequently to profit or loss:
PE X A58 Exchange differences on consolidation (616) 11,617
&S EH Cash flow hedges 31 (26,805) 39,664
(27,421) 51,281
AEEFEHMEE(EE)WE  Other comprehensive (loss) income
for the year (47,580) 38,074
AEE2HKRERE Total comprehensive income
for the year 4,274,555 3,554,741
B2 mEik S Total comprehensive income
attributable to:
RAFRRER Owners of the Company 3,685,976 3,153,917
DB R Non-controlling interests 588,579 400,824
4,274,555 3,554,741

2 u 2 BREMERRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
N 2024E12 A31 B At 31 December 2024

2024 2023
iikz3 ARETFT ABEFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
EE ASSETS
FIREBEE Non-current assets
TE N EHE Investment properties 14 1,778,500 1,825,170
ER - =Y Property, plant and equipment 15 21,521,843 21,454,802
EREEE Right-of-use assets 16 3,450,553 3,554,237
E|EE Intangible assets 17 148,800 155,640
EE Goodwill 18 97,910 97,910
RN ey Interest in an associate 20 101,377 95,378
RN Interest in joint ventures 21 577,003 529,323
BRAABETIRIE Financial assets at fair value through
BaREENSRIEE profit or loss 22 408,205 325,113
EERAAEBEYERE  Equity instruments designated as at
H At 2 T A 2 R B 2 Y fair value through other
EmTE comprehensive income 22 154,560 154,907
PTESMIA Derivative financial instruments 31 — 169,185
EETIBE E Deferred tax assets 34 305,963 339,411
REIEHATFH Long-term time deposits 26 6,618,400 3,975,000
35,163,114 32,676,076
REEE Current assets
TE Inventories 23 4,015,218 4,385,268
FEULBR R Trade receivables 24 1,596,456 1,579,983
A g B Fi T8 Tax recoverable 10,973 42,364
FERTFRIE R A EUFRIE  Prepayments and other receivables 25 2,311,068 3,037,372
R EEYR M B8R Finandial assets at fair value through
REMNEHEE profit or loss 22 329,041 665,210
TEEMITE Derivative financial instruments 31 338,717 —
RHEST AR 52 BIERER(H  Current portion of long-term time deposit 26 1,840,000 3,976,900
IR TIF R Pledged bank deposits 26 24,870 32,015
IRITHEB LIRS Bank balances and cash 26 7,519,398 6,754,466
17,985,741 20,473,578
mEE Total assets 53,148,855 53,149,654
BRRERREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
B A % 4 Capital and reserves
BT Issued capital 27 196,684 196,681
&5 % B Share premium 28 787,836 787,091
G Reserves 29 13,244,526 12,910,832
AEATRBRREGBRRR Total capital and reserves attributable
B to owners of the Company 14,229,046 13,894,604
DEREER Non-controlling interests 19 3,386,305 3,327,640
RRERBE Total equity 17,615,351 17,222,244
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
2024412 A31H At 31 December 2024

2024 2023
BtaF AR¥ T ABREFIT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
RABEREE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 32 1,670,256 5,247,194
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 111,003 180,424
BITRMEE Employee benefit obligations 33 64,972 52,898
ELERIBA R Deferred tax liabilities 34 1,264,048 1,253,880
3,110,279 6,734,396
REBEE Current liabilities
FEATERFR Trade payables 35 8,136,600 8,572,717
Hi e B R B UIFE  Other payables and deposits received 36 10,040,648 8,869,473
BEEEZRVEEMD Current portion of interest-bearing
borrowings 32 11,584,561 8,481,501
HEAE Lease liabilities 16 152,935 146,268
HP AN IR Advance payments from customers 39 1,974,762 2,821,969
I8 Taxation 533,719 301,086
32,423,225 29,193,014
HeE Total liabilities 35,533,504 35,927,410
BREZREEHASE Total equity and liabilities 53,148,855 53,149,654
FRBAE Net current liabilities (14,437,484) (8,719,436)
BEERRBERE Total assets less current liabilities 20,725,630 23,956,640

E01E365E Yy EAMEREDHES These consolidated financial statements on pages 201 to 365 were

@N2025F3A 4B ERERESE
THUATALTRREE

approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24
March 2025 and signed on its behalf by

H M4 —BB Junichiro Ida
ZEZ Director

%4 WEI Hong-Ming
EZ Director

2”4 BREMERRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2024F 12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

KRFRRER
Attributable to owners of the Company
RaRERE
B JYREER e
Bl RiaE Total Non- R
lssued Share EE  caplaland controling Total
capital premium Reserves Teserves interests equity
AREIT  ARETT  ARETR ARETn ARETr  ARETr
RMB'000 RIVB'000 RIB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000
RABE1A1A At 1 January 2023 235,741 825,364 12310421 13,371,526 3,443,949 16,815,475
FERET Profitfor the year - - 3,117,461 3,117,461 399,206 3,516,667
A2 ahs(FR) Other comprehensive income (loss)
RensHn Cash flow hedges - - 39,400 39,400 264 39,664
REBHMEMZEMR Remeasurement of defined benefit obligations - - 9,715) (9.715) 119 (9,5%)
BERLABEFERELL Fairvalue changes in equity instruments designated
PENGERENERLE as at fair value through other comprehensive
MEEE income - - (3611) (3611) - (3611)
EXZE Exchange differences on consoldation - - 10,38 10,38 123 11617
A2 EYEAT Total other comprehensive income - - 36,456 36,456 1618 38,074
REERANRAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 3153917 3153917 400,824 3,554,741
BALIRRZRG Transactions with owners of the Company:
REEFT Contributons and distribution
REBREEET 2R Shares issued under share option scheme 7 2,006 (501) 1532 - 1532
NEEREE T8 Effect on the change of functional currency (39,067) (40,299) 79,366 - - -
BHEREE 02 KER 2022 inal and specialfinal dividend approved
BAXERE and paid - — 3 (2632371 (517133 (3,149504
HRNAREZRHAE Total transactions with owners of the Company (39,060) (38273) (2,553,506) (2630,839) (517133) (3,147,972)
R0BE1NE3E At 31 December 2023 196,681 787,091 12910832 13,894,604 3,327,640 1722244
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
HZE2024F 12 A31 HIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

KRARREE
Attributable to owners of the Company
BER e
8% HUkRER B&
BTN RraE Total Non- ERAE
Issued Share ffE  cpitland  controlling Total
capital premium Reserves reserves interests equity

ABRTE  ARETZ  ARETT  ARRTL ARETZ  AERTR
RUBY00  RMBYO)  RMBUO  RMBUMO  RMBUO)  RMBON

R0UE1A1A At 1 January 2024 196,681 787,091 12,910,832 13,894,604 3,327,640 17,222,244
TR Profit for the year - - 3,734,429 3,734,429 587,706 4,322,135
A2 E(EE) s Other comprehensive (loss) income
Rensiin Cash flow hedges - - (26,805) (26,805) - (26,805)
RERFBEZEGM#33)  Remeasurement of defined henefit obligations (More 33/ - - (19,749) (19,749) 63) (19,812)

BERLABEBRELMRE  Fairvalue changes in equity instruments designated as
WEERENERTALAEE  atfarvalue through other comprehensive

£y income - - (347) (347) - (347)
EiEE Exchange differences on consoldation - - (1552 (1552 936 (616)
Hip2m (B8 WRiLE Total other comprehensive (loss) income - - (48,453) (48,453) 873 (47,580)
AEERAURLE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 3685976 3,685,976 588,579 4,274,555
BANIRRZRG Transactions with owners of the Company:
KESHT Contrbutions and dlstrbution
REERET 2R ER Shares issued under share option scheme (Mot 27)
(z27) 3 745 (185) 563 - 563
BHERTE 03 RARMEE 2023 final and special inal dividend approved
RS (s 12) and paid (ot 12) - — M0 M) (399914)  (3517.01)
3 45 (3,117,82) (3,116,534) (399,914) (3,516,448)
FEEES Changes in ownershyp inferests
HELAEZHERDN Changes in ownership interests in subsiiaries without
FRERE(HT19) change in control Mot 79) - - (235,000 (235,000) (130,000) (365,000)
HEDAREZRAAE Total transactions with owners of the Company 3 45 (335228)  (3,351534) (520914)  (3,881,448)
R20UE12531R At 31 December 2024 196,684 781,836 13,244,526 14,229,046 3,386,305 17,615,351

zu E BREMEERERAE
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZE2024F 12 A31 BIEFEE Year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Htaz AR#FT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ReEEH OPERATING ACTIVITIES
REHEEFBESE Cash generated from operations 37 10,124,153 7,279,303
EEATER Income tax paid (1,430,423) (1,294,144)
EEFE Interest paid (429,858) (490,316)
RETEBFBRSFE Net cash from operating activities 8,263,872 5,494,843
REED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
2R Interest received 547,061 515,478
R HE BRF 3048 0 Increase in long-term time deposits 26 (4,763,400) (2,160,000)
FEHIE B FFUR D Decrease in long-term time deposits 26 4,256,900 1,760,000
52 HA%E HA 17 S 0 Increase in short-term time deposits 26 (20,000) —
BUAE & R RIRF Dividend received from joint ventures 21 58,705 189,615
B — B & 2 B AR A Dividend received from an associate 20 17,557 17,740
BUIE AR EETRR Dividend received from financial assets
FERARRENSRIEE  atfair value through profit or loss and
LIEEEAAREBEYERKL  equity instruments designed as at
T B fth 2 T Wy 2 AR BE I8 fair value through other comprehensive
RIAEZS T B income 8 2,545 127
HEZRAABEIER Proceeds from disposal of financial
riE=REE R assets at fair value through profit or loss
TREEZF 22 770,580 55
BARAABEIERER Purchase of financial assets at
HEREZERENES/MEE  fair value through profit or loss 22 (501,679) (735,974)
HEETESRTE Settlement of derivative
financial instruments — (72,937)
BAME - M RRE Purchase of property,
plant and equipment (3,536,845) (3,560,454)
TAAE Sz T FEAE  Payment for land use right in respect of
leasehold land 16 (71,545) (83,925)
HEYE  WENREN  Proceeds from sale of property, plant
FREEE G and equipment and right-of-use assets 215,058 132,666
HEEE QR G Proceeds from disposal of a joint venture 2,777 —
HEKB RIS Net cash inflow on disposal
BERMAFR of subsidiaries 166,766 213,458
EUIE R Z R Decrease in loan receivables 25(a) — 60,000
RETHFFARSFHE Net cash used in investing activities (2,855,520) (3,724,151)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
et ARETFT AREFT
MEED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
ERARRREZRE Dividends paid to owners of
the Company (3,117,097) (2,632,371)
B L#MEEELRS ZE  Dividends paid to
non-controlling interests 37(b) (373,414) (517,034)
RIR IR & Issue of shares under share
BT 2 option scheme 27 563 1,532
TNHEEAE Payments of lease liabilities 37(b) (199,511) (215,408)
BITERERZER MG Proceeds from unsecured notes issued 37(b) 1,494,836 —
UeBE DB RS 2 13 Payments for acquisition of
non-controlling interests 19 (365,000) —
FIBIRITER Proceeds from bank borrowings 37(b) 3,516,753 8,648,724
ERRITREMER Repayments of bank and
other borrowings 37(b) (7,213,113) (6,965,691)
HMQHEE ZE8)F%  Net movement of other
short-term borrowings 37(b) 1,581,603 (5,638,678)
MEEBHFARESFEEE Net cash used in financing activities (4,674,380) (7,318,926)
HERREEEYWZF Net increase (decrease) in cash
T CRL) and cash equivalents 733,972 (5,548,234)
FHzRERASEMEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year 6,786,481 12,336,453
ERgFHowE Effect on exchange rate changes 3,815 (1,738)
FRZ2EESRREELEEY  Cash and cash equivalents
at end of year 26 7,524,268 6,786,481

2” H BREMERRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2024F 12 A31 HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2024

FEEEZERAERARTEAR])
AREHEFMKIEREERF
LREREBBERZHERRA A
ZERETW - HEEZRBEHU AR
EET B EEI18 P IRE 55612
5607 ERFEARIEMBE(HE])
LBMREITE R 16885% ©

ARABAB—FRREZEBRRA - AR
AREMBAR(REAIASHE])
TERFLEERHEENBENR
e HMBARREZ T EXHKH
KA MG IHRERM L 46

KM BRRTVIRBE L GFHED
RERM2EBHBRELER(E
AMBHREELN]D KABEEER
EEERENNE BN FEREE
A - A St ERA(E AT
ADERE URBFEBEEEMNZ
Bt R A R X ARG #0538 A K FE AR
TR - N M B RERRAE T
EEAMARIMBRARES L
mARAMT ERRAN]D ZERAEER

iE °

ESHCHNBEREIN T
8 BRIESHHA -

RN A M mARM TS - NF
NERHEER 2 BEBHBREE
RIS RER B MR RA 2 BT
BUR #2023 FE MM MK RZ —
e REBMRABZIEGER
MEHNGEMBERERMES -

Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
its shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. The addresses of its principal place of business
are Suite 5607, 56th Floor, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong and No. 1688, Wuzhong Road, Minhang
District, Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China (“PRC").

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in the manufacture and sale of instant noodles and
beverages. The principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in
note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs"), which collective term includes all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the "HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”).

All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless
otherwise indicated.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a
basis consistent with the accounting policies adopted in the 2023
consolidated financial statements except for the adoption of the
revised HKFRSs that are relevant to the Group and effective from
the current year as detailed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. A summary of the principal accounting policies
adopted by the Group is set out in note 3 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024
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BREMERRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the board

of directors (“the Directors”) have carefully assessed the working

capital and financing requirements of the Group in the foreseeable

future, as the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by RMB14,437,484,000 at the end of the reporting period.

Taking into account the existing banking facilities of the Group,

the Directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources

to meet in full its financial obligations as they fall due in the

foreseeable future. Accordingly, these consolidated financial

statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

(a)

(b)

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements is historical cost, except for
investment properties, financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, equity instruments designated as at fair
value through other comprehensive income and derivative
financial instruments, which are measured at fair value as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for
the same reporting year as that of the Company using
consistent accounting policies.

All intra-group balances, transactions, income and
expenses and profits and losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

(b)
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(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Non-controlling interests are presented, separately from
owners of the Company, in the consolidated income
statement and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income and within equity in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The non-controlling interests in
the acquiree, that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
acquiree’s net assets in event of liquidation, are measured
initially either at fair value or at the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. This choice of
measurement basis is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRSs.

Allocation of total comprehensive income

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
is attributed to the owners of the Company and the non-
controlling interest even if this results in the non-controlling
interest having a deficit balance.

Changes in ownership interests

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
“transactions with non-controlling interests reserve” under
reserves within equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024
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BREMERRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(b)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii)
the carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
The amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to the disposed subsidiary are accounted
for on the same basis as would be required if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business (including
the acquisition of joint control of a joint operation in which
the activity constitutes a business) is measured at the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of
any previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the
acquisition date, amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed of the acquired business.

Goodwill on acquisition of business is recognised as a
separate asset and is carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses, which is tested for impairment annually
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. For the
purpose of impairment test and determination of gain or
loss on disposal, goodwill is allocated to cash-generating
units (“CGUs"). An impairment loss on goodwill is not
reversed.

On the other hand, any excess of the acquisition date
amounts of identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities
assumed of the acquired business over the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree, if any,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or
loss as an income from bargain purchase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024
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(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Freehold land is not depreciated and stated at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. All other property, plant
and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use. Repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
year in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less
accumulated impairment losses of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress, over
their estimated useful lives as set out below from the date
on which they are available for use and after taking into
account their estimated residual values, using the straight-
line method. Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the costs of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis and depreciated separately.
Buildings 10 to 30 years
Machinery and equipment:

— Instant noodles 10 to 12 years

— Beverages

— Others
Electrical appliances and equipment

10 to 12 years
5to 10 years
5 years

Miscellaneous equipment 3to 10 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the item) is included in profit or loss in
the year in which the item is derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024
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BREMERRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(d)

(e)

)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

When an existing property becomes an investment property,
any difference at the date of change in use between
the carrying amount and the fair value of the property
is accounted for in the same way as a revaluation in
accordance with HKAS 16.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction and acquisition
and capitalised borrowing costs. No depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and ready for intended use. When
the assets concerned are available for use, the costs
are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in 3(d)
above.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and buildings that are held
by owner or lessee, to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include properties held for a currently
undetermined future use.

Investment properties are stated at fair value at the end
of the reporting period. Any gain or loss arising from a
change in fair value is recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value of investment property is based on a valuation by an
independent valuer who holds a recognised professional
qualification and has recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued.
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(h)

Intangible assets
Concession right

Concession right acquired in a business combination is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Concession
right has finite useful life and is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over its estimated useful life. Both the period and
method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Water resource license

The initial cost of acquiring water resource license is
capitalised. The water resource license has finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided on
the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group reassesses whether it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the elements of control.

In the Company's statement of financial position, which
is presented within these notes, an interest in a subsidiary
is stated at cost less impairment loss. The carrying
amount of the interest in a subsidiary is reduced to its
recoverable amount on an individual basis, if it is higher
than the recoverable amount. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. A joint arrangement is
an arrangement of which two or more parties have joint
control. Joint control is a contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control. The Group reassesses whether
it has joint control of an arrangement and whether the type
of joint arrangement in which it is involved has changed, if
facts and circumstances change.

The Group's interest in associate or joint venture is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment or a portion thereof is classified
as held for sale. Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for
the post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Except to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the investee, the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses when the Group's share of losses
of the investee equals or exceeds the carrying amount of
its interest in the investee, which includes any long term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the investee.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the
investees, except where unrealised losses provide evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred, in which case
they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments
Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only when (i)
the Group's contractual rights to future cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or (i) the Group transfers the financial
asset and either (a) it transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset but it does not retain
control of the financial asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without a
significant financing component) are initially recognised at
their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not carried
at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Such trade receivables are initially measured at their
transaction price.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as (i)
measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt investment measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii) equity instruments designated
as at fair value through other comprehensive income
("Designated FVOCI"); or (iv) measured at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL").
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Recognition and derecognition (Continued)

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the Group’s business model for managing the
financial assets and the financial asset’s contractual cash
flow characteristics. Financial assets are not reclassified
subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group
changes its business model for managing them, in which
case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first
day of the first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which a host
is an asset within the scope of HKFRS 9 are not separated
from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid contract is assessed
for classification.

1) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

1)

2)

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
(Continued)

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost include
bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits, short-
term time deposits, long-term time deposits and trade
and other receivables.

Designated FVOCI/

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument that is neither held for trading nor
contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer
in a business combination to which HKFRS 3 applies
in other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless the
dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred directly to retained profits.

The Group irrevocably designated certain investments
in unlisted equity securities as Designated FVOCI
because the Group intends to hold these equity
securities for long term for strategic purposes. The
details of the Group's financial assets at Designated
FVOCI have been set out in note 22 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

3)

Financial assets at FV/PL

These investments include financial assets that are
not measured at amortised cost or FVOCI, including
financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition as at FVPL, financial
assets resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies and financial assets that are otherwise
required to be measured at FVPL. They are carried at
fair value, with any resultant gain and loss recognised
in profit or loss, which does not include any dividend
or interest earned on the financial assets. Dividend or
interest income is presented separately from fair value
gain or loss.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is:

(i) acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term;

(i) part of a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that are managed together and
for which there is evidence of a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking on initial
recognition; or

(i) a derivative that is not a financial guarantee
contract or not a designated and effective
hedging instrument.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

3)

Financial assets at FVPL (Continued)

Financial assets are designated at initial recognition
as at FVPL only if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency
that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains or losses on them on
different bases.

The Group's financial assets at FVPL include investment
funds, unlisted bank financial products, structured
deposits, listed equity securities and derivative financial
instruments as further detailed in notes 22 and 31
to the consolidated financial statements. Information
about the Group's exposure to financial risk of the
financial assets at FVPL is included in note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only when the

Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only when the

liability is extinguished, that is, when the obligation specified

in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their fair value
plus, in the case of financial liabilities not carried at FVPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other
payables, lease liabilities and interest-bearing borrowings. All
financial liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, unless the effect of discounting
would be insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.

Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses (“ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with HKFRS 9. Except for the specific
treatments as detailed below, at each reporting date, the
Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset at
an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk on
that financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has not
increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
measures the loss allowance for that financial asset at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses (i.e.
the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the expected life
of the financial instrument.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of the
difference between the contractual cash flows that are due
to an entity under the contract and the cash flows that the
entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument while 12-month ECL represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

() past due information

(i) nature of instrument

(i) nature of collateral

(iv)  industry of debtors

(v)  geographical location of debtors
(vi)  external credit risk ratings

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the financial instrument, except
in the case of debt instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income, the loss allowance is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the investment revaluation reserve (recycling).
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes
as historical experience indicates that the Group may not
receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full if the
financial instrument that meets any of the following criteria.

(i)  information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the Group);
or

(i)  there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort. In particular, the following information
is taken into account in the assessment:

e the debtor’s failure to make payments of principal or
interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external or internal credit rating
(if available);

® an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk

0) it has a low risk of default;

(i)  the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash
flow obligations.

As detailed in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements, structured deposits, derivative financial
instruments, long-term time deposits, short-term time
deposits, bank balances and cash, amounts due from an
associate, joint ventures, related parties and loan receivables
are determined to have low credit risk.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables without a significant financing
components or otherwise for which the Group applies
the practical expedient not to account for the significant
financing components, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date
and has established a provision matrix that is based on
its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

Credit-impaired financial asset

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that
a financial asset is credit-impaired include observable data
about the following events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

(¢ the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets and other items (Continued)

Credit-impaired financial asset (Continued)

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past due
based on historical experience of recoveries of similar assets.
The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount
written off. However, financial assets that are written off
could still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due, taking
into account legal advice if appropriate. Any subsequent
recovery made is recognised in profit or loss.



iR A MR M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

(k)

TETAREHED

AEBEFTLLEFEE THINEE
Ha W AH M E AR AINES
EBEXEHEHNRERETR
S SNE RRR o AN ER B H E
BIERE MR A EENINES
BEXAZZRERERHR
EEMIMNERR - REFIEARE
BHEL R EBRFEKR
ARG BEKRF - AEME
BBINERHANEERINER
REEEEAIMNESHEERE
H o REBYHUARERTEE
BE¥MARRRAETFER
REEEZINERRBETE
e REAKENRSREY
Mz R TAMGRER
B IH B A RARIC A - AN &
B R S0 T AEES AR
HIEEBEMARTAEEHILFE
SEREGR ER B E - Fitt - A
SEEBOYEPLLERI -
EEE R R e B B
ER B S T AN BE S
= o

AEBERE PRI EH T
HEHRIE B ABERER - A
EERREEZEBFEMATES
HRZRBEEIERLER - A
S E IR E RGBS AR F B
B FHE Lok H S Eh R
FRENBHTERMUENE

R
S
/\o

(k)

Derivatives and hedging activities

The Group carried out certain foreign currency forward
contracts to hedge its foreign currency risks associated with
highly probable forecast transactions arising from changes
in foreign currency-denominated borrowings. The Group’s
hedging objective is to hedge the foreign currency exposure
to the cash flows variability arising from the principal
repayment of the foreign currency-denominated borrowings
whilst the Group’s overall impact on exchange difference
could be maintained at a reasonably low level. The Group
uses foreign currency forward contracts to manage the
foreign currency risks until the repayment date of the
foreign currency-denominated borrowings. The Group
hedges to the extent that the foreign currency exposure
arising from the United States Dollar (“US$") denominated
borrowings made by the Company of which the functional
currency is Renminbi (“RMB™). Under the Group's cash flow
hedge arrangement, the terms of the hedging instrument
basically match with the terms of the hedged items. The
Group expects the value of the hedging instruments to
move in the opposite direction as compared to the value of
the hedged items, and thereby ensures hedge effectiveness.
Therefore, the Group applies a hedging ratio of 1:1. The
main source of hedge ineffectiveness in these hedging
relationships principally arises from any late designation of
the hedging instrument.

The Group documents at the inception of the hedge the
intended relationship between hedging instruments and
hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and
strategy for undertaking its hedge transactions. The Group
also documents its assessment, both at hedge inception and
on an ongoing basis, of whether the hedging relationship
meets the hedge effectiveness requirements.
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Derivatives and hedging activities (Continued)
Cash flow hedges that qualify for hedge accounting

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow
hedges is recognised in cash flow hedge reserve within
equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion
is recognised immediately in profit or loss, within other net
income.

When foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge
foreign currency borrowings, the Group designates only the
change in the fair value of the forward contracts related to
the spot component as the hedging instruments. Forward
element and foreign currency basis spread are separated
and excluded from the designated hedging instruments
and the Group treats these excluded elements as costs of
hedging. The fair value changes of these excluded elements
that relates to the hedged item is recognised in the cash
flow hedge reserve within equity. These excluded elements
at the date of designation (to the extent that it relates to
the hedged item) are amortised on a systematic and rational
basis to profit or loss over the period.

Amounts accumulated in equity are reclassified in the
years when the hedged item affects profit or loss. The
movement in spot rate is recycled from equity to profit or
loss to offset the foreign exchange gain or loss arising from
translation of the hedged foreign currency borrowings. Such
reclassification from equity will offset the effect on profit or
loss of the corresponding hedged item to achieve the overall
hedging result.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated,
or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge
accounting, hedge accounting is discontinued prospectively.
Any cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument that
remains in equity at that time remains recognised in equity
and is reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item
affects profit or loss. When the forecast transaction is no
longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss and
deferred costs for hedging that were reported in equity are
immediately reclassified to profit or loss.
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(m)

Cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash equivalents represent short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, net of bank overdraft, if any.

Revenue recognition
Rental income

Rental income from commercial properties is recognised
when the properties are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms while rental income from car parks are
recognised on an accrual basis.

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15

Nature of goods or services

The nature of the goods or services provided by the Group is
manufacture and sale of instant noodles, beverages, etc.

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(@) a good or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same pattern
of transfer to the customer.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Identification of performance obligations (Continued)

A good or service that is promised to a customer is distinct if
both of the following criteria are met:

(@)  the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources that
are readily available to the customer (i.e. the good or
service is capable of being distinct); and

(b)  the Group's promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of the
contract).

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring a promised good or
service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset is transferred
when (or as) the customer obtains control of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over time
and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time, if one of the following criteria
is met:

(@) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs,

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
(for example, work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or
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Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)

() the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the promised asset. In
determining when the transfer of control occurs, the Group
considers the concept of control and such indicators as
legal title, physical possession, right to payment, significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset, and customer
acceptance.

Sales of instant noodles, beverages, etc., are recognised at
a point in time at which the customer obtains the control of
the promised asset, which generally coincides with the time
when the goods are delivered to customers and the title is
passed.

Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Group estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
promised goods or services to a customer. The variable
consideration is estimated by using either the expected-
value or the most-likely-amount method whichever is better
to predict the entitled amount. The estimated variable
consideration is then included in the transaction price only
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised of
the contract will not occur when the uncertainty associated
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15
(Continued)

Contract assets and contract liabilities

If the Group performs by transferring goods or services
to a customer before the customer pays consideration
or before payment is due, the contract is presented as
a contract asset, excluding any amounts presented as a
receivable. Conversely, if a customer pays consideration, or
the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a good or service
to the customer, the contract is presented as advance
payments from customers when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). A receivable is
the Group's right to consideration that is unconditional or
only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

For a single contract or a single set of related contracts,
either a net contract asset or a net advance payment from
customers is presented. Contract assets and advance
payments from customers of unrelated contracts are not
presented on a net basis.

It is common for the Group to receive from the customer
the whole or some of the contractual payments before the
goods are delivered (i.e. the timing of revenue recognition
for such transactions). The Group recognises an advance
payments from customer until it is recognised as revenue.
During that period, any significant financing components,
if applicable, will be included in the advance payments
from customers and will be expensed as accrued unless the
interest expense is eligible for capitalisation.
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(m) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(n)

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised using the
effective interest method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
assets while it is applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount net of loss allowance) in case of credit-
impaired financial assets.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“functional currency”). The Company and majority of its
subsidiaries have RMB as their functional currency and the
consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
generally recognised in profit or loss. They are deferred in
equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow hedges.

The results and financial position of all the Group's
entities that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency (“foreign operations”) are translated
into the presentation currency as follows:

(@)  Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the end of the reporting period;

(b)  Income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at the weighted average exchange rates;
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(n) Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(o)

(¢ All resulting exchange differences arising from the
above translation and exchange differences arising
from a monetary item that forms part of the Group's
net investment in a foreign operation are recognised
as a separate component of equity;

(d)  On the disposal of a foreign operation, which includes
a disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, a disposal involving the loss of control over
a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, or a
partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or
an associate that includes a foreign operation of which
the retained interest is no longer equity-accounted for,
the cumulative amount of the exchange differences
relating to the foreign operation that is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the separate component of equity is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss when the gain or loss on
disposal is recognised.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost, which comprises all costs of purchase and,
where applicable, costs of conversion and other costs
that have been incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition, is calculated using
the weighted average cost method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.



iR A MR M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

(p)

HittEERRE  T2HE

AEERESEEE BB AE
KONERERR - PARERE YR
Wz BIVEE - &8
BEE BE mkEm A%
NREELHBARERES
AREEEHBERERR k2
RIFERZREERESCD T
BEAEXAIEEERD - FH
BEMNAENRS  AEEH
FHEEENAKEER - &
- BEEZAIKREEESGER
AREEREDERAKRERE
Bz®=E - MERIEEREE
ERBBINEMEE TR
Baeng - RIpaeis i BEGR
enEZRNEMNEERRS
ELFEMA)ER A WEEE -

WAREGFRAEESR S
EABMZ A E S BEENE
REE AZRBEERRTE
EEUREEAREEER
W EHE(E - IRk 1B &5 18 % B By B

& R ERE B RRED
AZBEEEXREELEMN 2
FREEREMESHGE 27
WEEE - 1R INR 2 REE
NERIBAEAFEFEL EEE
BEMEE ZREE- - G/E
JE&5 18 J8 (o] BRF 315 B R 74 48 2 R R
PR AW aR o

(p)

Impairment of other assets, other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
internal and external sources of information to assess
whether there is any indication that its property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, interest
in an associate, interest in joint ventures and interest in
subsidiaries may be impaired or impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may be reduced. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated, based on the higher of its fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. Where it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the smallest
group of assets that generates cash flows independently (i.e.
a CGU).

If the recoverable amount of an asset or a CGU is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised as an expense immediately.

A reversal of impairment losses is limited to the carrying
amount of the asset or CGU that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversal of impairment losses is recognised as income
in profit or loss immediately.
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(a)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred, net of any investment income on
the temporary investment of the specific borrowings, that
are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants represent incentive grants from the
relevant PRC authorities in respect of the running of
business by the Group in certain development zones and to
encourage the furtherance of such business.

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income
over the years necessary to match the grant on a systematic
basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate. Where
the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss
over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.
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(s)

Leases

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a
lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-term
leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments associated
with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease components
from lease components, and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a
lease contract as a lease separately. The Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to a
separate component are considered to be part of the total
consideration that is allocated to the separately identified
components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the lease.
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(s)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which
comprises

(@) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

(b)  any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received,;

(©) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the right-of-use asset (unless the lease
transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by
the end of the lease term or if the cost of the right-of-use
asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase option
— in which case depreciation is provided over the estimated
useful life of the underlying asset) as follows:

Properties 1 year to 30 years
Over the leasehold
period

1 year to 6 years

Land use right in respect of
leasehold land
Machinery and other equipment

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement
date of the contract.
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Leases (Continued)

As lessee (Continued)

The lease payments included in the measurement of the

lease liability comprise the following payments for the right

to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are

not paid at the commencement date:

(a)

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate;

amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees;

exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate

implicit in the lease, or where it is not readily determinable,

the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing

the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability

and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease

payments made.
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(s)

Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount rate
when there are changes to the lease payments arising from
a change in the lease term or the reassessment of whether
the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise a purchase
option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual value
guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments or the
future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or
a rate (other than floating interest rate). In case of a change
in future lease payments resulting from a change in floating
interest rates, the Group remeasures the lease liability using
a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement of
the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.
If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is reduced
to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement
of the lease liability, the Group recognises any remaining
amount of the remeasurement in profit or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease if

(@  the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

(b)  the consideration for the lease increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.
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Leases (Continued)
As lessee (Continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as a separate
lease, at the effective date of the lease modification,

(@)  the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

(b)  the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

(c)  the Group remeasures the lease liability by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount
rate over the revised lease term.

(d) for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the
lease in profit or loss.

(e)  for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by making
a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

As lessor

The Group classifies each of its leases as either a finance
lease or an operating lease at the inception date of the
lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of the underlying asset. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group accounts for each lease component within a lease
contract as a lease separately from non-lease components
of the contract. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to each lease component on a relative stand-alone
price basis.
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(s)

®

Leases (Continued)
As lessor — operating lease

The Group applies the derecognition and impairment
requirements in HKFRS 9 to the operating lease receivables.

A modification to an operating lease is accounted for as
a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave and the cost
of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where
payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present values.

Defined contribution plans

The obligations for contributions to defined contribution
retirement scheme are recognised as expenses in profit or
loss as incurred and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior the
contributions are vested fully in those employees. The assets
of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund.

Defined benefit plans

The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans
is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the
ultimate cost of benefit that employees have earned in
return for their services in the current and prior periods,
which is discounted to determine the present value of those
benefits.
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Employee benefits (Continued)
Defined benefit plans (Continued)

The calculation of the obligation is based on the
recommendations of the independent qualified actuaries
using the projected unit credit method annually. Service cost
and interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are
recognised in profit or loss. Current services cost is measured
as the increase in the present value of the defined benefit
liability resulting from employee service in the current period
or, where appropriate, the one used to remeasure the net
defined benefit liability upon plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement to the net defined benefit liability. The rate to
discount post-employment benefit obligation is the yield at
the end of the reporting period on government bonds that
have the currency and terms consistent with the currency
and estimated term of the obligations.

Gain or loss on settlement is measured as the difference
between a) the present value of the defined benefit
obligation being settled and b) any payments made by the
Group in connection with the settlement. It is recognised
when the settlement occurs.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement
plans are recognised in other comprehensive income and
are reflected in equity immediately. Remeasurements
comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan
assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)).
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(u)

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled transactions

The Group’s employees, including directors, receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby the employees rendered services in
exchange for shares or rights over shares. The cost of such
transactions with employees is measured by reference to
the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date.
The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as a staff cost with a corresponding increase in
a share-based payment reserve within equity. The fair value
is determined using the binomial model taking into account
any market conditions and non-vesting conditions.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the vesting conditions are to be fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the entitlement of relevant
employees to the award is no longer conditional on the
satisfaction of any non-market vesting conditions ("vesting
date”). During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest ultimately is reviewed. Any
adjustment to the cumulative fair value recognised in prior
periods is charged/credited to profit or loss for the year of
review, with a corresponding adjustment to the reserve
within equity.

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payment reserve
will be transferred to share premium account. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

Share-based payment transactions in which the Company
grants share options to subsidiaries’ employees are
accounted for as an increase in value of interest in
subsidiaries in the Company’s statement of financial position
which is eliminated on consolidation, with a corresponding
credit to the share-based payment reserve within equity.
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(v)

Taxation

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to item recognised in
other comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

The charge for current income tax is based on the results
for the year as adjusted for items that are non-assessable
or disallowed. It is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, any deferred tax arises from initial recognition
of goodwill, or other asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss is not recognised.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax assets and
liabilities arising from investment properties that are
measured using the fair value model, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered entirely
through sale, unless the presumption is rebutted. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment property
is depreciable and is held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property over time,
rather than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted,
deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from such
investment properties are measured based on the expected
manner as to how the property will be recovered.
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(v)

(w)

Taxation (Continued)

The deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is recovered or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, tax losses and
credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences arising
on interest in subsidiaries, associate and joint ventures,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the
Group:

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:
(i) Has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) Has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) Is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group and parent of the Group.
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(w) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are
also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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(w) Related parties (Continued)

(x)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the Group
and include:

(@)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(b)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c)  dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes
subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The Company’s executive directors, who
are responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, have been
identified as the chief operating decision-makers that make
strategic decisions.
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(y)

Future changes in HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated financial

statements, the HKICPA has issued the following new/

revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective for the current

year, which the Group has not early adopted.

Amendments to HKAS 21

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7

Annual improvements
to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRS 9
and HKFRS 7
HKFRS 18

HKFRS 19

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Lack of Exchangeability [

Amendments to the Classification

and Measurement of
Financial Instruments

Volume 111

Contracts Referencing

Nature-dependent Electricity !

Presentation and Disclosure

in Financial Statements”/

Subsidlaries without Public

Accountability: Disclosures

Sale or Contribution of Assets

between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture™

( Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2025

@21 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2026

Bl Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2027

“ The effective date to be determined

The Directors do not anticipate that the adoption of the

new/revised HKFRSs in future periods will have any material

impact on the Group’s financial position and performance.
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Adoption of Revised HKFRSs

The HKICPA has issued a number of revised HKFRSs that are first
effective for the current accounting period of the Group. Of these,
the changes in accounting policy relevant to the consolidated
financial statements are as follows:

Amendments to HKAS 1: Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current

The amendments aim to promote consistency in applying the
requirements by helping companies determine whether, in the
statement of financial position, debt and other liabilities with an
uncertain settlement date should be classified as current (due or
potentially due to be settled within one year) or non-current. The
amendments include clarifying the classification requirements for
debt a company might settle by converting it into equity.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1: Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

The amendments specify that covenants to be complied with
after the reporting date do not affect the classification of debt
as current or non-current at the reporting date. Instead, the
amendments require a company to disclose information about
these covenants in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Adoption of Revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HK Interpretation 5: Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

This Interpretation is revised as a consequence of the above
Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the corresponding wordings with
no change in conclusion.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7: Supplier Finance
Arrangements

The amendments introduce new disclosure requirements to
enhance the transparency of supplier finance arrangements and
their effects on an entity’s liabilities, cash flows and exposure to
liquidity risk.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 16: Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

The amendments require a seller-lessee to subsequently determine
lease payments arising from a sale and leaseback in a way that it
does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to
the right of use it retains. The new requirements do not prevent
a seller-lessee from recognising in profit or loss any gain or loss
relating to the partial or full termination of a lease.

The adoption of the amendments does not have any significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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Estimates and assumptions concerning the future and judgements

are made by the management in the preparation of the

consolidated financial statements. They affect the application

of the Group's accounting policies, reported amounts of assets,

liabilities, income and expenses, and disclosures made. They are

assessed on an on-going basis and are based on experience and

relevant factors, including expectations of future events that

are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Where

appropriate, revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in

the period of revision and future periods, in case the revision also

affects future periods.

0]

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have
made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred tax liabilities

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities
arising from investment properties that are measured
using the fair value model, the Directors have reviewed
the Group's investment property portfolio and concluded
that the Group’s certain investment properties are held
under a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Therefore, in measuring the Group’s deferred taxation
on these investment properties, the Directors have
determined that the presumption that the carrying amounts
of investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered entirely through sale is rebutted. As
a result, the Group has not recognised deferred taxes on
land appreciation taxes in respect of changes in fair value
of these investment properties situated in the PRC but has
recognised deferred tax on income tax on the assumption
that these investment properties will be recovered through
use.
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Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities have not been provided for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the undistributed
earnings of certain entities of the Group in the PRC as
those earnings are not expected to be distributable in
the foreseeable future. Details of deferred tax liabilities
are disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Lease terms of contracts with extension and/or termination
options — as lessee

Lease terms are determined as the non-cancellable period
of a lease, including periods covered by an option to extend
if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise the extension
option, and periods covered by an option to terminate if the
lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination
option.

The Group has lease contracts that include extension and/
or termination options. In assessing whether the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease,
or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, the Group
applies judgement and considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive to extend
or terminate the leases. Any change in the judgement may
affect the measurement of the lease liabilities and the right-
of-use assets.

After the commencement date, the Group reassesses the
lease term upon the occurrence of a significant event or a
significant change in circumstances that is within the control
of the lessee and affects whether the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise an extension option or not to exercise a
termination option.
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0]

(i)

Critical judgement in applying accounting policies
(Continued)

Identification of leases

At the inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease based on the requirements
of HKFRS 16 and all the relevant facts and circumstances.
In particular, the Group assesses whether the contract
involves the use of an identified asset by applying the
concept of substantive substitution right. Also, the Group
assesses whether the Group or the customer has the right
to direct the use of the identified asset with reference to
determination of which party has the decision-making
rights that are most relevant to changing how and for what
purpose the asset is used. In cases where such decisions
are predetermined, the right to operate the asset or the
incorporation of such decisions by means of designing the
asset are considered.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets

The Directors review the residual value, useful lives and
depreciation/amortisation method of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets at the end of each
reporting period, through careful consideration with regards
to expected usage, wear-and-tear and potential technical
obsolescence to usage of the assets.
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(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Useful lives and impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets (Continued)

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event
previously causing the impairment no longer exists, the
Directors have to assess whether an event has occurred that
may affect the asset value or such event affecting the asset
value has not been in existence. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amounts of the asset would be determined
by reference to value in use and fair value less costs of
disposal. Value in use is determined using the discounted
cash flow method. Owing to inherent risk associated with
estimations in the timing and magnitude of the future cash
flows and fair value less costs of disposal, the estimated
recoverable amount of the asset may be different from
its actual recoverable amount and profit or loss could be
affected by accuracy of the estimations.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

As described in notes 14, 22 and 43 to the consolidated
financial statements, the valuation techniques applied by
various external parties for the level 3 assets or liabilities
have been agreed with the management of the Group. The
management determined whether valuation techniques and
assumptions applied are appropriate to the circumstances
of the Group. The estimation of fair value of level 3 assets
and liabilities included some assumptions not supported by
observable market prices or rates. Change in assumption
could affect the reported fair value of the assets and
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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(i)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the
value in use of the CGU to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected cash flows from the CGU and also
to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. Details of the estimates
used to calculate the recoverable amount are given in note
18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities — as lessee

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates to
discount future lease payments since interest rates implicit in
the leases are not readily determinable. In determining the
discounts rates for its leases, the Group refers to a rate that
is readily observable as the starting point and then applies
judgement and adjusts such observable rate to determine
the incremental borrowing rate. The higher the discount
rate for calculating the lease liabilities, the lower the lease
liabilities will be resulted and vice versa.
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The Company’s executive directors have been identified as
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group. The Group
has identified its operating segments and prepared segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the Company's executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group's business components
and review of these components’ performance. The Company’s
executive directors consider the business principally from a product
perspective which forms a basis for business segment information
as over 99% of the Group’s sales and business are conducted
in the PRC from a geographical perspective. Business reportable
operating segments identified are instant noodles, beverages and
others. The segment of others includes instant food, investment
holding, properties investment for rental purpose and supportive
functions.

For the purposes of assessing the performance of the operating
segments and allocating resources between segments, the
Company's executive directors assess the performance of
reportable segments based on profit (loss) for the year and profit
(loss) before taxation, share of results of an associate and joint
ventures and unallocated expenses, net.

Segment assets include all assets with the exception of interest
in an associate and joint ventures and unallocated assets which
include certain financial assets at FVPL and Designated FVOCI.
Segment liabilities include all liabilities with the exception of
employee benefit obligations.

Inter-segment sales are priced at cost plus profit margin. The
accounting policies of the reporting segments are the same as the
Group’s “Principal accounting policies” as described in note 3 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The geographical location of the Group’s customers is based on
the location at which the goods are delivered. Over 99% of the
revenues from external customers of the Group are attributable to
customers located in the PRC, the place of domicile of the Group's
operating entities. Meanwhile, all of the Group’s non-current
assets, other than certain land and buildings, certain financial
assets at FVPL and Designated FVOCI, are located in Mainland
China. No revenue from a single external customer amounted to
10% or more of the Group's revenue.
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DEDEE Segment results:
2024
Rk
HEaE Inter-
Instant i Hft  segment @5t
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFR
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
2 Revenue
BEPENEE 2 s Revenue from contracts
with customers 28,306,049 51,615,930 660,038 — 80,582,017
W52 R Timing of revenue
recognition:
TEE—EE5 Recognised at a pointin time | 28,306,049 51,615,930 660,038 — 80,582,017
REMIFEEZBA - Revenue from other sources:
REHEUREHME ZHEUA  Rental income from
investment properties — — 68,897 — 68,897
S abfEz W Inter-segment revenue 108,382 5,063 687,343 (800,788) —
72 EE Segment revenue 28,414,431 51,620,993 1,416,278  (800,788) 80,650,914
PHEZ(CMREBEER)  Segment results after
finance costs 2,739,871 3,399,473 (225,870) 16,273 5,929,747
JEIGEE REIRAEDNAZEE  Share of results of an
associate and joint ventures (51) 129,992 — — 129,941
AR ZFTH Unallocated expenses, net — — (34) — (34)
BREBLADER (F518) Profit (Loss) before taxation | 2,739,820 3,529,465  (225,904) 16,273 6,059,654
HIE Taxation (694,979)  (1,023,031) (19,509) —  (1,737,519)
FEEZEMN(ER) Profit (Loss) for the year 2,044,841 2,506,434 (245,413) 16,273 4,322,135

BREMERRERAR

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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DI (E) Segment results: (Continued)

2024
A0 8
FEE Inter-
Instant R Hft  segment @5t
noodles  Beverages Others elimination Total
ANRETFT ANREFH ARETT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
BE Assets
DEEE Segment assets 18,211,527 31,893,555 4,753,664  (2,855,744) 52,003,002
B NEER Interest in an associate — 101,377 — — 101,377
AEAAER Interest in joint ventures 25 576,978 — — 577,003
APBEE Unallocated assets 467,473
HEE Total assets 53,148,855
8% Liabilities
NEBER Segment liabilities 8,214,247 18,026,915 11,920,966  (2,693,596) 35,468,532
Aol EE Unallocated liabilities 64,972
BEE Total liabilities 35,533,504
Hirg g Other information
TEREH Depreciation and amortisation 884,891 2,565,909 168,291 (117,284) 3,501,807
BEARFY Capital expenditures 1,023,569 2,585,442 17,024 — 3,626,035
FBUA Interest income 177,949 250,912 18,641 (90,530) 356,972
e Interest expenses 21,219 185,906 313,580 (97,392) 423313
HEMBRRFRE Gain on disposal of a subsidiary — 49,374 — — 49,374
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DEEE  (F) Segment results: (Continued)
2023
R
aRid Inter-
Instant R Hit segment Bat
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total

ARETFL ARKTT ARETT ARBTT AREFIL
RMB0OO ~ RMBOOO ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000

[ Revenue
REFPANEE W& Revenue from contracts

with customers 28,720,554 50,930,604 697,005 — 80,348,163
WERT 2K Timing of

revenue recognition:
X B2 Recognised at a point in time 28,720,554 50,930,604 697,005 — 80,348,163
REMIRREEZWA Revenue from other sources:
KEREERME 2HEWA  Rental income from

investment properties — — 69,912 — 69,912
D ER 2 Wa Inter-segment revenue 72,134 8,036 650,354 (730,524) —
SEWE Segment revenue 28,792,688 50,938,640 1,417,271 (730,524) 80,418,075

PREE(CHBRMBER)  Segment results after

finance costs 2,701,577 2,077,137 (141,657) 20,122 4,657,179
JEEIE DB A RAIESE  Share of results of an associate

and joint ventures (387) 128,450 (1,109) — 126,954
AR ZFTH Unallocated expenses, net — — (4,672) — 4,672)
BRBEATEF (B8) Profit (Loss) before taxation 2,701,190 2,205,587 (147,438) 20122 4,779,461
I8 Taxation (692,933) (546,270) (23,591) —  (1,262,794)
REEZRF(EE) Profit (Loss) for the year 2,008,257 1,659,317 (171,029) 20,122 3,516,667

2 B 2 BREMEERERAE
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DEEE - ()

Segment results: (Continued)

2023
RNk
HiEHE Inter-
Instant R Hit segment #®at
noodles Beverages Others  elimination Total
ANREFT ANRMFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBO00  RMB'000  RMB'000
BE Assets
DHEE Segment assets 18,102,147  32,415379 4,467,320  (2,793,861) 52,190,985
BeNFER Interest in an associate — 95,378 — — 95,378
AENEER Interest in joint ventures 76 529,247 — — 529,323
AOBEE Unallocated assets 333,968
BEE Total assets 53,149,654
=l Liabilities
HEEE Segment liabilities 8,801,039 18,981,068 10,692,799  (2,600,394) 35,874,512
xHEEE Unallocated liabilities 52,898
BEE Total liabilities 35,927,410
HinEH Other information
TEREH Depreciation and amortisation 868,412 2,527,121 167,806 (114,702) 3,448,637
VR Capital expenditures 699,708 2,967,555 20,442 — 3,687,705
FIBMA Interest income 211,343 350,856 34,753 (56,258) 540,694
FIESH Interest expenses 39,750 233,759 306,100 (60,487) 519,122
HEMBRRFRE Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 259,306 154,416 — — 413,722
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2024 2023
AR¥FT ARBFor
RMB’000 RMB’000
F B A Interest income 356,972 540,694
2024 2023
HtiE ARETFT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
WA (ZH) : Income (Expenses):
o B 2 MR Gain on sales of scrapped materials 176,073 195,251
ZFVPLEEEMSMEZE Y  Change in fair value of
N BESEFE financial assets at FVPL, net 14,964 (133)
HFVPLIRIEMSRMEEK  Dividend income from
$5E FVOCI 2 financial assets at
PR A FVPL and Designated FVOCI 2,545 127
HE W B A Rk Gain on disposal of subsidiaries 40 49,374 413,722
BT ED Government grants 150,063 201,306
HEYE - HWELEREN  Loss on disposal of property,
ERREEZEE plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets (58,479) (113,295)
i 5 s (B18) - 58 Exchange gain (loss), net 3,502 (2,632)
Hit - %58 Others, net 102,037 199,101
440,079 893,447
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LM THIEE 1% - This is stated after charging:
2024 2023
AREFT AREFITT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B%E R Finance costs
AR S FRNBEEE ZIRIT  Interest on bank and other borrowings
MEMERZFE wholly repayable within five years 408,750 503,088
HEBBEEEZHMKER Finance costs on lease liabilities 14,563 16,034
423,313 519,122
2024 2023
ARETFT AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Hiig g Other items
ETMRA(BRIEZEEMSE) © Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration):
e K Salaries and wages 8,497,184 8,335,726
RIREHR Pension costs:
REHRKETE Defined contribution plans 901,153 865,770
AEBAETE Defined benefit plans 3,096 2,139
ZERB S Auditor’s remuneration:
EER Audit fee 9,282 8,551
FEZER Non-audit fee 928 927
EEFERAY Cost of inventories* 53,955,271 55,950,986
FEMIEGT AEM Written off of inventories
KEBR) (included in other operating expenses) 43,868 57,976
E Depreciation:
Yzt -~ 2R MR Property, plant and equipment 3,178,310 3,111,300
EREEE Right-of-use assets 316,657 330,497
B EEEE Amortisation of intangible assets 6,840 6,840
# EEFERARBIFEEE TRA - # Cost of inventories includes RMB4,881,288,000 (2023: RMIB4,963,268,000)
M HEREKE FRAEEE relating to staff costs, deprediation of property, plant and equipment and right-
THEREFREEEHEARE of-use assets and amortisation on intangible assets which amounts are also
4,881,288,0007T(2023 F : AR B included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

4,963,2680005T) ° %% & 8 INET
NV hv 3 Y
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FMEENTHEAZD XMKREMNZ The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid or payable to the
e @sEmT Directors and chief executive officer are as follows:
2024
Bie
IRREEN
Bié
AR 13 RE
i ZffZ  Retirement
Rftie FE  paymentsand
EShe Salaries i Share-  contribution
Directors' and other  Discretionary based  to pension &it
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total

ABRTE  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETT  ARETZ
RMB'000  RMBU0O  RMBU00  RMBU0O  RMBU0O  RMBOOO

Hi7EE: Executive directors:
RE% Wei Hong-Ming 1 5,445 3,553 - - 9,719
Eidii i Junichiro Ida 577 230 - - - 807
REX Wei Hong-Chen 691 5,255 3,424 - - 9,370
e Koji Shinohara 361 230 - - - 591
RfEEE Yuko Takahashi 361 230 - - - 591
g Tseng Chien 361 706 133 - - 1,200
BUFHTEE Indlependent non-executive directors:
iz Hsu Shin-Chun 433 130 - - - 563
E3 Lee Tiong-Hock 433 101 - - - 534
RAZ Hiromu Fukada
(12024%4 7178 (resigned on 17 April 2024)
BHE) 144 29 - - - 173
iy Masaya Tochio
(12024473178 (appointed on 17 April 2024)
BZf) 288 86 — — — 374
TR Chief executive officer:
RE= Chen Yinjang - 4,200 2,836 — — 7,036

4,370 16,642 9,946 - - 30,958

ZB B BREMEERERAE
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2023

XRRELH

Bie

SABR{R BE

BeR Zf52  Retirement

Ef#e FE  payments and

Ezhg Salaries el Share-  contribution
Directors' and other  Discretionary hased to pension aif
fees  emoluments bonuses payments scheme Total

NEETT  ARBTL ARETT  ARETT ARETT  ARETT
RMBOOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOD  RMBUOO  RMBOOD  AMBUOO

HITEE Executive directors:
BE% Wei Hong-Ming 708 5,440 1,560 - - 7,708
il Junichiro Ida 568 26 - - - 794
REX Wei Hong-Chen 708 5,251 1,503 - - 7462
BRER Koji Shinohara 354 27 - - - 581
BlREE Yuko Takahashi 35 27 - - - 581
Bf Tseng Chien 354 710 128 - - 1,192
BUFHTEE Indlevendent non-executive directors:
R Hsu Shin-Chun 425 128 - - - 553
£33 Lee Tiong-Hock 425 70 - - - 495
il Hiromu Fukada 425 13 - - - 538
RS Chief executive officer:
Rz Chen Yinjang - 4,200 1,189 - 7,643 13,032
4,321 16,592 4,380 - 7,643 32,936
HZE2024F K 2023F 12 A31H 1k No directors and five highest paid individuals have waived
FETEESESNSGSHATHRE emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December 2024 and
REME - 2023.
REEREAFEERNESH No emoluments have been paid by the Group to the directors
ATIMAXREE M ESHKEES and five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
MAAREBREN e AEEL joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

ERALEHERE -
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REESHZEHFATBIE2MES
RATBAER (2023F : 2(EE KT
BAEZ) EMesFBER L - H
BR20(20234F - 2fu) AL ZBE &

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year, included two directors and the chief executive
officer (2023: two directors and the chief executive officer)
are reflected in the analysis presented above. Details of the

B emoluments of the remaining two individuals (2023: two) are as
follows:

2024 2023
AR¥Fr AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
HFehHMME Salaries and other emoluments 11,177 8,993
RIKS AT Retirement payments 10,834 1,571
TE4T Discretionary bonuses 8,153 2,992
30,164 13,556

Y201 (20234F - 2 ) &EmFH AL
ZWeARInT

The emoluments were paid to the two (2023: two) highest paid
individuals as follows:

EEAE

Number of

individuals

< 48 B Emoluments band 2024
AR# 12,003,536 T2 AR 12,465,210 7T RMB12,003,536 to RMB12,465,210

(13,000,001 &7t = 13,500,000/57T) (HK$13,000,001 to HK$13,500,000) 1
AR¥ 18,005,304 Tt AR 18,466,978 7 RMB18,005,304 to RMB 18,466,978

(19,500,001 L% 20,000,000 /& 7T) (HK$19,500,001 to HK$20,000,000) 1

2
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BB A&
Number of
individuals
< 48 Bl Emoluments band 2023
AR¥5,431,672TEARKS5,884,3117C  RMB5,431,672 to RMB5,884,311
(6,000,001 & T2 6,500,000 7T) (HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000) 1
AR#7,242,230 2 AR 7,694,868 T RMB7,242,230 to RMB7,694,868
(8,000,001 /&L= 8,500,000 7T) (HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000) 1
2
2024 2023
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REEHE Current tax
PEIEEREH PRC Enterprise Income Tax
NEE Current year 1,486,491 1,036,223
LARTF R Z i tE Over provision in prior years (130) (24,694)
1,486,361 1,011,529
EBRNEHR Hong Kong Profits Tax
REE Current year 3,745 6,774
oy S ¥EFFEHR Singapore Corporate Income Tax
KEE Current year 1,125 251
EERIE (M 3£ 34) Deferred taxation (Note 34)
EENERD TR ERFE  Origination and reversal of
temporary differences, net (124,457) 45,433
WO B T ES 1B AR R 2 Write down of deferred tax assets
EEFIBE E related to tax loss 27,782 —
MAREEPBBEZHBAR  Effect of withholding tax on
A BEC R FEE 2 the net distributable earnings of
FEIRF the Group's PRC subsidiaries 342,963 198,807
246,288 244,240
AEEHIREEE Total tax charge for the year 1,737,519 1,262,794
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MEeERBSY MHARFRAEERZ
YA BT IR IR -

HZE2024€E %2023 12 A31HIEE
€ BEFEHRILBRAF SRS
ERTErER - EMPFESHBREGE

—F ,

BERMEMNE2008ET(RE

AR 1,847,000 7T ) (2023 4 + 200
EET(HHERAKE1,811,000T))
1R 8.25% (2023 4F : 8.25% ) HY
FRRER - M008B T(HERAR
#1,847,000 7T ) (2023 4F : 20025 7T
(HZERA#1,811,0005T)) BA L&Y
FIE 2 16.5% (2023 F : 16.5% ) )
TR o

TS ZEFTISTIIZ 17% (2023 4F -
17%) 55 o AEBWE R RRFE
BEZBAITHBERETEIEFED -
IR — M ERBU AR E 10,000
g (HE R A R #54,0007T )
(2023 4F : 10,0007 11 % 7T (16 & R
AR #53,0007T)) 1B 75% 8 %51
B Z 1% H9190,000 %7 hn 3% o (48 &
A B #1,023,0007T ) (20234 :
190,000 %7 11 % 7T (16 & R A B &
1,004,0005T)) — R IERTIWMA R B
50% (2023 4F : 50% ) 5158 o

RENMBLAR EREEEM

T BOEE M X B25% (2023 F -
25%)  IRBHM AL - HIBEER/EE
RERNELZH A BMOKBERTE
PEARBE L EMERERORE)
(AR BigaR BEREBERHE

ENEH2020FE235E)

ELgearity=itssin

B HEEBEEENEZWRA
B ABI60% A (20234 -
60%) * 20211 3 1H Z=20304
12A8318 » ATEERIZ15% NER
MEBBDERER - Bt - NEEH
ETREBHEZHMNBRARTER
15% (20234 < 15%) °
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The Cayman Islands levies no tax on the income of the Company
and the Group.

For the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated in accordance with the two-tiered
profits tax regime. Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, the
first HK$2 million (equivalent to RMB1,847,000) (2023: HK$2
million (equivalent to RMB1,811,000)) of profits of qualifying
corporations will be taxed at 8.25% (2023 8.25%), and profits
above HK$2 million (equivalent to RMB1,847,000) (2023: HK$2
million (equivalent to RMB1,811,000)) will be taxed at 16.5%
(2023: 16.5%).

Singapore Corporate Income Tax is charged at 17% (2023: 17%).
The subsidiaries of the Group qualify for the Partial Tax Exemption
Scheme (the “Scheme”) in which the Scheme allows for 75%
(2023: 75%) tax exemption on the first SGD 10,000 (equivalent
to RMB54,000) (2023: SGD10,000 (equivalent to RMB53,000)) of
normal chargeable income and a further 50% (2023. 50%) tax
exemption on the next SGD 190,000 (equivalent to RMB1,023,000)
(2023. SGD190,000 (equivalent to RMB1,004,000)) of normal
chargeable income.

The statutory PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate for the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries is 25% (2023: 25%). According to the Announcement
on Continuing the Enterprise Income Tax Policy for Western
Development jointly issued by the Ministry of Finance (“MOF"),
the State Taxation Administration (“STA"), and the National
Development and Reform Commission (“NDRC") (Announcement
No. 23 [2020] of MOF, STA, and NDRC), enterprises located in
the Western Region of the PRC (the "Western Region”) with
over 60% (2023: 60%) of principal revenue generated from
the encouraged business activities are continuously entitled to a
preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2030. Accordingly, certain subsidiaries located in the
Western Region are entitled to an income tax rate of 15% (2023:
15%).
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NEE 7 BRSO E A E R IE The Group's profit before taxation is reconciled to the tax expense
HERMAT - for the year as follows:
BlEB X 2 BIR Reconciliation of tax expense
2024 2023
ARTFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
B A5 A A Profit before taxation 6,059,654 4,779,461
BRRBUEERE25% 2 Income tax at statutory tax rate of 25%
WIB(20234F - 25%) in the PRC (2023: 25%) 1,514,913 1,194,865
JEMREE R AEARIELE  Share of results of an associate and
joint ventures (32,485) (31,738)
TR Non-deductible expenses 125,447 90,042
EHRBUA Tax exempt revenue (1,605) (336)
RNERIEE 1B Unrecognised tax losses 49,934 92,643
REREREER Unrecognised temporary differences (27,094) 9,988
HBRBE W ARFERILIARE  Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses (47,305) (66,077)
RSB B Effect of withholding tax on the distributable
NAEAHSEFE 2 profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
TRERBL (A et 34) (Note 34) 342,963 198,807
WEBAE 2 HkER" Effect of tax incentives on subsidiaries” (207,298) (196,530)
VAR F [E 2 IR Over provision in prior years (130) (24,694)
Hith Others 20,179 (4,176)
REFHRIBERX Tax expense for the year 1,737,519 1,262,794
N MEARZHWEEBENTI M A Effect of tax incentives on subsidiaries includes the tax relief on
% /) A B B B A R 2 B USUR & T PRC subsidiaries in the Western Region, additional deduction for
EEONETH0RR - ERUERS - research and development expenses and other tax relief.
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FoXHERERA

AEBEERAERERBERLES
TEERFERABAAMOE IR
MR A B B E LB R BOR
PREEMGHEBNETCHEEE
REERBBREBEENZ#HE B
RERZSRAMALE ER AR
B RE([FE_SEMERD) -

AEBERBZVEAFHE -E
PRS B E R BEE R - FFEE =
SAEMEROEEEERRIIER
AEBKREERNRTV BRI N
BAMREER(TEFE]) - £
BB MRS T AR E /B R 1 B Bl 3R
ERERNE AFERALAEEE
BRENRMERKEEERY A BB
ZEEBAH  AREEFE =X
EREHRZEVN R EEROES
REE -

HREMAE X HERERGFERR
RHERMERRANENNE - K
SEEZERBERTURIPTL
MORERY REFFAEEBTOEEE
BMZE - ABITAEER -
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Pillar Two model rules

The Group has applied the exception to recognising and disclosing
information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related to
the income taxes arising from tax law enacted or substantively
enacted to implement the Pillar Two model rules published by
the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development,
including tax law that implements qualified domestic minimum
top-up taxes described in those rules (“Pillar Two income taxes”).

Under the legislation, the Group has assessed the potential risks
related to Pillar Two income taxes. The assessment of potential
risks associated with Pillar Two income taxes is based on the most
recent financial statements and the draft country-by-country
reporting (“CbCR") of the Group’s constituent entities. Based
on the assessment of Transitional CbCR Safe Harbour under
the inclusive framework on Base Erosion and Profit Shifting, it is
indicated that all tax jurisdictions in which the Group operates this
year can pass the Transitional CbCR Safe Harbour test. The Group
anticipates no significant risks of Pillar Two income taxes in these
tax jurisdictions.

Due to the complexities in the application of the Pillar Two
legislation and calculation of Global Anti-Base Erosion Proposal
income, the Group has engaged with tax experts to closely
monitor the legislative process and promptly evaluate the impact
of relevant legislation on the Group and ensure compliance
obligations are met.
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(a)

ARABERRAFEZBE

(@) Dividends to owners of the Company attributable to the

year:
2024 2023
AREF AREFr
RMB’000 RMB'000
R 2 REIR S Proposed final dividend of RMB33.14 cents
FREBRARE (2023: RMB27.66 cents) per ordinary share
33149 (2023 % -
AR#27.667) 1,867,215 1,558,731
BHIR 2 75 B R B Proposed special final dividend of RMB33.14
kS GRERBRARE cents (2023: RMB27.66 cents) per
331459 (20234 - ordinary share
ANE#27.66%) 1,867,214 1,558,730
3,734,429 3,117,461

MR2025F3A24HMEE 2
B EFEEAREERNRS
BEEREBRARK33.14
AIRRHABREERETBEBRAR
#3314 o EZE R KA
% B R R EARR B GR A B IStk

AKRFPTEBEMNE

position.

At Board meeting held on 24 March 2025, the Directors
recommended the payment of a special final dividend and
a final dividend of RMB33.14 cents and RMB33.14 cents
per ordinary share respectively. The proposed special final
dividend and final dividend have not been recognised as
dividends payables in the consolidated statement of financial
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(b) MAFERHIE KRR ERA (b) Dividends to owners of the Company attributable to the
BHRFEEFARARREZR previous financial year, approved and paid during the year:
8
2024 2023
AR FT ABWEF T
RMB’000 RMB’000

A R L ROk 25 B Final dividend in respect of the previous
REIF R ERAME  financial year, approved and paid during

TR BR the year, of RMB27.66 cents

AR¥E27.669 (2023: RMB23.36 cents)

(2023 : per ordinary share

AR 23.367) 1,558,549 1,316,186

MAFARAENIKESE  Special final dividend in respect of the

PRI IR A R previous financial year, approved and

NEAR B BT mAR paid during the year, of RMB27.66 cents

ARE27.66%5 (2023: RMB23.36 cents)

(2023 4 : per ordinary share

ARKH#23.36 %) 1,558,548 1,316,185

3,117,097 2,632,371
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AT BE IR EA G F M E 8 s The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are as
Mz&E - follows:
() BRERGF (a) Basic earnings per share

2024 2023

RNARERAAREEM  Profit attributable to ordinary

M (ARETT) equity shareholders (RMB’000) 3,734,429 3,117,461
BEITE BRIk Weighted average number of
TR (T A) ordinary shares ('000) 5,634,395 5,634,288
BREAEF (AR D) Basic earnings per share (RMB cents) 66.28 55.33
(b) BREFER (b) Diluted earnings per share
2024 2023

RN A E BN R E(SEF Profit attributable to ordinary
(ARETT) equity shareholders (RMB’000) 3,734,429 3,117,461

B IEFE(#E)  Weighted average number of

(FAE) ordinary shares (diluted) (‘000)
BT B2 I Weighted average number of
aaliet ordinary shares 5,634,395 5,634,288
RNATERERE 22 Effect of the Company's share
option scheme 329 1,558

BR:TESR#EEEF 2 Weighted average number of ordinary

BRI T shares for the purpose of
calculating diluted earnings per share 5,634,724 5,635,846
BREEEF(ARES)  Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents) 66.28 55.31
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2024 2023
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

NREE At fair value
REH] At beginning of the year 1,825,170 1,832,200
NAEBEZE Change in fair value (46,670) (7,030)
REER At the end of the reporting period 1,778,500 1,825,170

i

REBZIREMEE 81
HAYMEREFEESUREES
T E R AR E ST
BI7TIE R #% 1678 5% & 1686
55 A R A H%iim,z%/ﬁ&ﬁiﬁﬁ
B m B E AN IR R

A -

AEBENEERELNBEEMR

EERRENETHRENE
ME " FHHEBAIEIOF
(20234F: 123F ) IBE
REBEREUFIGRERZ
EEE

REEEHE2HEWANE
STBCRE R A VSRR M
3(m) °

HARNEBERHRRKHERE
MEZREZE  BEAEH
ﬂxEnTI?‘Fﬁ%@ﬁf S)l:g

%\Eﬁéﬁﬂiﬁ s BIRHIEEZ
BN EE 2 A REE
o
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(a

The Group's investment properties, which consist of
commercial properties and car parks together with their
respective land use rights, are situated at No. 1678 and No.
1686 Wuzhong Road, Minhang District, Shanghai, the PRC
and southwest corner of the intersection of Fada Street and
Xincheng West Road, Economic-Technological Development
Area, Tianjin, the PRC.

The Group leases out certain of its investment properties in
Shanghai and Tianjin under operating leases with average
lease terms of 1-10 years (2023: 1-3 years) and with options
to renew upon expiry at new terms.

Accounting policy of the rental income from operating
leases is set out in note 3(m) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual
value at the end of the current leases, the Group typically
enters into new operating leases and therefore will not
immediately realise the reduction in residual value at the end
of these leases. Expectations about the future residual values
are reflected in the fair value of the properties.
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(a)

(b)

(&

AT RBKRREREEEE
HEZARFRBENKZEH
BT o

(a)

(Continued)

Below is a maturity analysis of undiscounted lease payments
to be received from the leasing of investment properties.

2024 2023

AR¥FT ARETFT

M12H831H At 31 December RMB’000 RMB'000
1R Within one year 52,849 32,739
F2F In the second year 44,809 13,900
FIF In the third year 21,687 6,641
FAF In the fourth year 8,213 —
FE5F In the fifth year 8,213 —
FOFLAL In the sixth year and above 37,646 —
173,417 53,280

DABEFEANFERE

TEREEEMENAABE
B AEBNBERDIERBT
EELEABOGEMETH
B - BEEABYEEXSER
WEEMZEDNEE  BYEE
B (B AT LA I A (B AR A /) 2
B A o (AERKREE AL
REBEEEEH(2023F -
Woas EARAMEERBBEE L) o

R s EAROEGES - BA
WK IF 85 A A B
MG HEE 2 E R HEEN
ZINES ARSI RUME
MEMERBERFEMSE - &
RRARMERNE L RTIESE
BN B % i [ M SRV R 8
EREnkasR  BEREM
B BT P A BLAEE R M) X B R A
FEREZHEEREM - NER
HEOABES - HRFHEL
EEDSERBT S LAFZ
ALBREERSEL - £fEE
MERIARBER  MENRS
EEEREREBAAR -

(b)

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

In estimating the fair values of investment properties, it is
the Group's policy to engage an independent professional
qualified valuer to perform the valuation. The management
works closely with the independent professional qualified
valuer to establish the appropriate valuation technique and
inputs to the model. The valuations have been arrived at
using income capitalisation approach and direct comparison
approach (2023: income capitalisation approach and direct
comparison approach).

In income capitalisation approach, the market rentals of all
lettable units of the commercial properties and car parks are
assessed by reference to the rentals achieved in the lettable
units as well as other lettings of similar properties in the
neighbourhood. The capitalisation rate adopted is made
by reference to the yield rates observed by the valuer for
similar properties in the locality and adjusted based on the
valuer’s knowledge of the factors specific to the respective
properties. In direct comparison approach, comparable’s
average unit selling prices are referenced to comparable
sales transactions as available in the relevant market. In
estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties is their current use.
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(b)

118

AABEFENFEREE)

BRI RE M HRR M T 43
MEE  AEBZREMRFEH
ENAREBEFENEEAT
EBEMNEILH  RAFER
REEEBEERHN3IH AR

RI3EL -

BHAREMEMEEGEZ A

(Continued)

year.

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

The fair value measurements for the Group's investment
properties are categorised into level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy as defined in note 43 to the consolidated financial
statements, based on the inputs to valuation techniques
used. There was no transfer into or out of level 3 during the

The following table gives information on significant

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

B AEZRNT unobservable inputs to the valuation of investment
properties:
2024 2024
AABRAEA
HBARBENBE

REMEE HEEMTREZHA Relationship of

Investment Valuation techniques BEXFRAEAHA unobservable inputs to

properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value

R EERRE  WRERMEER

HEAEM BEHIE

BEEG Income capitalisation

Commercial approach and direct

properties and comparison approach

car parks in

Shanghai and EEEA -

Tianjin The key inputs are:

MR H % 0 @ ¥R ZRIESMAERL BAYE FRANEHRNEHREXER
LEESRAMNAGENEER L7 g@<REUBHEN
SOH ARAVEREESHNE AREBETK R2TA-
SRAXELED R RLT% R
4.75% @ EREAD HIK5.00% =
6.00% £23.00% °
Reversionary yield Reversionary yield, taking into account ~ An increase in the reversionary
the capitalisation of the rental derived  yield used would result in a
from the existing tenancies with due  decrease in the fair value of
allowance for reversionary rental the investment properties, and
potential of the commercial properties  vice versa.
and car parks of 4.75% and 4.75%
respectively in Shanghai and 5.00%
to 6.00% and 3.00% in Tianjin
respectively.
B EERERAR
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(b) DABEFEMFERREGE)

REMELE HEETREZEHA
Investment Valuation techniques
properties and key input(s)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

EATAENBEA

Significant unobservable input(s)

FABAEA
HAAEENBR
Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

BHMSHEE

Daily market rent

BAEYE

ZERINMHE B RHREEDE
EMERGZHEANENREZ - 115
mMEkFPE - FERXEHAVES
AmSHe T RKRAHEEETE
FHRDPREARKETO08TEA
RENIBTRARK2TI6TEA
R¥4.857T ¢

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into account
the time, location, and individual
factors such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
commercial properties, ranging from
RMB7.08 to RMB11.33 per square
meter per day on lettable area basis
in Shanghai and from RMB2.76 to
RMB4.85 per square meter per day on
lettable areas basis in Tianjin.

FEYG

ZEIIRMHE B RERYERY
¥RF7ENERNEE AR K
RN EBRREGEEFEELNE
AmsHEDARARK27.42T
RAR®14.007T ©

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into account
of the time, location, and individual
factors, such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
properties of RMB27.42 per unit for car
park spaces in Shanghai and RMB14.00
per unit for car park spaces in Tianjin.

FIRANEEmSEEEERL
o gcREUEHENDR
REBELF RZFA -

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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(b) DABEFEMFEREE)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)
AABA®EA
HBAAEENBE
REMEE HEETREEHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques ~ EARAEB#H A unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
HRTIEMEE BAYZE

Comparable’s average
unit selling price

ZH u BREMERRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

ZRIME  FPARHEEBYME
EMERGZHEMNEMEE - £F
EREBRAYEARTHEME
BIRBIARDIBAARK
42,600 TE AR 56,700 T AR
# 16,000 T2 AR 18,458 7T ©
Commercial properties

Comparable’s average unit selling price,
taking into account the location, size and
other characters between the comparable
and the commercial properties, ranging
from RMB42,600 to RMB56,700 per
square meter in Shanghai and from
RMB16,000 to RMB18,458 per square
meter in Tianjin.

FEY

ZRIME KR EREBYE
EYRAGZENEMFR > L8
ER2EBEFESHERTHEM
EEBN R AARE156,0007T KA
X% 99,000 7T °

Car parks

Comparable’s average unit selling price,
taking into account the location, size and
other characters between the comparable
and the commercial properties of
RMB 156,000 per unit for car park spaces
in Shanghai and RMB99,000 per unit for
car park spaces in Tianjin.

HRTHELEEBEAR L
o gcREUEHEND
REBELF RZFA -

An increase in comparable’s
average unit selling price
would result in an increase in
the fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.
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(b) DABEFEMFERREGE)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)
2023 2023
FABRAEA
HAAEENBR
REMEME HEETREZHA Relationship of
Investment Valuation techniques BEXFRAEAHA unobservable inputs to
properties and key input(s) Significant unobservable input(s)  fair value
R EBERRE WRERMLER
HEAMEM BEHIE
BHEG Income capitalisation
Commercial approach and direct
properties and comparison approach
car parks in o
Shanghai and EEBA
Tianjin The key inputs are:
MR H % B0 @ ¥R = ZRIESWAERL BRAYE FRANEHRNEHREER
LEESREMNAGENEER L+t @<REUBHEN
SOH AAVEREESHNE AREBETK R2TA-
SRAXELED A RLT% R
4.75% @ EREAD HIR5.00% =
6.00% £23.00% °
Reversionary yield Reversionary yield, taking into account  An increase in the reversionary

the capitalisation of the rental derived
from the existing tenancies with due
allowance for reversionary rental
potential of the commercial properties
and car parks of 4.75% and 4.75%
respectively in Shanghai and 5.00%
to 6.00% and 3.00% in Tianjin
respectively.

yield used would result in a
decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties, and
vice versa.
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(b) DABEFEMFEREE)

REMEE HEETREEHA
Investment Valuation techniques
properties and key input(s)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

EXATAENBEA

Significant unobservable input(s)

AABA®EA
HAAEENBR
Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

BHMSHEE

Daily market rent

2 8 2 BREMERRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

BEYE

ZERINMHE B RHREENE
EMERGZHENENREZ - 015
mEkFE - FERXEEAVES
AmSHe T AR HEEETE
FARDBREARETISTEA
RENMNAOTRARKE29ITEA
R¥4.907T -

Commercial properties

Daily market rents, taking into account
the time, location, and individual
factors such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
commercial properties, ranging from
RMB7.15 to RMB11.40 per square
meter per day on lettable area basis
in Shanghai and from RMB2.91 to
RMB4.90 per square meter per day on
lettable areas basis in Tianjin.

FESG

ZRIEME B RERYEEY
¥RF7HENERNEE AR K
R EBRREGEEFEELNE
AmEHEDAMRARK 2758
RAR®15337

Car parks

Daily market rents, taking into account
of the time, location, and individual
factors, such as frontage and size,
between the comparable and the
properties of RMB27.58 per unit for car
park spaces in Shanghai and RMB15.33
per unit for car park spaces in Tianjin.

FIRANEEmEEEER L
ogcREUEHENDR
REBELFT RZFA -

An increase in the daily market
rent used would result in an
increase in the fair value of the
investment properties, and vice
versa.
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(b) DABEFEMFERREGE)

REMELE HEETREZEHA
Investment Valuation techniques
properties and key input(s)

(b) Fair value measurements and valuation processes

(Continued)

EATAENBEA

Significant unobservable input(s)

FABAEA
HAAEENBR
Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

HRIYEMEE

Comparable’s average
unit selling price

BAEYE

ZRIME  FPARHREBME
EMERGZHEMNEMEE - £F
EREBRAMEARFHEME
BIRBIARDIBAARK
43,150 TE AR 57,290 TR AR
#16,430 T2 AR 18,587 7T ©
Commercial properties

Comparable’s average unit selling price,
taking into account the location, size and
other characters between the comparable
and the commercial properties, ranging
from RMB43,150 to RMB57,290 per
square meter in Shanghai and from
RMB16,430 to RMB18,587 per square
meter in Tianjin.

FEY

ZRIME - KR EREBYME
BYRAGZENEMER . L8
ER2BEFESHERTHEM
EB/HARARE 156,730 TR A
100,000 7T ©

Car parks

Comparable’s average unit selling price,
taking into account the location, size
and other characters between the
comparable and the commercial
properties of RMB156,730 per unit
for car park spaces in Shanghai and
RMB100,000 per unit for car park
spaces in Tianjin.

HRTHELEEBEA L
o egcREUEHEND
REBELF RZFA -

An increase in comparable’s
average unit selling price
would result in an increase in
the fair value of the investment
properties, and vice versa.
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184

ERNRE
XA BERRE  Electrical
EELH Machinery  appliances RERE HRIE
Freehold B¥ and and Miscellaneous Construction @t
land Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
ABEFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFx
RIMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RIMB 000 RIMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
(Hita) (Hiih)
(Note a) (Note b)
FEENR-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
2023F12831H year ended 31 December 2023
LEE
REY] At beginning of the year 118,357 7029072 10,968,781 33977 2,697,221 412,009 21,259,417
ME Additions — 61,524 348,111 15,248 1,344,249 1,834,048 3,603,780
ERRER Transfer upon completion - 208,311 846,847 12,644 508,097 (1,575,899 -
e Disposals - B1159 (159743 B276)  (51.49) — (567
HE-HERBRAT  Disposals - disposal of subsiciaries - (48,032) (1327) (114) (23) - (49,716)
i Depreciation - (507,046)  (1,700,633) (12,526) (891,095) - (3,111,300)
EREE Exchange differences 1876 (1,606) 479 (1) 3 (2,456) (1,705)
REER At end of the reporting period 120,233 6,711,064 10,302,515 45,952 3,606,736 668302 21,454,802
FEEHE-8Z Reconciliation of carrying amount -
2024512831H year ended 31 December 2024
LEE
REA] At beginning of the year 120,233 6,711,064 10,302,515 45,952 3,606,736 668,302 21,454,802
AE Additions — 49,453 328,184 12,446 860,132 2,304,275 3,554,490
ERGEg Transfer upon completion - 299558 1,052,855 21,918 504777 (1,879,108) -
e Disposals (26,920) (57,797) (110,050) (2,644) (66,572) - (263,983)
tHE ~HE—RIBRF Disposal - disposal of a subsidiary
(Hiz40) (Note 40) - - - - (38,643) - (38,643)
i Depreciation - (510,469  (1,607,884) (15,653)  (1,044,304) - (3178310)
EREE Exchange differences (4,182) (2,340) - 7 2 — (6,513)
REER At end of the reporting period 89,131 6,489,469 9,965,620 62,026 3,822,128 1,093,469 21,521,843

BREMERRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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EE
XA BERRE  Electrical
EELH Machinery  appliances RERE HRIE
Freehold B and and Miscellaneous Construction it
land Buildings  equipment  equipment  equipment in progress Total
ARBTL  ARETR  ARETR ARETL ARETT  AREFT  AREFR
RIMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RIMB000 RMB000 RMB000
(Hita) (Hiih)
(Note &) (Note b)
R20240F1818  At1January 2024
A Cost 120233 12,387,559 33,156,912 168,160 7,919,951 668302 54421117
ZEMERMGEEE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses — (5676495  (22,854397) (122,208)  (4313,215) — (32,966,315
BEFHE Net carrying amount 120,233 6,711,064 10,302,515 45,952 3,606,736 668,302 21,454,802
R2024E12 8318 At31 December 2024
A Cost 89,131 12574435 33,808,753 176,093 8,655,856 1,093,469 56,397,737
ZHTERMFESE  Acumulated depreciation and
impairment losses —  (6,084,966) (23,843,133) (114,067)  (4,833,729) —  (34,875,894)
BHFE Net carrying amount 89,131 6489469 9,965,620 62026 3822128 1093469 21521843
Yok 3 Notes:
(@) EHRROMLAEBLAING KA FEHE (@)  The land represents the freehold land located outside Hong Kong.

T o

REER  AEEETHRENEE
HEEFANETCRBZEER T
T FRE R R ES - BREFE
1858 B AR 126,434,000 7T(2023
F: ARK320860007T) EE
RE - NEBEXEEBURERE
LR R o

(b)

At the end of the reporting period, the building ownership
certificates of the Group’s certain buildings with aggregate net
carrying amount of RMB126,434,000 (2023: RMB32,086,000) have
not been obtained due to application for the changes of granted
land use purpose is still in process. In the opinion of the Directors,
the Group validly occupies and uses these buildings.
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EREEE Right-of-use assets
BRURF
HELHZ
T fEAIE
Land use HEER
right in Hiti% 5
respect of Machinery
leasehold BF and other Ek ]
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total
ARETFRT AREFT AREFT ARETRT
RMB’000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB’000
REEHE- Reconciliation of carrying
EHE2023F amount - year ended
12831 BIEE 31 December 2023
REY] At beginning of the year 3,289,632 317,312 18,770 3,625,714
NE Additions 83,925 237,745 13,492 335,162
BEET Lease modification — (3,791) 5,625 1,834
HE Disposals (287) — — (287)
HeE—HEMBAR  Disposals - disposal of subsidiaries (77,689) — — (77,689)
e Depreciation (98,082) (221,732) (10,683) (330,497)
REEE A At the end of
the reporting period 3,197,499 329,534 27,204 3,554,237
AREEYER- Reconciliation of carrying
HE2024%F amount - year ended
12A31BLLEE 31 December 2024
REA At beginning of the year 3,197,499 329,534 27,204 3,554,237
NE Additions 71,545 140,937 7,987 220,469
MEEET Lease modification — (704) 5,811 5,107
HE Disposals (9,554) — — (9,554)
HE—-HE—MEWME  Disposal - disposal of a subsidiary
NE(HiE40) (Note 40) — (3,049) — (3,049)
e Depreciation (99,723) (199,527) (17,407) (316,657)
REEH At the end of
the reporting period 3,159,767 267,191 23,595 3,450,553
M2024%1 418 At 1 January 2024
[BEN Cost 4,288,087 676,446 41,916 5,006,449
ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation (1,090,588) (346,912) (14,712)  (1,452,212)
REFE Net carrying amount 3,197,499 329,534 27,204 3,554,237

28 E BREMERRERAR
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EREEE(E)

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

BEARF
HELH
T fE AR
Land use R
right in Hk s
respect of Machinery
leasehold BEF and other HEE
land in PRC Properties  equipment Total

ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

720245128318 At 31 December 2024

BN Cost 4,161,836 568,832 47,711 4,778,379
ZEHITE Accumulated depreciation (1,002,069) (301,641) (24,116)  (1,327,826)
REFEE Net carrying amount 3,159,767 267,191 23,595 3,450,553

REBARELEMBEETYE -
RN EMRE HPNTF 152
30 (20234 : 14F230%F) »

PRI E

BRI mREN - REPHE - &
FEELTEAL A BRIEAEEE
ERBHAKEER MAKENEF
HEREGHHRBEE -

WMEHEMS - AKEEKBH
%%1%%&;:&%#& ¥R HEE E
m B A B R AR GRS

TEESAR

AEHAENRREREHESTE
MHE G L AA féF/\F%?ﬁﬁﬁ
EAMMERENR -

ERRKILEER

AEENBOHEFIHEARES
R IERFRE - ié?ﬂ?&i%ﬁ
EAREERBEIGITE Uik
FrgE LR o

The Group leases various properties, machinery and other
equipment for its daily operations. Lease terms range from 1 year
to 30 years (2023: 1 year to 30 years).

Restrictions or covenants

Except for the land use right in respect of the leasehold land in the
PRC, most of the leases impose a restriction that, unless approval
is obtained from the lessor, the right-of-use asset can only be used
by the Group and the Group is prohibited from selling or pledging
the underlying assets.

For leases of properties, the Group is required to keep those
properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in
their original condition at the end of the lease.

Variable lease payments

Variable lease payments represent leases which contain variable
payment terms that are linked to the actual usage with no
minimum payments.

Extension and termination options

Some of the lease contracts of buildings contain an extension and
termination option, respectively. The extension and termination
option of the leases of office premises is not normally exercised in
order to keep the flexibility of operations.

2024 ANNUAL REPORT ##k 2 B]
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HEESE Lease liabilities
2024 2023
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

HEEE Lease liabilities

ENER Current portion 152,935 146,268
JEmEN IS Non-current portion 111,003 180,424
263,938 326,692

REEREECHERIATHA

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:

2024 2023
AR¥ETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
MERK - Lease payments:
REEE Short-term leases 162,767 166,950
KEEBEE Low-value assets 3,493 4,212
P8R 2 F 2 Expenses recognised in profit or loss 166,260 171,162
WIEAR TS FIR 2 A] &  Variable lease payments that do
MENRERAEAAN) not depend on an index or
MEE a rate (as lessee) under leases 35,721 50,083
RIERRERER BT Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 201,981 221,245
mEEEL RS RHARE Total cash outflow for leases 418,476 452,687

HEAE

72024128318 AE£EB &
ErRARAB s BEREERRAE
¥CHESH - mAZMAMEKR
MREEEER 2 EEREN R A
A R #11,933,0007C0(2023 F = A
F#34,911,0007T) °

MN2024412 A310  AEEF D &
¥ A R 49,630,000 7T(2023 4 -
AFCH#38407,0007T) 7 FHEIFE o

28 H BREMEERERAE
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Commitments under leases

At 31 December 2024, the Group was committed to lease
contracts in relation to properties, machinery and other equipment
that have not yet commenced. The related lease payments that
were not paid and not reflected in the measurement of lease
liabilities were RMB11,933,000 (2023: RMB34,911,000).

At 31 December 2024, the Group was committed to
RMB49,630,000 (2023: RMB38,407,000) for short-term leases.
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KE R ATE
Bk Water
Concession resource %E“f
right licenses Total
ARETFT ARETFT AR¥FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
BRAEHER Recondiliation of carrying
—EHZE2023%F amount — Year ended
NA3NBIFEE 31 December 2023
NG At beginning of the year 148,556 13,924 162,480
iides Amortisation (5,260) (1,580) (6,840)
REEAR At end of the reporting period 143,296 12,344 155,640
REEYHE Reconciliation of carrying
—-HZE20245 amount - Year ended
12A31HLEE 31 December 2024
REA At beginning of the year 143,296 12,344 155,640
B Amortisation (5,259) (1,581) (6,840)
NEER At end of the reporting period 138,037 10,763 148,800
M2024F1H1H At 1 January 2024
DN Cost 205,096 17,086 222,182
ZaHE Accumulated amortisation (61,800) (4,742) (66,542)
143,296 12,344 155,640
7202412 831H At 31 December 2024
R AR Cost 205,096 17,086 222,182
REHEEE Accumulated amortisation (67,059) (6,323) (73,382)
138,037 10,763 148,800
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SRR A RN 201263 AXK
BHEMES ZHHEERE - et
REERTAEENRE K-
B DHMHER FWMEKMK
ERERBER  URERPEX
PE B0 45 E B AR 1 YR AR AR - L P AR
REEHMIRZH9FH BER
VAT IR

KERTUIFBZETFEIRDNA
A E R E m e TR R K iR -
ZHEFE10EN5F(2023F - 107
154F ) NAE &R R85 -

BREERBRAEAGFELE L
BREDRFETRERR -

Concession right represents the concession right acquired as a
result of a business combination taken place in March 2012.
The concession right granted to the Group for manufacturing,
bottling, packaging, distributing and selling PepsiCo’s carbonated
soft drink and Gatorade branded products on a royalty fee basis
under a specific trademark in the Mainland China is amortised on
the straight-line basis over the contract period of approximately
39 years.

Water resource licenses represent rights to extract mineral water
for the production of beverage products in the PRC, which are
amortised on a straight-line basis over 10 to 15 years (2023: 10 to
15 years).

Intangible assets are measured using cost model and are tested
for impairment when an indicator of impairment appears.

2024 2023
AR¥ T ABREFIT
RMB’000 RMB’000
PR 7R & AR (A Cost and carrying amount
R2023F12A318B K At 31 December 2023 and
2024F 12 A31H 31 December 2024 97,910 97,910

BEEANREAR REEBMNHH
REERLERTEERAER K
K ERMEEEEEOER S
BRI - EENETERE
BoRER RAEMTTEAH
MENEENERFRE BB
BB A EMEH o

2 9 U BREMERRERAR

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Goodwill arose because the consideration paid for the acquisition
effectively included amount in relation to the benefits originated
from revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of the acquired business. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill because they do not
meet the recognition criteria for identifiable intangible assets.
None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible for
income tax purposes.
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BEREERBEBUHEEIEER
SEReELFEETRERR

The carrying amount of goodwill was allocated to the Group’s
CGU identified according to the nature of business as follows for
impairment test:

2024 2023

ARETT AEBT T

RMB’000 RMB’000

K h Beverages 97,910 97,910

HEREKEENTE((RRES
EEEMDIER 2017 FWERMNE
SR LR ERAR(THINE S
L8 1)25% MR B E A o RR20244F
12A318  KAEEZEMMEET
HNBERETER  FHERRE
EEBAHAKESE - sFERIR
BEEHENAFHYBEENSR
SRETEN - BBSFNRERED
KA 2% (2023 4F - 2% )R ERIZ R
EEHE R EEEERERZENE
BMTERRTER - WA EIBAEEE
TEMNFRAERE -

KR eELEMREEMREE
oo e EEAERRE(ERE
BE) - FIEERERE -

ARFTEFEREENEEREME
AR

Goodwill arising from the beverages business (the “Beverages
CGU") represented the acquisition of 25% equity interests in
Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Ltd. (“HZPS"”) in 2017.
At 31 December 2024, the Group assessed the recoverable
amount of the Beverages CGU with reference to the cash flow
projection of HZPS. The calculation uses cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by the Directors covering a
5-year period. Cash flows beyond the 5-year period have been
extrapolated using a 2% (2023: 2%) long-term growth rate. This
growth rate is based on the relevant industry growth forecasts
and does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry.

The recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU based on the value
in use calculation exceeded its carrying amount including the
goodwill. Accordingly, goodwill was not impaired.

Key assumptions and inputs used for the value in use calculation
are as follows:

2024 2023
ERME Gross profit margin 38% 35%
TR = Average growth rate 5% 7%
R RX Long-term growth rate 2% 2%
IR % Discount rate 9% 9%

EEERBEARBENEE TS E
RNBHETREENE - FAER
BT IR R R AT - I S R R R A 3R
TELEUABNSERR

B b R 3R A BB U
B&E2HRIN ARAEREL
TAEAEARBTERETRE
BB ED -

Management determined the budgeted gross profit margin based
on past performance and its expectation of market development.
The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating
to the Beverages CGU.

Apart from the considerations described above in determining
the recoverable amount of the Beverages CGU, the Company's
management is not aware of any other probable changes that
would necessitate changes in the key assumptions.
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MR2024 12 A3MBEZEME A T
BRI A SRR M 46 o

BEEAMBRRRAFERALE
BRFKAEES -

EERERDHRRER ZHELRMN
MBER

TRINRASEE-RBEERDH
BREREEOME A F - BRAE R R
ERAR QAR ER R ) RE
MEARMNER - HMBERME
REANBE R RIFEEHEA 228

Details of principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2024 are shown in
note 46 to the consolidated financial statements.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding
during the year or at the end of the reporting period.

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
material non-controlling interest (“NCI")

The following table shows the information relating to KSF
Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. (“KSF Beverage”) and its subsidiaries,
the only subsidiary of the Group which has material NCI. The
summarised financial information represents amounts before
inter-company eliminations.

131

A2024 F A 2023 F

12H831H 12 A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

DEESIR 2 AL Proportion of NCI's ownership interests 22.09% 22.09%
LHEEME ZIEERLH]  Proportion of NCI's voting rights 27% 27%
HA2024 F A20234F

12H831H 12 A31H

At At

31 December 31 December

2024 2023

AR¥FT ARBTF T

RMB’000 RMB’000

mBEE Current assets 11,617,756 13,916,871
IERBEE Non-current assets 20,954,154 19,123,132
mEAE Current liabilities (16,892,552) (17,239,602)
EmBEE Non-current liabilities (1,140,426) (1,746,935)
FHEE Net assets 14,538,932 14,053,466
LER R R AR TEE Carrying amount of NC| 3,304,534 3,245,766

BREMEERERAE
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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SEANEADHBERERS ZHBE DTN
MBER(E)

Financial information of subsidiaries with individually
material NCI (Continued)

BZE2024%F HZE 20234

12H31H 12A31H
IEFE LEFE
Year ended Year ended

31 December 31 December

2024 2023
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
Wz Revenue 51,620,993 50,938,640
REZ G Profit for the year 2,506,434 1,659,317
HEiap 2wl Other comprehensive income 3,955 4,073
FHER AR Total comprehensive income 2,510,389 1,663,390
D BRSSP A Y ) Profit attributable to NCI 587,706 399,206
DHIRRE R (L Total comprehensive income
EEI G attributable to NCI 588,579 400,106
BV ER R R E Dividends paid to NCI (399,914) (517,021)
Fris(A)REREF58 Net cash flows from (used in):
RS Operating activities 5,419,204 4,525,070
REEY Investing activities (2,310,497) (3,101,238)
mEEE) Financing activities (3,060,228) (4,011,562)

REBATFEHERRE 2 BERES
]

202445 520 H 202499 H26 A -
FRENE R m(—KPEZERAF) K
— MM B 2 |l LA A R 5 365,000,000
THRRE EMEBIE=F9
AL R B S LR BRA A
(MEREEDREEHH(EE)BR
Aal(FEE B ZE1)35% K&30% 1 X
- REENFRSBELEE - LR
SEYAEETILRAEENERR
7 11£50.64% 1% 1 £77.91% * £ 8
EBENEBRRENSL54%ENE
77.91%

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change in control

On 20 May 2024 and 26 September 2024, a subsidiary of KSF
Beverage, an intermediate holding company, acquired additional
35% and 30% equity interest in subsidiaries, Beijing Pepsi-Cola
Beverage Co., Ltd. (“BJBL") and Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang)
Company Limited (“NCBL") respectively, from two independent
third parties at aggregate consideration of RMB365,000,000
which were fully settled during the year. Those transactions
resulted in an increase in the Group's effective equity interests
in BJBL from 50.64% to 77.91% and NCBL from 54.54% to
77.91% respectively.
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R B AR R4S T Y EEES Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
B (E) change in control (Continued)
REERE - IR B F27.27%H) On the acquisition date, the total carrying amounts of the 27.27%
ERRENENEE A £23.37%H effective equity interest in BJBL and 23.37% effective equity
ERRENERELEBEN A ARIE interest in NCBL amounted to approximately RMB130,000,000.
130,000,000 7T ° At - DB R i As a result, the NCI was decreased by approximately
=4 AR ¥ 130,000,000 0 RMB130,000,000, and the difference of approximately
Il EERROMNERERARE RMB235,000,000 between the amounts by which the carrying
2 E# ARB 235,000,000 TR =58 amount of NCI have decreased and the aggregate consideration
SFAGREM R R PR EES paid was recorded in “Transactions with non-controlling interest
BB DER SRR SN - reserve” within equity in the consolidated statement of financial
position.
2024 2023
AR TFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JEETMRS - RERAE Unlisted shares, at cost 70,678 70,678
JEIEW R A Share of post-acquisition results 170,198 146,642
B U B & B B AR A Dividend received since acquisition (139,499) (121,942)
101,377 95,378
REE B E R R) 2 RS Details of the associate at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:
TEEES
i B
Principal XE@EEEZ
place of EREAEERLY
operation/ HMBKRA  Proportion of effective
HEARER place of Registered  ownership interest held ~ FE£%
Name of associate incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2024 2023
MRAEUEANERAF HhE US$16,000,000  38.96% 3896%  BEREEHRM
Nanjing Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale of
beverages
VA B & R B TR B 2R D BR T 4R The above associate is accounted for using the equity method in
BUEmERT - the consolidated financial statements.

294 BREMERRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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ERFEABE DT 2HBER

TRIVRASEIZERARIZIF
BEABERRMNEAEREAERAS
BE(ERAE -

Financial information of individually immaterial associate

The table below shows the carrying amount and the Group's
share of results of an associate that is not material and accounted
for using the equity method.

R2024%F 2023 4F
12A31H 12A31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEFEEE Carrying amount of interest 101,377 95,378
BZE BHE
2024 F 20234
12A31H 12H31H
LEE ILEFE
Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
AREFTT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
NEEpEL Group's share of:
RE 5 A Profit for the year 23,556 19,802
HA 2 H W E Other comprehensive income — —
PHWHEE Total comprehensive income 23,556 19,802
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13b

2024 2023

AR¥FoT AREFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

JEETRS - REANE Unlisted shares, at cost 341,923 341,923
R BE 1R LS Share of post-acquisition results 1,341,865 1,235,480
SRRl Dividend received since acquisition (1,106,785) (1,048,080)
577,003 529,323

REEREERRZAMFIIMT

Details of the joint ventures at the end of the reporting period are
as follows:

IgEE/
it i 2 rEERAZ
Principal place ERBREERLA
of operation/ HMRA  Proportion of effective
RENTBH Place of Registered ~ownership interest held FE##
Name of joint ventures incorporation capital by the Group Principal activities
2024 2023
LBAEIERHERAR hE US$28,120,000 = 3896% = 3896%  HERHEHR
Shanghai Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
ERAEILRHERAR(EEAE)) e RMB150,000000 = 6233% = 62.33% RERHEEHR
Jinan Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. ("JNPS”) PRC Manufacture and sale
of beverages
TREAEERRAT e RMB400,000 = 25% 25% Rt BERREES
Beijing Zhengben Advertising Ltd. PRC Design, production and

agency of advertising

N EMBRERANZERIAYER
B PIBHRERT »

EANABRBR

AEEFABEEREEEASE
80% BAREZIFEEHEMBE L
AMFBAEEM B £6233% 2 EBK
HEEREZ - AW BIBZIERE
BEWNBARBEEMEEER 2HH
ERWZE YR ERREEATE
WEREEESENESESRE
B 80% MIEZEER R - RIBEA D
R AEBEEREENSEESR
WA EmA4ZES B REE
MEEZEEESEBN ISR
MEBARSNAEZIEZERE
M AR FIEA IR E HEE —BUR
- ABAEERABERERE S
W4 A PR B R R E b4 o

BREMERRERAR

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

All of the above joint ventures are accounted for using the equity
method in the consolidated financial statements.

Significant judgements and assumptions

The Group has 62.33% effective ownership interest in JNPS
through a non-wholly owned subsidiary, which holds 80% direct
equity interests in JNPS. However, based on the contractual
agreement between the non-wholly owned subsidiary and other
investor of JNPS, the relevant activities which significantly affect
the JNPS's return require over 80% votes of the board of directors
of JNPS. By virtue of the Group's contractual right to appoint 4
out of 5 directors to the board of directors of JNPS, the Group
has determined that it has no control but joint control over JNPS
as the strategic financial and operating decisions relating to the
economic activities of JNPS require the unanimous consent of the
non-wholly owned subsidiary and the other investor.
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31 December

BAREEASE AT ZHEEH Financial information of individually immaterial joint
ventures
TRIRANEFIR#E S X2 ERIE The table below shows, in aggregate, the carrying amount and the
EAEEATHNATERELRANE Group's share of results of joint ventures that are not individually
B E(GELS o material and accounted for using the equity method.
#2024 F R 20234
12831H 12H31H
At At
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
AR¥ T AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EmARAE(E Carrying amount of interests 577,003 529,323
BZE2024% BHZE2023F
12H31H 12A31H
LEE IEEFE
Year ended Year ended

31 December

2024 2023
ARET T AR T
RMB’000 RMB’000
REE A Group's share of:
RFZ i F Profit for the year 106,385 107,152
Hip 2 m RS Other comprehensive income — —
FHEWEBEE Total comprehensive income 106,385 107,152
EERA AEERAEENEARN In the opinion of the Directors, no joint ventures are individually
BERNT e material to the Group.
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2024 2023
it ARETT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BFVPLEEWEBMEE Financial assets at FVPL
—REES — Investment funds (a)(d) 408,205 275,113
— ETRAREH — Equity security, listed (e) 880 —
— TR — Structured deposits (o)) 328,161 50,000
—JEFHIRITEME R — Bank financial products, unlisted (o)(d) — 665,210
737,246 990,323
EE FvOCl Designated FVOCI
— I ETRAES — Equity securities, unlisted (b)(d) 154,560 154,907
891,806 1,145,230
2024 2023
ARETT ABEEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BRFVPLEEHNESMEE Financial assets at FVPL
mENE D Current portion 329,041 665,210
JEmErE Non-current portion 408,205 325,113
737,246 990,323
EEFVOCI Designated FVOCI
FEmENE o Non-current portion 154,560 154,907
891,806 1,145,230

() WEESANRETESZERE T
R BRI BBAINFREE
BRCEIBNBEREERR - K
ERERAEEREES W RAE
ERMEREN - REER  RE
ESWANBEOBERARELEY
EFEE R ARE -

29 H BREMEERERAE
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

The investment funds represent investments in certain funds which
were set up as a limited partnership or companies with liability
limited by shares in Hong Kong or outside Hong Kong, aiming at
allocating idle funds reasonably and increasing return on asset.
The fair value of the investment funds was valued by the respective
investment managers or trust administrators at the end of the
reporting period.
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(b)

RESER EETMRAKRENA
AEBEEREEREEENETE
BAFFH 2AEBEEHAR
#347,000C(2023F « A K ¥
3,611,000oT) 2 B A S ERKE
(“RAT$E[E)) Bk o

EEETERRIELMRITEMER
EHPEZREFEIRITEITHORE
Eme REER - JELMIRITEM
EmREBETEROAAEERE
PR B IBRT

S RAR A EEGEETERS
KA RS BB MEN
43

EABRAESFNAABEREBEES
BUINEMESRR I AMBTISE
NERETE °

TREEIATINEEINE

Note:

The fair values of the unlisted equity investments were valued by
the respective investment managers or trust administrators at the
end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value of RMB347,000
(2023: RMB3,611,000) were charged to investment revaluation
reserve (non-recycling).

The structured deposits and unlisted bank financial products
represent investments issued by various licensed banks in the PRC.
The fair value of the unlisted bank financial products and structured
deposits were valued by the respective investment managers at the
end of the reporting period.

The valuation technique and significant inputs used in the
measurement of the fair values of these investments are set out in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

The fair value of the listed equity security is determined based on a
quoted market bid price in a relevant stock exchange outside Hong
Kong.

The financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

2024 2023
AR¥TFT AEEFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

ETT Us$ 495,844 362,408
AR RMB 395,962 782,822
891,806 1,145,230

2024 2023

ARHTFTT ABREFr

RMB’000 RMB’000

R4k Raw materials 1,428,145 1,580,441
£ 8 m Work in progress 99,207 90,826
ZURY SR Finished goods 2,487,866 2,714,001
4,015,218 4,385,268
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2024 2023
AR¥FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
JE U BR X Trade receivables
—%=h — From third parties 1,493,678 1,480,289
—AREZEBEREEH - From companies controlled by
paArVNG] a substantial shareholder
of the Company 27,897 29,432
—ARNFREEN — From companies controlled by
KEK B KRBT the family members and relatives
SO VNG of the Company'’s directors 1,186 1,791
/N — From an associate 2,886 1,747
—&% R — From joint ventures 70,809 66,724
1,596,456 1,579,983
KEBZHEERT D ALEREE The majority of the Group's sales are cash-before-delivery and the
HERPEMNKBREENGESTH corresponding advance payment from customers is disclosed in
WEMFT3I9- B THHEEZEER note 39 to the consolidated financial statements. The remaining
* & AB30F90K(2023 - 30 90 balances of sales are mainly at credit term ranging from 30 to 90
K)o days (2023: 30 to 90 days).
EREEWKEDT(NBEBEE) NG The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of loss allowance),
EHRBEZEHMEH KRBT based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting period is as
TREATT follows:
2024 2023
AEB¥FT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
0-90k 0 - 90 days 1,501,726 1,490,555
90 R E Over 90 days 94,730 89,428
1,596,456 1,579,983
ERAAERRKEREERRNE Information about the Group's exposure to credit risks of trade
BE R A SRR E42 - receivables is included in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.
JEWER R EZBIAARKETIE - The trade receivables are mainly denominated in RMB.

3 u u BREMEERERAE
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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2024 2023
Htaz AR¥FT ARBFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000

TR ER Prepayments to suppliers for
purchase of goods 113,458 115,024

TEfT s AR X Prepayments for purchase of
machinery and equipment — 26,449
TEfTIGER Prepaid value-added taxes 165,034 156,012
TEfT & @R Prepaid operating expenses 1,376,080 1,592,895
FEUW & R Loan receivables 25(a) 80,000 80,000
USRI 2, Interest receivables 25(b) 358,089 548,178
itk Deposits 108,004 132,934

HE—HRBARR Consideration receivables on disposal of

—M&EARIEWNE  asubsidiary and a joint venture 40 —* 169,787
Hfh Others 110,403 216,093
2,311,068 3,037,372

* 2L RARE 1,000 T

25(a) B E R

EWER TR ARQR) z — K
BATIERTHRMEHEERS
HEELBERGB ZRIE - bE
EWERAEERR AR+ =
BAREERME R370%
(20234 :3.70%) »

EERHNEEREREER
BT —EARZEWE - 1tF
EREEERZANEBERE
BRARREEARTN -

25(b) FE KR 2

FEU A Bk B REIEHIFR
REEFR - W IRITIFR
K SRITHEER ©

* Represent amount less than RMB 1,000

25(a) Loan receivables

Loan receivables represent the advances made by a
subsidiary of the Company to raw materials supplier of the
Group for financing its operations. The loan receivables are
unsecured, repayable within 12 months from the end of the
reporting period and bear interest of 3.70% (2023: 3.70%)
per annum.

The Directors expected the amounts will be realised in the
next twelve months after the end of the reporting period.
The fair value of the amounts as at the end of the reporting
period approximates their corresponding carrying amounts.

25(b) Interest receivables

Interest receivables arose from the long-term time deposits,
short-term time deposits, pledged bank deposits and cash at
bank.
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2024 2023

AR¥Fr AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

RAIE HATE 3% Long-term time deposits 8,458,400 7,951,900
RITEBR M F LIRS Bank balances and cash on hand 7,499,398 6,754,466
FEHATE BATE K Short-term time deposits 20,000 —
RITEEBR NI Bank balances and cash 7,519,398 6,754,466
ERRITER Pledged bank deposits 24,870 32,015
RTERNREBE®AS Total cash at bank and on hand 16,002,668 14,738,381

RHIE BT RER A2E3F(2023
F223F) WKEREBTHT
R EBRDMFE - FEER/1.45%
£355% 2 (20239 1 2.48% =
4.18% 2 f4]) °

REATHTERERAIFRN2023
F ) WKER E R E B F KR
EHRIMAME - FEERR2IO%E
3.30% 28 (20234 : ##) o

EREBITEFRS TEM - (ERREH
AEE-—RBTREZIRE(BREHE
TTIRITALER)MRITREZER

[}
on °

3 nz BREMERRERAR

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

The long-term time deposits are made for periods of two to three
years (2023: two to three years) and earn interest at the respective
time deposits interest rate ranging from 1.45% to 3.55% (2023:
2.48% to 4.18%) per annum.

The short-term time deposits are made for periods within 1 year
(2023. nil) and earn interest at the respective time deposits interest
rate ranging from 2.70% to 3.30% (2023 nil) per annum.

The pledged bank deposits are secured for general banking and
trade finance facilities, including the issuance of bank acceptance
bills, granted to the Group by banks.
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BERERERERBEOME » |7

FREREBBESEEY 2 EHRN

A reconciliation of cash at bank and on hand to cash and cash

equivalents for the purpose of consolidated statement of cash

N flows is as follow:
2024 2023
ARETFTT AR For
RMB’000 RMB’000
RITFREES Cash at bank and on hand 16,002,668 14,738,381

B REEIEBB =B Less: Long-term and short-term time deposits

=8 ) 2 B E BT R

with original maturity over three months

(8,478,400) (7,951,900)

RehBReFED

Cash and cash equivalents

7,524,268 6,786,481

RITERALREEFTATINEET

Total cash at bank and on hand are denominated in the following

B : currencies:
2024 2023
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR RMB 15,543,587 14,396,572
ETT Us$ 261,243 277,625
BT EUR 46,270 367
et NTD 72,534 23,150
B A HKDA 51,678 32,129
Efb Others 27,356 8,538
16,002,668 14,738,381

A FTPIRRE BB T EED - AT AAEE

Bl -

BRAAE B2 IME R & EERER

ERGAMBIRM 42550 -

The comparative figure presented was restated to conform to the current

year's presentation.

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and credit risk

discussion are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial

statements.
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2024 2023
RER BER
Equivalent to Equivalent to

BYEE FET  AREFT BOEE Er  AEEFT
No. of shares Uss00 RMB000 | No. of shares Us§ 000 RMB000

BT Authorised:

BE0.005% Tz E@E  Ordinary shares of US§0.005 each 7,000,000,000 35,000 7,000,000,000 35,000

BEIRSR Issued and fully paid:

REA At the beginning of the year 5,634,356,360 28,172 196,681 | 5,634,164,360 28171 235,741
REBRHEEB(7250 Shares issued under share option scheme 80,000 1 3 192,000 1 7
MEREE Ve Effect on the change of functional currency - - - - - (39,067)
REER At the end of the reporting period 5,634,436,360 281713 196,684 | 5,634,356,360 28,172 196,681

AN R - 80,000 15 B8 A% B IE 7T (3
LATREE AN R 5] 80,000 A% L@ A% - 42
REAARE563,0007T  HAAR
# 3,000 TTAF AR BEITRAS - Mk
AE® 560,000 Tt ARG BB ©
BN+ AR 185,000 7T BB ARHERE
EEBEEROEER ZERER
ETHERBERNEZERSER

3 04 BREMEERERAE
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

During the year, 80,000 options were exercised to subscribe for
80,000 ordinary shares of the Company at a consideration of
RMB563,000, of which RMB3,000 was credited to issued capital
and the balance of RMB560,000 was credited to the share
premium account. In addition, RMB185,000 has been transferred
from the share-based payment reserve to the share premium
account. These shares rank pari passu with all existing shares in all
respects.
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2024 2023

AR¥FT ARBFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

NG At beginning of the year 787,091 825,364
RIEEE NIRRT 213577 2 A% 1D Shares issued under share option scheme 745 2,026
MEEEE s & Effect on the change of functional currency — (40,299)
REEHR At the end of the reporting period 787,836 787,091

REFASFHESARIGD - B27AE
BRTEMNE - THRaABRSHEM
FERETT - EBTRDEAFH RS
EELERERMDGER -

BhaBERERERERNSHS
NANEZHRTE

ERAARERAEZERT &
AR 2R EETRDEFRE
AR RIR S E&E DA N HE
£ B R SR BB 2 5 -

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, where a
company issues shares at a premium, whether for cash or
otherwise, a sum equal to the aggregate amount of the value
of the premiums on their shares shall be transferred to share
premium account.

The application of the share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

Share premium of the Company is distributable to shareholders
subject to the provisions of the Company’s Memorandum and
Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business.
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HZ=2024F12 A31 BILFE Year ended 31 December 2024

g
R56E RAEfR
Transactions (e
with (TwEm) nx
hhEEGE EREEE non- SMEREEE  hwestment  EfEER BREGRE
Captal ~ Remeasur-  controling  Exchange revaluation Poperty  ERERE —HEE  Shaebaed  REEF
redemption ement interests ~~ translation reserve  revaluation Hedging General payment Retained %
resenve resenve resenve resene  (Non-recycling) resenve resenve resenve resenve rofs Total
NEETT  ABETL  AREFL  AREFL  AREFT  AREFT  AREFT  AREFr  ARETr  AREFT  ARETT
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
RABE1A18 At 1 January 2023 400 (109476)  (1,800,090)  (1,144,893) 35,325 9,869 (747) 5,581,267 190,693 9542073 1231042
TEEER Profit for the year - - - - - - - - — 37461 3117461
Rt 2ENE(F8) A Other comprehensive
income (loss) *
REREn Cash flow hedges - - - - - - 39400 - - - 39400
RERHETZEE  Remeasurement of defined
benefits obligations - (9,715) - - - - - - = = (9,715)
KERDABEIERE  Fairvalue changes in equity
Et2ERERREY instruments designated as at
BEIADAREZEY OO - - - - (3617) - - - - - (3611)
ERZE Exchange difference on
consolidation — — — 10,382 — — — — — — 10,382
Rt2EUWE(FE)EE  Total other comprehensive
income (loss) - (9,715) - 10,382 (3611) - 39,400 — — - 36,456
REE2ERE(BR)EE  Total comprehensive income
(loss) for the year - (9.715) - 10382 (3611) - 39,400 - — 317461 3153917
HENARRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEAT Contributions and dlstribution
IREBRIETEETZ  Shares issued under share option
B3 scheme - - - - - - - - (501) - (501)
BRI Shares option lapsed - - - - - - - - (63,240) 63,240 -
M EREE Effect on the change of
functional currency (41) (2,587) - (172,225) (1.952) - 44m - 29222 22477 79,366
BHERIEE 20025 2022 final and specil final
FAmsks diidend approved and paid - - - - - - - - — (63371 (2632371)
ERERBER Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 503,922 - (503922) -
RADNRAREZRAEE  Total transactions with owners
of the Company (@) (2,587) - (172,225) (1,952) - 4472 503,922 (34519)  (2,850576) (2,553,506
R0BENANA At 31 December 2023 359 (121,778)  (1,800,090)  (1,306,736) 29,762 9,869 3125 6,091,189 156,174 9808958 12910832

3 u E BREMEERERAE
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

L0
RRER REER
Ak EfE
Transactions (F&EE)
with Investment LIS
ROBEEE ERERE non- SMREHE revaluation EfiEHE BRERE
Capital ~ Remeasur-  controlling  Exchange reseve  Property  HAEE  -BEE  Sharebased  REEA
redemption ement interests  translation (Non-  revaluation Hedging General payment Retained 2]
reserve reserve reserve reserve recycling) reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
ARETR  ABETR  ABETT  ARETL  ARETL  ARETZ  ARETZ  ARETR  ARETZ  AREFR  AREFR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
B20UE1A1R At 1 January 2024 359 (121,778)  (1,800,090)  (1,306,736) 29,762 9,869 3125 6,091,189 156,174 9,808,958 12,910,832
TERRA Profit for the year - - - - - - - - — 37349 3734429
Att2EEE" Other comprehensive loss A
ReReHnWiz31)  Cashflow hedges Note 31) - - - - - - (26,805) - - - (26,805)
RERHELL Remeasurement of defined
EEEHE) benefits obligations (Note 33) - (19,749) - - - - - - - - (19,749)
RERDABEIERE  Fairvalue changes in equity
Et2EAETREY instruments designated as at
BETARAREZEY  AOC - - - - (347) - - - - - (347)
EXZR Exchange difference on
consolidation - - - (1,552) - - - - - - (1,552)
A2 EERLE Total other comprehensive loss - (19,749) - (1,552) (347) - (26,805) - - - (48,453)
KEE2ERE(BE)EE  Total comprehensive income
(loss) for the year - (19,749) - (1,552) (347) - (26,805) - - 3734429 3,685,976
HANRRRZRS Transactions with owners of
the Company:
REEDT Contributions and distribution
REERIETEIETZ  Shares issued under share option
i 27) scheme (Note 27) - - - - - - - - (185) - (185)
BT Shares option lapsed - - - - - - - - (74,500) 74,500 -
BRERTENZRER 2023 final and special final
EARSBREWE2)  diidend approved and paid
(Note 12) - - - - - - - - — (3,117,097  (3,117,097)
ERARKET Transfer from retained profits - - - - - - - 877,533 - @153 -
- - - - - - - 871,533 (74,685  (3,920,130)  (3,117,282)
BEEE Changes in onnership iterests
RIEARS Change in ownership interest
FHEEED ERR insubsidiaries without
B89 change in control (Yote 19) - — (235,000 - - - - - - — (235000
ARDAREZRSEE  Total transactions with owners
of the Company - - (235,000) - - - - 877,533 (74,685  (3920,130)  (3:352,282)
R04E12B31R At 31 December 2024 359 (141,527)  (2,035,090)  (1,308,288) 29,415 9,869 16,320 6,968,722 81,489 9623257 13,244,526
A HEibh MWz (EE) S HE/KIEEB £2023 A No income tax effect arose from each component of other comprehensive

FR024FGLEMSHEE -

income (loss) in 2023 and 2024.
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TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Capital redemption reserve

Capital redemption reserve has been set up in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands on
repurchases and cancellations of the Company’s own shares.

Remeasurement reserve

Remeasurement reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for the
remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability as set out in
note 3(t) to the consolidated financial statements.

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve

Transactions with non-controlling interests reserve has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the changes in the Group’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary which do not result in change in control as set out in
note 3(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

Exchange translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve has been set up and is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies adopted for foreign
currency translation as set out in note 3(n) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve (non-recycling) has been set
up and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policies
adopted for the cumulative net changes of the fair value of
Designated FVOCI as set out in note 3(j) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve was set up to deal with the
surplus or deficit arising from the revaluation of properties
when the existing properties become investment properties in
accordance with the accounting policies adopted for property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets as set out in notes
3(d) and 3(s) to the consolidated financial statements.

Hedging reserve

The hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of the
cumulative net change in the fair value of a derivative financial
instrument which is designated as a hedge of the foreign currency
risk associated with cash flows of foreign currency-denominated
borrowings in accordance with the accounting policy adopted
for cash flow hedges in note 3(k) to the consolidated financial
statements.

General reserve

In accordance with the relevant PRC regulations, certain PRC
subsidiaries are required to appropriate to the general reserve an
amount not less than 10% of the amount of profit after taxation
(as reported in the respective statutory financial statements of the
PRC subsidiaries prepared in accordance with the PRC accounting
regulations). If the accumulated general reserve reaches 50%
of the registered capital of the respective PRC subsidiaries, the
subsidiary may not be required to make any further appropriation.

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve comprises the fair value at the grant
date of unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group and is dealt with in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments as set out in note 3(u) to the
consolidated financial statements.
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HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

(a)

30
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BREMERRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(a)

2008 Share Option Scheme

The Company's share option scheme (the “2008 Share
Option Scheme"”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution
passed on 20 March 2008. The 2008 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group. The
2008 Share Option Scheme expired on 19 March 2018 and
the outstanding share options are exercisable until the end
of the respective exercisable period.

The Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option to:

(i)  any full-time or part-time employees, executives or
officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company
or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and
agents of the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company'’s shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2008 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of
shares in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option Scheme
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 20
March 2008).

At the end of reporting period, the total number of shares in
respect of which options had been granted to its employees
and directors was 143,726,500 (2023: 143,726,500),
representing 2.57% (2023: 2.57%) of the shares of the
Company in issue at the time the 2008 Share Option
Scheme is adopted by the shareholders of the Company.
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(a)

2008 B R AT BI(Z)

FHE2EELEZL 20085 EIHH
EREFE TAZANRS
BYRB(BRERDITELERITE
ZBRE) EERRTEIRZ
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RIREOE T RE R FBRERAH
JE ©

TEEREFSIRE  MITE
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EBRBRPTEFHRHE
iR mmEES 2&E
8 o

BREENTEHREFTER
E o MBREZTERTZR
BTRI10F - RESRETH
SERNKFFAEET 20085 E
HRIEHRNFERI NG
FREREERR T2 —HLE
iEzZRBERBE 1T
—BEERTRBRES LR
RRT) —BEBAHIERN -

(a)

2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2008 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders’ approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors, and
will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Directors, save that no option may be
exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted. The
options will be vested either after five years from the date of
grant or immediate upon attainment of the retirement age
as specified in the 2008 Share Option Scheme. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is paid by each option holder for each
lot of share option granted. Each option gives the holder the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company.
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HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

(a) 2008 FEEMREEsE(E)

20085t &I A EXR T AR
ANENBARIZEERES
ZHEREFBREN2024F &
2023F 12 A31HEERZ X

(a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of share options granted by the Company to the
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
pursuant to the 2008 Share Option Scheme and the share
options outstanding as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are

TR T as follows:
B’¥
BIREHE
Number of  RITEMNERESE
RTBEH share options Number of share TEE TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2024 2023 HK$
BT
20083 H20H 11,760,000 — — 928 201343 H21H=
20 March 2008 20184 3 H20H
21 March 2013 to
20 March 2018
2009F 4 22 H 26,688,000 — — 938 2014F4H23H=E
22 April 2009 20199 4 A 22 H
23 April 2014 to
22 April 2019
2010F4 A18 15,044,000 — — 18.57 20154 HA1AZ%E
1 April 2010 20203 A31H
1 April 2015 to
31 March 2020
201154 H12H 17,702,000 — — 19.96 2016F4H128E

12 April 2011

3 ] 2 BREMERRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

202154 411 H
12 April 2016 to
11 April 2021
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(a)

2008 FEEETEI(E) (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
B¥
BIREHE
Number of  RITEMNBRERE
®FAH share options Number of share TEE TFEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2024 2023 HK$
BT
201254 H26H 9,700,000 — — 2054 2017 4H26H%E
26 April 2012 202244 H25H
26 April 2017 to
25 April 2022
201345 H27 R 11,492,000 — — 20.16 2018%5H27 A%
27 May 2013 20234 5H26H
27 May 2018 to
26 May 2023
20144 717 R 12,718,500 — | 6,469,000 2238 20194 H17RZE
17 April 2014 202454 H16H
17 April 2019 to
16 April 2024
20156 H5H 17,054,000 = 6,992,000 9,660,000 16.22 20206 H5H%
5 June 2015 202546 H4H
5 June 2020 to
4 June 2025
201657 A4 H 10,148,000 @ 1,470,000 1,550,000 754 2021F7H4B=E
4 July 2016 20267 H3H
4 July 2021 to
3 July 2026
201754 H21H 11,420,000 @ 7,180,000 7,180,000 1020 2022F4H21H=E
21 April 2017 202744 H20H
21 April 2022 to
20 April 2027
&% 143,726,500 | 15,642,000 24,859,000
Total
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(a) 2008 FEEMRMEE(E) (a) 2008 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
TE2008 518N M AT T(E 2 BB A% Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
EERENEEYTEE & weighted average exercise prices under the 2008 Share
wmr Option Schemes are as follows:
2024 2023
n#EFH N1
TEE 1T1E(E
Weighted Weighted
average MEREZHHE average [ERRIEENE
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HK$ ‘000 HK$ ‘000
BT TR BT FHR
REH At beginning of the year 15.54 24,859 16.71 35,167
RERTTE Exercised during the year 7.54 (80) 8.93 (192)
RE AR Forfeited during the year — — — —
RERBUY, 43K Cancelled/lapsed
during the year 20.58 (9,137) 19.73 (10,116)
REHEH At the end of the
reporting period 12.64 15,642 15.54 24,859
RITEH - FRITERERRE The weighted average share price at the dates of exercise
B NAE S RE R10.028 T of share options exercised during the year was HK$10.02
(2023 4F : 12.58& o0 ) » 1E 4% (2023: HK$12.58). No share options are vested during the
HHAN BENAEEBRENE reporting period (2023: Nil).

A HERR SR T (2023 4F - #E) ©

R2024F 12 A31H » imAKITHEE The options outstanding at 31 December 2024 had a
BEIREOMETHSBTE D weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.39 years
B B1.39F(2023F - 1.74 (2023: 1.74 years). At the end of the reporting period,
F)e NEEBR - AI{TTFEBEBR the number of exercisable options was 15,642,000 (2023:
T HY B% 82 15,642,000 (2023 24,859,000) with weighted average exercise price of
F :24,859,000) ¢ MiEF HK$12.64 (2023: HK$15.54 ).

H 1T 8 B12.6478 7T(2023
F 1 15.5487T) °

3]4 BREMERRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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(b)

2018 FEEIRBEST &

RNRABIREER218F48
26 HERITHRRFRI RS LB
B AT AR REET S (120185
2] FHHEMBHEE0
F o Z20185TEI N ABBAEE
K2REVETEREEHAE
EEEOER(GFANAT) M

-~
AVAR

EFQUREZERTUTA
TR -

(i)  ARERLEAERMNE
X F) 2 AE AR A B Bk AR R
BE -TTBRAE&S&K
AB(BEHITES  F
HITESENIBEILIFRTE
2R

(i) ANRF RS E A B
NREWERHEER B
F#lE - RERE
A o

BRACA N B R BLE - 522018
& RAERA R T 2 E b B
B EIMR T2 ERES R 2
f& 7 8 B TS BB A A R ER
ML 8l g B(B1201844 A
260) 2B EITRMNAEI10% °
REEH ERTHEBRE
MBI R 8,104,000 %
(20234 : 8,104,0008% ) * 7
RARREMNLEBHRRERT
20185TEI B B 2 B 1TIRMH W
0.14% (20234 : 0.14% ) »

(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the new share option scheme (the
“2018 Share Option Scheme”) at the extraordinary general
meeting held on 26 April 2018, with a term of ten years
from the date of adoption. The 2018 Share Option Scheme
is a share incentive scheme and is established to recognise
and acknowledge the contributions the eligible participants
(as defined below) had or may have made to the Group.

The Directors may, at its discretion, grant an option to:-

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives
(including executive, non-executive and independent
non-executive directors) or officers of the Company
and/or any of its subsidiaries; and

(i) any suppliers, customers, consultants, agents and
advisors of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.

Without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders,
the maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the 2018 Share Option Scheme and
under any other share option schemes of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the time the 2018 Share Option Scheme was
adopted by the shareholders of the Company (i.e. 26 April
2018). At the end of reporting period, the total number
of shares in respect of which options had been granted to
its employees and directors under the 2018 Share Option
Scheme was 8,104,000 (2023: 8,104,000), representing
0.14% (2023: 0.14%) of the shares of the Company in issue
at the time the 2018 Share Option Scheme is adopted by
the shareholders of the Company.
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HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

(b)

2018 BT EI ()

FE2EELEZL 20185 EIHH
fEREFE TAZANRS
BYRB(BRERDITELERITE
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BREMERRERAR

3] E TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

(b)

2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of the options granted under the 2018 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company (including both exercised and outstanding options)
to an individual in any 12-month period up to the date of
grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares in issue as at the
date of grant. Any further grant of options in excess of this
1% limit shall be subject to the shareholders" approval.

The exercise price is determined by the Directors, and
will not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of the Company’s shares.

The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by the Directors, save that no option may
be exercised more than 10 years after it has been granted.
The options will be vested after three years from the date
of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$1 is paid by each
option holder for each lot of share option granted. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
ordinary share of the Company.
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(b)

2018 EERAERTBI(Z)

20185 EINEBR FARE K
HMBRARIZEEREEZE
fi% 7 715 2 2024 F 22023
FIR2ANBFEANZKRITE

(b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)

Details of share options granted by the Company to the
employees and directors of the Company and its subsidiaries
pursuant to the 2018 Share Option Scheme and the share
options outstanding as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 are

EVBBRRREN T - as follows:
B¥
BREHE
Number of  RITHEHEREZE
®FEH share options Number of share TEE 1TEH
Grant date granted options outstanding Exercise price Exercisable period
2024 2023 HK$
BT
2018 4 A 27 H 2,478,000 2,478,000 2,478,000 16.18 20214 A30HE
27 April 2018 2028F 4 H26H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2028
2018F 4 27 H 5,626,000 — 3,785,000 16.18 20214 A30HZE
27 April 2018 2024F 4 A26H
30 April 2021 to
26 April 2024
A% 8,104,000 2,478,000 6,263,000
Total
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(b) 2018 FEEMRAEE(E) (b) 2018 Share Option Scheme (Continued)
BB 20185 &M ARTTEZ AR Movements in the number of options outstanding and their
EERENEEYTEE & weighted average exercise prices under the 2018 Share
[N Option Scheme are as follows:
2024 2023
In#EFH TS
TEE 1M
Weighted Weighted
average HBREHE average fEMRIEE B
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price options
HKS$ ‘000 HK$ 000
BT TR BT FHR
REH At beginning of the year 16.18 6,263 16.18 6,263
RERITHE Exercised during the year — — — —
RE AR Forfeited during the year — — — —
RERBUY, 43K Cancelled/lapsed
during the year 16.18 (3,785) — —
REER At the end of the
reporting period 16.18 2,478 16.18 6,263
EHEERRN BNEEBIK No share options are vested during the reporting period
) AR W 55 B (2023 4F - (2023: Nil). None of the options are exercised during the
M) o RERRBBRBERIT year.
ik o
202412318 # K The options outstanding at 31 December 2024 had a
TR ENINEEE®RTE weighted average remaining contractual life of 3.32 years
#) B B 3.32F (20234 : 1.90 (2023:7.90 years). At the end of the reporting period,
F)o NHEER > AITEBR the number of exercisable options was 2,478,000 (2023:
7 /PR E22,478,000(2023 6,263,000) with weighted average exercise price of
F :6,263,000) * INHEFIH1T HK$16.18 (2023: HK$16.18).
18 R16.188 JL(2023 4 -
16.1887T) °

3] B BREMERRERAR
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HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023
ARMTFT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
INESIR BB #) — Foreign currency forward contracts —
RemE L+ Cash flow hedges 338,717 169,185

FA- - AEEBHMIINERBREH
WHREABEHRTA  UWYHHEEHE
BB 3 LASNES 5B 18 32 N R B o
PAETEERARKLEHHERN T
ARIEHMEIRE  UHREERE
1218 A R(2023 4 - 1216 A 5} ) &
BEOTETRIRAREEE (2023
F:HFBEE) AEBNRER
BUASHBRANGEE M B ]mE
MizE3(k) - EEABAMNEETETAR
AREBEEZHERTNERERGEE
BTG RER M FE43 -

HHarHuBRERRANTE

SRR D T RS AK B BHR

During the year, the Group carried several foreign currency
forward contracts and designated as hedging instruments to
hedge its foreign currency risks associated with the cash flows of
certain foreign currency-denominated borrowings. Derivatives are
only used for economic hedging purposes and not as speculative
investments. They are presented as current assets (2023: non-
current assets) to the extent they are expected to be settled
within 12 months (2023: more than 12 months) after the end of
the reporting period. The Group's accounting policy for its cash
flow hedges is set out in note 3(k) to the consolidated financial
statements. For the information about the valuation technique
used in determining the fair value of the derivatives are set out in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

Effects of hedge accounting on the financial position and
performance

The effects of the foreign currency-related hedging instruments

MEKRIROZBET - on the Group's financial position and performance are as follows:
2024 2023
ARMTFT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REE Carrying amount 338,717 169,185
HE-BHARE Notional amount — sell RMB 4,280,035 4,280,035
EIAFHHA Maturity dates within 1 year = within 2 years
1FR 2FA
FRIEAEREHREME  The change in fair value of the hedging
HEEZEHTEAAEE  instrument used as the basis for recognising
o hedge ineffectiveness for the year (138,113) (62,964)
RIBSFEE 2R EMME  Hedge ineffectiveness recognised
in profit or loss — —
WAREE S R T ART4R ] Weighted average contracted forward
e 2 hnAE 19 88 rate for outstanding hedging
-5 1 ARE instruments — US$:RMB 1 0.15 0.15

2024 ANNUAL REPORT ##k 3] 9
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HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

B iEE Hedging reserves
AEEME P FHHENTEHPTA The Group's hedging reserves relate to the following hedging
izl instruments:
EREBEHEH
R A ZEHES  HAREEEE
Spot
Cost of component
hedging of currency Total hedging
reserve forwards reserves
ARMFT ARETFT AR¥FIT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
R2024F 1 A1 H As at 1 January 2024 (43,125) — (43,125)
B REMEREUEETF  Less: Change in fair value of
HRZEHRTEA hedging instrument
NABEZE recognised in other
comprehensive income — (138,113) (138,113)
A REMEEIE T Less: Costs of hedging deferred
RIERER 2 and recognised in other
AR comprehensive income (31,419) — (31,419)
mn: mEMEEmEKE  Add: Redassified from other
ENHEEER comprehensive income
IR ET A E A to profit or loss and
HA included in other
net income 58,224 138,113 196,337
(16,320) — (16,320)
KATRRENZ Carrying amount attributable
IREE to owners of the Company
2024912 A31H  Asat 31 December 2024 (16,320) — (16,320)

BREMERRERAR

310

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.



A RN
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

e (E) Hedging reserves (Continued)
BE¥RIEH
B Rl wN= ZENHAE Sy PR EEERE
Spot
Cost of component
hedging of currency Total hedging
reserve forwards reserves
AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
20231 H1H As at 1 January 2023 1,011 — 1,011
B TRE G E 2 Less: Effect on the change of
e functional currency (4,472) — (4,472)
A REAMEEWEF  Less: Change in fair value of
BRZEHPITA hedging instrument
NAEEE recognised in other
comprehensive income — (62,964) (62,964)
B REAM 2 EIET  Less: Costs of hedging deferred
RIERERZ and recognised in other
HR AR comprehensive income (113,266) — (113,266)
n: mEMEEmEKEIE  Add: Redassified from other
EFHEEER comprehensive income
IR ET A E A to profit or loss and
FA included in other
net income 73,602 62,964 136,566
(43,125) — (43,125)
PN/ &Y Y v Carrying amount attributable
REE to owners of the Company
72023412 A31H  Asat 31 December 2023 (43,125) — (43,125)
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HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

2024 2023

ARETT AR T

RMB’000 RMB’000

EIXIRIRITER Unsecured bank loans 8,111,294 10,196,573
IR Unsecured notes 5,143,523 3,532,122
13,254,817 13,728,695

B BB B R AR I8 B 15 2 PR
ST 3 BB OB R A AT (72
B (042 SR BB (0 (R B )
T

The maturity of the interest-bearing borrowings and analysis of
the amount due based on scheduled payment dates set out in
the loan agreements (ignoring the effect of any repayment on
demand clause) are as follows:

2024 2023

AR¥TFTT ARMEFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

1A Within one year 11,584,561 8,481,501
F2F In the second year 175,000 5,072,194

EIFEESF In the third to fifth years inclusive

(BEER2F) 1,495,256 175,000
13,254,817 13,728,695
WoEARSEBSY Portion classified as current liabilities (11,584,561) (8,481,501)
EMBNER Non-current portion 1,670,256 5,247,194

B EfBEE+ AR®S3,440,000,000
TL(2023F : A R #2,687,476,000
T)BE—REERRGE TEEAE
MERBEEMAAMK DR+ @A
BAHNERT  ERKBERE-
AXAEEEEREBEENSER
EBEREREEL T _EA BB
BERFTEI B BB (R MiE
ERAREERINFE) R —FA
HE - HEAEETEREARDE

g o

BEEEBEZMEFHFERNEXA
2.86% (20234 1 3.01%) °

BEBERBHRAIE -

3 22 BREMERRERAR

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

Interest-bearing borrowings of RMB3,440,000,000 (2023:
RMB2,687,476,000), with a clause in their terms that gives the
lender an overriding right to demand repayment without notice or
with notice period of less than 12 months at its sole discretion, are
already classified as current liabilities because the Group does not
have a right to defer settlement of interest-bearing borrowings for
at least 12 months after the reporting period and the scheduled
payment due date of these borrowings (ignoring the effect of any
repayment on demand clause) are due within one year.

The weighted average effective interest rate on the interest-
bearing borrowings is 2.86% (2023: 3.01 %) per annum.

Interest-bearing borrowings are carried at amortised cost.
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RITEFHAEEREETEER
RITEFXAZEALAEEERZRZIN
ERZHRE -

RARR2020F 9 A24 HE1T4A %
48 %8 /500,000,000 3 7T 7 & K 18
ERTETER]D - EXEEBERE
& HHERMEEA499,188,000% T
(FEERHARE 3,648,267,0007T)
(2023 4F : 498,120,000 7T (# &
RA A FE#3,532,122,0007T )) I
AABEREE RE—FRH(2023
FEZF) ETLEEA20205F9
RA24 8 RIZFEF E1.625%5 & -
FEERSF3IA248 %9 A24H
BEB¥FL NI H2021F3 8248
HBZE 20259 A 24 HEIH -

ERNEERTIEESRIMBR
NAIET - BEMS®WE - ETE
BR2024F 12 31BN A REE
#$487,135,000% ;T(# & B 4 A
R #3,560,177,000 7T ) (20234 :
470,170,000 7T (1A & RAIA K B
3,333,928,0007T)) c ZETLEE TR
RAREERED - WHRAERHE
HEMEKREE=ZERSHA -
18 b o P 0 A A ] (ST o

N A A 2024998138 # 17
K& @5 B AR1,500000000
T2 EBERER(RIEED - B
HEREERIMNEEEAARK
1,495,256,000 7T (2023 % : #& ) A
ABEREE  REZFIH(2023
F M) BRIHEH2024F9H18
BRREFANE23%E - FBA
202549 A 18 A FFEN9 A 18
B H202549A8 188 £ &
20279 A 18 HEIH -

The bank loans are unsecured and certain of the unsecured
bank loans are covered by several cross guarantee arrangements
amongst the Group's entities.

On 24 September 2020, the Company issued unsecured notes
with an aggregate principal amount of US$500,000,000 (the “US$
Notes”). The carrying amount of the US$ Notes at the end of
reporting period is US$499,188,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,648,267,000) (2023: US$498,120,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,532,122,000)) and is included in the interest-
bearing borrowings with maturity in the first year (2023. second
year). The US$ Notes bear interest from 24 September 2020 at the
rate of 1.625% per annum, payable semi-annually in arrear on 24
March and 24 September in each year, commencing on 24 March
2021 and will mature on 24 September 2025.

The US$ Notes are listed on the Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited. The fair value of the US$ Notes
as at 31 December 2024, based on the quoted market
price, was US$487,135,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB3,560,177,000) (2023: US$470,170,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB3,333,928,000)). The US$ Notes are the
unsecured obligations of the Company and they rank at least
equally with other present and future unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations.

On 13 September 2024, the Company issued unsecured notes
with an aggregate principal amount of RMB1,500,000,000 (the
“Panda Bond"”). The carrying amount of the Panda Bond at the
end of reporting period is RMB1,495,256,000 (2023: Nil) and
is included in the interest-bearing borrowings with maturity in
the third year (2023 Nil). The Panda Bond bear interest from 18
September 2024 at the rate of 2.3% per annum, payable annually
in arrear on 18 September in each year, commencing on 18
September 2025 and will mature on 18 September 2027.
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HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

ﬁ@AﬂLmomﬁm
5

B E NSRRI 5 /8 B ATRR 19 BT
WG A
ER2024% 12 A31TBH A B

/5 AR #1,505,415,0007T(2023

FoAE)

RRIBETD RAN A A AR IR

FERS - WP A B ) B K

MIEBZARS -

Bt 2 3

BB -

TRBBOEBEEERL R — L
ﬁﬁfﬂéﬁﬁiﬁéﬁl%xﬂ%?ﬁé
MBIRREE - NRAEERRE

=

EHANRMESANREZRKE

RE NN EREER

KEIEHHWT HE<FELEREN
j: ‘/
TFEJ

7% REEERBTELRE
BAIRTEERREREER - A&EK
/m@‘iﬂﬁﬁaﬁmL FSEBET

RERE M BMKRME42 - RSB

N AEBEREEREBBRESR
BB (2023 F - #) -

REBZERE D

ZAFEXER

BZAWHRMT

The Panda Bond are listed on the Inter-bank Market Clearing
House Co., Ltd.. The fair value of the Panda Bond as at 31
December 2024, based on the quoted market price, was
RMB1,505,415,000 (2023: Nil). The Panda Bond are the
unsecured obligations of the Company and they rank at least
equally with other present and future unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations.

Some of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment of
covenants relating to certain ratios of consolidated financial
position, as are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the covenants,
the drawn down facilities would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these covenants
and the scheduled repayments of the term loans and does
not consider it probable that the relevant banks will exercise
its discretion to demand for repayment so long as the Group
continues to meet these requirements. Further details of the
Group's financial management of liquidity risk are set out in note
42 to the consolidated financial statements. Throughout the
reporting period, none of the covenants relating to drawn down
facilities had been breached (2023: None).

An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s total
borrowings by type is as follows:

2024 2023
ARETT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EalE At fixed rates 11,743,183 10,369,259
FB)FE At floating rates 1,511,634 3,359,436
13,254,817 13,728,695

EAGERERAT
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BEREENTIERSIE

The interest-bearing borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:
2024 2023
ARETT AEBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE RMB 8,619,916 9,235,496
=T us$ 4,634,901 4,493,199
13,254,817 13,728,695

00 W HNE BB BRI A 4
—BHE  REA MR
s -

REMRMKETE

AEBSHATE - FE - FHIK
keEZREZSMNO R daFE- &
78 BN K B 8 B T B A A
MRAERRETE - BUEAKEFTE
ARLEFEREEFERZIETE
BOLERHR - REBRKRIN L
Mg ANHERIN > FRAENP
BB FMEkEeEBETRIK
R R HIRZ @ H -

REBATE

LA ERFFEERENES
BN KRB AID A EREEBIR
HAERMGE - REEZERE
T8 EESLAEMEEETR
BWEEKA - BAGHE 2 AEB R
BFHARGEEANTHHFER
EWEMG AEEHRATRAETE
WEXRHBUREMENEETSE
Hegs Ar([EEmEE BN
BB 2RBENEREENHES
HIRR2024F 12 A31 B A FERT B
AR AR #ETT ©

Details of the Group’s foreign currency risk and interest rate risk
discussion are set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Defined contribution plans

The Group participates in defined contribution plans organised by
the relevant local government authorities in the PRC, Hong Kong,
Singapore and Taiwan for its PRC, Hong Kong, Singaporean and
Taiwan employees respectively, whereby the Group is required to
make monthly contributions to these plans at certain percentage
of the relevant portion of the payroll of these employees to the
pension scheme to fund the benefits. The Group has no obligation
for the payment of retirement and other post-retirement benefits
for the PRC, Hong Kong, Singaporean and Taiwan employees
other than the monthly contributions described above.

Defined benefit plan

The Group has a defined benefit plan for certain of its Taiwan
employees (other than those covered by defined contribution plans
above). The Group does not maintain any plan assets and bears
the full cost of all the plan benefits. The benefits are calculated
based on the length of service and estimated average monthly
salary for the final six months of employment. The Group’s
obligation in respect of the defined benefit plan is calculated by
an independent actuary, Messrs. Willis Towers Watson, Taiwan
Branch (“Willis Towers Watson”). The latest actuarial valuation
was performed by Willis Towers Watson as at 31 December 2024
using the projected unit credit method.
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RERBAEI(E) Defined benefit plan (Continued)

REBHERTRMNFEREE Y The amounts included in the consolidated statement of financial
EEXWEALZEPBRAEKR Z A position arising from the obligation of the Group in respect of its
MHIBEZE#EWMT - defined benefit plan and their movements in the present value of

defined benefit obligations are as follows:

2024 2023
AR¥FT ARMEFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 52,898 69,026
AN [ R TG BN Current service cost 1,947 530
BB Interest expense 1,149 1,609
3,096 2,139
B4 Remeasurements:
MR REFAEEEZ Actuarial loss arising from
TEEEE changes in financial assumptions 4,310 693
KERTARESE ZERIE  Actuarial loss arising from
experience adjustments 15,502 8,903
19,812 9,596
B &7 Benefit payment (10,834) (27,863)
REER At end of the reporting period 64,972 52,898
BEMENEERER The significant assumptions used for the actuarial valuation were:
2024 2023
% %
IR E Discount rate 1.60 2.50
& AR T B - 1@ Expected rate of salary increases 0.00 - 3.00 0.00 - 3.00

3 2 B BREMEERERAE
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REBRFEE)

REER SEIEREREKNE
IEEJQE %JJ%T E RN B 2 SRk

Defined benefit plan (Continued)

The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to reasonable
possible changes for each significant actuarial assumption as at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2024 2023
RERA FERM
BEENEL BENEL
Change in Change in
60k L[4 defined  REMNE(L defined
Change in benefit Change in benefit
assumption obligation assumption obligation
Fr|g=x Discount rate -3.77%/ -3.21%/
+/-0.5% +4.00% +/- 0.5% +3.41%
T8 BB B -1 Expected rate of +3.56%/ +3.07%/
salary increases +/-0.5% -3.40% +/- 0.5% -2.93%

tigERESTEREBESEEER
BRNEEAEEHREE  MEMR
RRFAAE - HthBERR LA B
BIE LR MRS LB W
ARIAEDHTEIA - A B H N
RAEAREERERNEEHNR
18 N 48 B8 10 & HA AR 75 A A A 38 = AR
i‘“}ﬁﬁ(ﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁ) ° RIRH T EMAE
BEERRBALCARNEEANE RIAR
EEE”\]@K@?EBW °

ATEANETHMEFHEHRZ
7.904F (20234 : 6.704) °

RIFEHETE - 88EBEF605
(2023 F - 605%) s ZFHERIKNEF -

The above sensitivity analysis is prepared based on a reasonable
possible change in each actuarial assumption used, with other
assumptions held constant. Other actuarial assumptions may
also change with the above assumptions. Such change is not
accounted for in the above analyses. The projected unit credit
method is used to determine the present value of the defined
benefit obligations and the related current service cost and where
applicable the past service cost. The same method and the type
of actuarial assumptions were used in preparing the sensitivity
analysis for the current and previous years.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
is 7.90 years (2023: 6.70 years).

Under the plan, the Taiwan employees are entitled to retirement
benefits on the attainment of a retirement age of 60 (2023: 60 ).
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RERBAEI(E) Defined benefit plan (Continued)
BTEEATELEARFTEE The Group has no funding arrangement and expects no
E AEEVEETANESTHERT contribution to be paid in respect of the defined benefit plan as
FEHFELNER - L ARFTIHAR the defined benefit plan does not maintain any plan assets. The
REFFEFEEH A>T - expected maturity analysis of the undiscounted pension benefits is
as follows:
2024 2023
AR#FT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
1R Within 1 year 9,258 13,919
A1 FER2FR More than 1 year but within 2 years 800 1,182
A2 FERSFR More than 2 years but within 5 years 4,049 7,297
FAIE 5 Over 5 years 66,541 49,410
80,648 71,808
AEEFELEHBEEENFEE The movements for the year in the Group's net deferred tax
LU liabilities are as follows:
2024 2023
et AR#FT AREFT
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
REH] At beginning of the year 914,469 817,025
WERARFEIR Withholding tax paid on distributions
[RENBEE of earnings by subsidiaries (202,672) (146,796)
FFAGZARERA Charge to consolidated
income statement 11 246,288 244,240
REER At end of the reporting period 958,085 914,469

3 2 B BREMEERERAE
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REERH EIAZECHBEBEE Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the
FEafEmT reporting period represent the following:
2024 2023
BE af& AE =L
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

ARBTFTT ARETRT ARETT ARETT
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

IR E Accelerated depreciation
allowance — (304,822) — (420,100)
TRTSHTE Decelerated depreciation
allowance 1,965 — 2,052 —
NAEERAZE Fair value adjustment on:
—EREEE - — Right-of-use assets and
M - #es property, plant
B and equipment — (22,959) — (27,202)
—mEEE — Intangible asset — (39,677) — (39,677)
— KB EHE — Investment properties — (22,930) — (34,598)
—2@IA - Financial instruments 152 — 152 —
BEBE Impairment losses 47,457 — 57,558 —
RERBREL Un-invoiced accrual
TRIRERA 192,525 — 186,466 —
HEYE - #2R2 K Unrealised profit on property,
B RERFE plant and equipment 40,704 — 45,081 —
MHEARRDE Withholding tax on undistributed
AE 2z FERR earnings of subsidiaries — (837,553) — (697,262)
HiskEsa Tax losses — — 27,782 —
Hity Others 23,160 (36,107) 20,320 (35,041)
ELERBEE Deferred tax assets
(BE) (liabilities) 305,963  (1,264,048) 339,411 (1,253,880)
BIEPRPEMRSRE  IEKE Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, a 10% (2023:
ERUNRPEMINEREDEFE 10%) withholding tax is levied on dividends distributed to foreign
BHRE B IKRRB10%(2023F - investors by the foreign investment enterprises established in
10%) BT E BN TEIR T - LR E the PRC. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
R2008F 1A 1HBAER  BBAR applies to earnings accumulated after 31 December 2007. A
2007F 12 A3 BB AT IHD lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
e A o fin B BT B2 R AN 4% A between the PRC and jurisdiction of the foreign investors.

% R B 3R o AT T A R Y
s - LB REER -
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AEEAHK B A R E B X
B5% (2023 F 1 5%) » NEBIRE
BEEBERRATEEA B RFPHF
Al B F)E M ET IR A AR E R
BEE -

HEFH T FME(ATFAED A
ERBEENRARE T L2023
F: A K #183811,000C ) &
HENBEBBESMAME - EFRA
FE2023F 12 A3MHALLZEST
FHNHEBIESEERRIZEESR
© WHEARBRTESE - Bt
I A B IMNEE R A o

REEBRN  AEEEHAREBS
70(2023  : A R # 111,128,000
TORMGEERRREERIBEE -
REEERZBRBERIUNTF
A AR 1 40 SR 2R 75 s %5 9 — A B
BARSN - BEEER REENS
ZEEBREERAARRIFR 2
Bl - REER KAEREER
BEEZBEEBEINHAFHOT -

For the Group's PRC subsidiaries, the applicable rate is 5%
(2023: 5%)). Deferred tax liability is provided on the basis that the
undistributed earnings of the Group’s entities are expected to be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

The estimated withholding tax effects on the remaining undistributed
earnings (the “Remaining Net Earnings”) is approximately RMBnil
(2023: RMB183,811,000) which would become payable when they
are distributed. In the opinion of the Directors, the Remaining Net
Earnings, as at 31 December 2023, were required for financing the
continuing operations of these entities and no distribution would
be made in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, no provisions for
additional deferred taxation had been made.

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses of RMBnil (2023:
RMB111,128,000) were recognised as at the end of reporting
period. The tax losses can be carried forward for five years, except
for a subsidiary which is qualified to enjoy the benefit with tax loss
carried forward for ten years, from the year in which the losses
arose for offsetting against future taxable income. The expiry years
of tax losses with no deferred tax assets recognised at the end of
the reporting date are as follows:

2024 2023

BBERIBR ARETFT ARETT
Tax loss expiring in: RMB’000 RMB’000
2024 — 93,630
2025 140,000 179,755
2026 175,090 189,816
2027 180,569 187,259
2028 351,227 326,256
2029 137,167 —
2029 to 2033 2029%2033 — 198,839
2030 to 2034 2030%2034 259,004 —
1,243,057 1,175,555

BREMERRERAR
TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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2024 2023
AR¥FT ARETFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
FEfTBRX Trade payables
EF=7h To third parties 6,887,905 7,258,931
BEAEEA T To related parties
—ARRAIZESEH — A group of companies controlled by
KEKE RHE the family members and relatives of
PEH R — 4R A the Company's directors 1,248,015 1,313,112
NS To an associate 17 —
BENT To joint ventures 663 674
8,136,600 8,572,717
ERNE=F B@EBAL BaE2Q The trade payables to third parties, related parties, an associate
AIRGEERAIZENERRER and joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and with credit
2 ERKB30E90KXK(2023 - period of 30 to 90 days (2023:30 to 90 days).
30Z90K)EFER -
ENERNEERRBEEARE Y The ageing analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date at
BRERDITAT the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2024 2023
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
0-90H 0 - 90 days 7,338,115 7,748,297
90 HEA E Over 90 days 798,485 824,420
8,136,600 8,572,717

2024 ANNUAL REPORT ##k 3 3]



iR A MR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

FENRRKA TG FI(E

The trade payables are denominated in the following currencies:

2024 2023

AR¥FT AREFIT

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR RMB 7,939,187 8,439,880

T uss$ 6,527 20,001

AT HK$ 190,886 112,836

8,136,600 8,572,717

2024 2023

AR¥FT AREFT

RMB’000 RMB’000

el e Deposits received in advance 2,823,859 2,704,521

B 5EMES Accruals for transportation,

BR AR promoting and advertising expenses 4,370,134 3,925,551
TERE A R HA Accruals for administrative expenses and

LB TER other operating expenses 789,560 594,176

JEN T & MEHE Salaries and welfare payables 1,036,063 904,236

NSRS Payables for purchase of equipment 155,173 163,977

FET H AR IR Other tax payables 184,195 165,634

JEAT 7 & Interest payable 33,480 48,138

JE 1t B AR SR AR R Dividends payable to non-controlling interests 247 243

Hith Others 647,937 362,997

10,040,648 8,869,473

3 3 2 BREMEERERAE
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37(a) REXBHBRE

37(a) Cash generated from operations

2024 2023
AR¥FT ARBFT
RMB’000 RMB’000

B A5 A gt ) Profit before taxation 6,059,654 4,779,461
MEEBH Interest expenses 423,313 519,122
FEMBA Interest income (356,972) (540,694)
e Depreciation 3,494,967 3,441,797
BAREBEYERE Dividend income from financial assets

BHREEMNSAZE  at FVPL and a designated FVOCI

MIEFIR AN BEYER

RAEE M2 A =

BRER IR A M 2

TR ZBRAEA (2,545) (127)
| EE 2B Amortisation of intangible assets 6,840 6,840
HEWE - AR Loss on disposal of property, plant

LEREEE BB and equipment and right-of-use assets 58,479 113,295
HESE QAR ZIWER Gain on disposal of a joint venture — (247)
WA FE Change in fair value of investment properties

NAEEZEY 46,670 7,030
BARBEYIERERE Change in fair value of

BaREEMNS/EZE  finandal assets at FVPL, net

NRABEZZEEHFE (14,964) 133
HERB ARz W Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (49,374) (413,722)
FE(REE = R R & Share of results of an associate

BENFIER and joint ventures (129,941) (126,954)
VE R G v w2 Effect on exchange rate changes (53,937) (88,691)
BEEZRL Decrease in inventories 370,069 869,320
FEUBE T 2 (JEh1)W 4> (Increase) Decrease in trade receivables (11,838) 225,786
T TR IR Ko E fth FE LK Decrease (Increase) in prepayments and

FIE 2R (1) other receivables 318,534 (44,128)
TT‘THE R Decrease in trade payables (440,939) (915,079)
HERRIERE Increase (Decrease) in other payables

W4 2 18 CRi ) and deposits received 1,261,166 (778,354)
BEEANMZEZ B )  (Decrease) Increase in advance

0 payments from customers (847,291) 250,239
ERFETREFEME Decrease in present value of

RE 2R unfunded employee benefit obligations (7,738) (25,724)
KREEKAEBRE Cash generated from operations 10,124,153 7,279,303

2024 ANNUAL REPORT ##k 3 3 3
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HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

37(b) MEEBELNABEHR

334

TERFALAEERAMETS
E’JE EZ@J : ’E%fﬁi&#ﬁ

ﬁﬁﬁm%ﬁ*Xﬁ%mE’
H%H;$E§§M?ﬁiﬁiumii§¢

37(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of

DEAMBEHELENR ST cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
2o
ERDE
&L
EE A (Hiet36)
RITER Dividend
HEEE JEARE  (WE32) payable
(Kt 16) (#fi£32)  Unsecured to non-
Lease  Unsecured banks  controlling
liabilities notes loans interests @t
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total
ANREFT NARETT ARETT AREFT ARETR
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
RW2024%1R1A8 At 1 January 2024 326,692 3,532,122 10,196,573 243 14,055,630
FHEEM Net cash flows
(HEL (i), (i) (i) (Notes (i), (i), (i) (216,495 1,494,836  (2,114,757)  (373,414)  (1,209,830)
Bt#5 - Other changes:
BHF B Amortised interest expenses 14,563 8,113 — — 22,676
MRS New leases 132,019 — — — 132,019
MEBIzFE Effect on lease modification 7,267 — — — 7,267
HE—FNBAR Disposal of a subsidiary (108) — — — (108)
kel Dividend declared — — — 399,914 399,914
BHAREEM Reallocated to other payables
JENTIE — — — (26,496) (26,49)
EHER Exchange realignment — 108,452 29,478 — 137,930
72024512 A318 At 31 December 2024 263,938 5,143,523 8,111,294 247 13,519,002

BREMERRERAR

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.
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37(b) MEETHELENABERE)

37(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing
activities (Continued)

FER L

BRRBEA
Eadiintl (Bist36)
RITER Dividend

HEafE SEAZE (Mt 32) payable
(B 16) (#1:£32)  Unsecured to non-

Lease Unsecured banks controlling
liabilities notes loans interests @ar
(Note 16) (Note 32) (Note 32) (Note 36) Total

AR T ARETT AREFIT ARETIT ARETT
RMB0OO  RMB000  RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB000

20231 A 1H At 1 January 2023 301,113 3,470,308 14,148,702 144 17,920,267
FREM Net cash flows
(W (), i), (i) (Notes (i), (i), (ii)) (231,442) —  (3,955,645) (517,034)  (4,704,121)

p-iif 4 Other changes:

BERs Amortised interest expenses 16,034 7,096 — — 23,130

HIEHEE New leases 235,275 — — — 235,275

HEBI ¥ E Effect on lease modification 5,712 — — 5,712

BERA Dividend declared — — — 517,133 517,133

[ERER Exchange realignment — 54,718 3,516 — 58,234

2023412 A318 At 31 December 2023 326,692 3,532,122 10,196,573 243 14,055,630

(i) HEAGEWIFReERITESF () The net cash flows from lease liabilities represent the
ASTNEEABZAE MF payment of capital element and interest of lease liabilities.
BEH

(i) HITERMEHIE  RBITE (i) The net cash flows from unsecured bank loans make up the
FRE R FRIE R H A R B R net amount of proceeds from bank borrowings, repayments
CREEEE)  BACEIRIPRT of bank borrowings and net movement of other short-term
BERHEHERE borrowings.

(i) AR IR EEFR (i) The net cash flows from dividend payable to non-controlling

EREBREFAXNIHBR
HBE -

interests represent dividends paid to non-controlling interests
during the year.
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M ARGERE EMIMmIEE 22 In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in
SREREELAIN ARy AREEES the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
AT ETZERATIBE - 1t following material related party transactions in the ordinary course
ERGDHRAEB A B ERTE of the Group's business.
17 e
2024 2023
otz3 AREFT ANEEFT
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
() BEBALZRS (@)  Related party transactions
BTHARHEER Sales of goods to:
ADRZ EBRELH Companies controlled by a substantial
&4 VNG shareholder of the Company 0) 165,237 143,215
NG An associate 53,951 31,496
RERT Joint ventures 857,919 935,544
BTRIARBEER Purchases of goods from:
/NI v A group of companies controlled by
REKE KRB the family members and relatives
Z— 4R of the Company’s directors () 5,561,820 5,872,849
NG An associate 1,249 2,417
BER7 Joint ventures 12,793 11,191
BRIARZFRHEER Promotional expenses paid to:
ARRZEERFES 2 Companies controlled by a substantial
4PN shareholder of the Company (i) 51,050 50,381
BT 5 ARKRK R E Administrative expenses paid on
THER: behalf and received from:
BERAT Joint ventures 231 331
@ 52 B R & 1 Rental income from investment
FEHERNE  BER properties and property,
FE2HE plant and equipment
ARAZ FERRIEHZ Companies controlled by a substantial
LN shareholder of the Company 31,910 34,118
FRRZEERY A company controlled by
FEK B RFBEHIH the family members and relatives of
—HERA] the Company's directors 2,751 2,667
B T 5 AR EHA Distribution costs paid to:
ALRREFYL A group of companies controlled by
REKE RBEBEH the family members and relatives of
Z—HRE the Company's directors (i) 1,872,984 1,985,409
Biat() BIELTRBIE14AE  %EHE Note (i) These related party transactions also constitute continuing
BRAMAT 2SR ERE connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
5 e Rules.

33 B BREMEERERAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

(b) BEREEAEZME

AEEFEREREABZME
(BREEMBRRME 10/
BREMARAESE  THER
XN ZFERAE TR HE

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company's directors, chief
executive officer and certain of the highest paid employees
as disclosed in note 10 to the consolidated financial

SXfRzFHE)WT : statements, is as follows:
2024 2023
AR¥TFTT ARBTF T
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEMe Directors’ fees 4,370 4,321
e hEMMES Salaries and other emoluments 40,965 41,056
TEAT Discretionary bonuses 26,068 12,009
BRIRE T Retirement payments 10,834 9,214
82,237 66,600

FRATEEBYHREEAFE 155
MEFPANBE(TEERFAFRE
MERADEERZEE)MT

The movements (excluding those arising from increases and
decreases both occurred within the same year) of contract
liabilities from contracts with customers within HKFRS 15 during
the year are as follows:

2024 2023

AR¥TFTT ABEFIT

RMB’000 RMB'000

REH] At beginning of the year 2,821,969 2,571,730
RAWA Recognised as revenue (2,821,969) (2,571,730)
WRIRZNEYHITERF Receipt of advances of undelivered goods 1,974,762 2,821,969
REEHR At end of the reporting period 1,974,762 2,821,969

MR20244F % 2023F 12 A318 &
FRHAZEBEBIR —FRER AWK
Ao

At 31 December 2024 and 2023, the advance payments from
customers are expected to be recognised as revenue within one
year.

2024 ANNUAL REPORT ##k 3 37



iR A MR MR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

FR AEEBRBIE=ZHFIL—
MEEHZ  LE—HMNBAAN
rHEE - HEFEERFRNT
B e T EEER - HEMBEA
AUz A R #49,374,000 L E 5T A
B iR EMFHA -

ATt W iE R ERNEEBHE

During the year, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement with an independent third party for the disposal of the
entire equity interest of a subsidiary. This disposal was completed
during the year. Upon the completion of the above disposal, gain
on the disposal of a subsidiary of RMB49,374,000 was recognised
in profit or loss and recorded as other net income.

The following summarises the consideration and the carrying

ENBEMNEREAS amount of the assets and liabilities at the date of disposal:
HEE
Total
AREFT
RMB’000
FMEENFEEE(AE) Net assets (liabilities) disposed of
M - HERRE Property, plant and equipment 38,643
EREEE Right-of-use assets 3,049
TS FRIE B B fh FE M RRTE Prepayments and other receivables 4,521
WITHBRRES Bank balance and cash 244
HinEfIsERE KRS Other payables and deposits received (95,723)
HEBaE Lease liabilities (108)
(49,374)
HE—EM B AR (AES) Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 8) 49,374
RELHE Total consideration
FEWARAE Consideration receivable —x
HE—BNBARZRESRAFHE Net cash outflow on disposal of a subsidiary
FEU R AB Consideration receivable —*
EHECZHEeRESSEY Cash and cash equivalents disposed of (244)
BeERBESEEYZRAEE Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents (244)

* EEEIRARE1,0007T

* Represent amount less than RMB 1,000

33 B BREMEERERAE
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AEENEAEERRRHELAE
BFELENEN  RRREHE
HLRA/EMTDEREN S -

AEEFERREFREIRRE &
Re%EY BHERERLES
EHMERNEERRE)FENFAE
HEERL R (ERARRIBREERE
SO ER)NEREERN(BEMRA
BamEn) - ARENEFRERE
AL RESIERE BFRETAEE
B AEEERBUF EE EE
RRANEE 2 ERNGHE - REHR

The Group's objectives on managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders.

The Group monitors its capital, which comprises all equity
components, using a gearing ratio which is calculated on the
basis of net debt (interest-bearing borrowings net of cash and
cash equivalents , short-term time deposits and long-term time
deposits) as a ratio of the equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The Group takes into account of the long-term time
deposits in calculating the gearing ratio because the management
believes that this calculation reflects the capital structure of
the Group more accurately. The gearing ratio at the end of the

FEEBEEANLL RN reporting period was as follows:
2024 2023
AR¥TFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
EEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 13,254,817 13,728,695
B IReMBEEEEY - Less: Cash and cash equivalents, short-term
REE TR R time deposit and long-term time deposits
RHEITE 17 (16,002,668)  (14,738,381)
FHIRE Net cash (2,747,851) (1,009,686)
RREIRER (L B Total equity attributable to owners
of the Company 14,229,046 13,894,604
FREREAREE Gearing ratio -19.31% -7.27%

AEERBECEHMERGEE

BREMHRIMEEERER I
REBEEERNOECHABE NG
B BERERE EERERE
% BIOTHEBARKRERN L
MPEMLE  ZRTSEEENX
HH  RRERZHMZERS -

R2024F - AN & B A KK E2023
FHHE BEBFEEHEARLE
THIETIANA ©

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance and makes adjustments to capital structure according
to changes in economic conditions for achieving its objectives
through payment of dividends, retire of existing debts, issue of
new debts and sales of lands and properties not in use. Changing
of borrowing rate in the market, future capital expenditures and
investment opportunities are taken into consideration.

During 2024, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged from
2023, aims at keeping the gearing ratio approximately to nil.
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AEBAFANS R T ARYINE
R FERER - EERBRRE
EeRB- AREAEES AR
g BEERARTORARERY
R-BEERNLABRAZAR
BEHRMT

SNER R

AEBEHHMBAREZAPBRKL
g2 FTEUARBEZSEE - K
& B BT E R SNE R A BR AN A A
HEMBAR ZEEE B LA - LA
HEMmEBEXINENEARME
RERITESR BEEE- K
FVPLEZIEH) € & 2 I 175 g B

THR%E o

ARBEEITHHAIBBETHEA
RARTH8 M 2 5N E B B AR Bl &
Bl AREEOHBEARMERR
BREMPNIEEEET  RNE
ARELEHNIINERRLEBEEX
RBREE- - FR AKEAEHDKI
PE R B S K9 LA R AN BT B A K
BHHWIMNERE o HHIEBFIFH
RERE PR MEE3(K) & 31 -

REBER20244F 2023412 A 31
HEASMNEE(JE AR ) 5HE B IZFVPL
REMNEREE BHaekBa%E
- BEEBERENERFED
R E M wERMEE22 - 26~ 32
350

34“ BREMERRERAR
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The Group's financial instruments expose it to foreign currency
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Directors
generally adopt conservative strategies on its risk management
and limits the Group's exposure to these risks to a minimum. The
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these
risks and they are summarised below:

Foreign currency risk

The majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operate in the
PRC and most of their transactions are denominated in RMB.
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through
payable on capital expenditures, purchases, bank balances,
interest-bearing borrowings, financial assets at FVPL and related
party balances that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The exchange rate of RMB against US$ is subject to the rules
and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group did not have significant exposure to
foreign exchange risk arising from daily operating activities of the
subsidiaries because their main operations are conducted in their
functional currency. During the year, the Group carried out several
foreign currency forward contracts to hedge against the exposure
to foreign currency risk arising from foreign currency-denominated
borrowings. The details of the hedging activities are set out in
note 3(k) and note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the Group’s financial assets at FVPL, cash and cash
equivalents, interest-bearing borrowings and trade payables
denominated in currencies other than RMB as at 31 December
2024 and 2023 are set out in notes 22, 26, 32 and 35 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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SNER(E)

REER - WA e 8RET
BoOmMARBEBETL ARER
BT EARE L REE SR FAE
B E2.1% ~ 2.0% & 1.7% (2023
FANRBEBET - AR ZE
MBI E - BZ1E0.9% K 0.9%) -
N E & B R T R AR B & F A5 18 a0
SR AR #16,279,000 7T(2023
F: ARMS5,487,0007T) °

BREIMIBENEREEBA N
REYMET  WEABNZB BT
AR T A EERR (B
BB RERM 3 F il EINER
HE R E R INERTBERER 2
Rke) - mETAE (R EF
KVRFEAE - H 2 BERKRER
B EIINEHREREAET —F
EHEBZARERZES - kD
M EYEE 2023 F A °

RS

AEEETEMENFERERZREB
RITEHRLBEEESARETR Y
MR @\ o 07 B R R TT 48 BR S 0F
PHNEEREESASRERERS
MEMEXEAR HRBABHEE K
SENRBERELERAELER
RBEIEEBMEERIBMEERTHE
EELD -

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if the exchange rates of RMB/
US$, RMB/EUR and RMB/HKD had strengthened/weakened by
2.1%, 2.0% and 1.7% (2023: RMB/US$ and RMB/HKD had
strengthened/weakened by 0.9% and 0.9%) respectively with
all other variables held constant, the Group’s profit for the year
and retained profits would have been RMB16,279,000 (2023:
RMB5,487,000) higher/lower.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the
change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the end of
the reporting period and had been applied to Group’s exposure
to currency risk for all financial instruments in existence at that
date excluding the exposure arising from the foreign currency-
denominated borrowings that are hedged by foreign currency
forward contracts as detailed in note 31 to the consolidated
financial statements, and that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. The stated changes in foreign
currency represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in foreign exchange rates over the period until
the next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis was
performed on the same basis for 2023.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank balances and interest-
bearing borrowings. Bank balances and interest-bearing
borrowings with floating interest rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk. For interest-bearing borrowings, the
Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed
and floating rate debts, monitor closely its interest rate exposure
and the level of fixed rate and floating rate borrowings in
consideration of economic atmosphere and the strategies of the
Group.
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FEmB(E)

FR - AEEWKRETEKRE RS
B UEAHABRERERAAEBEN
FERR NEEH AEEEE
TE Al & 2 & R 589% (2023 4F -
76%)

REER - WATAEMEERET
2 UETRAREBINEZRITE
B BRBITEARALEBERNE
D RFEFFE 25 (2023 4F : 75) %
30(2023 4 : 20)E & - REEARE
B 5 ) & AR BB v G g a0 R A A
R % 17,807,000 7C(2023 %F : #2 A1
BN R #2,967,0005T) ©

BRESMREANERF AL IRE
BWEARAEERFEFRNFE LR
THEE BREBETERRBEEREE
MR ERE - WETRARKTE
ZIRITHER BERARTERERER
BE D B sk FHIK25 (2023 F -
75) % 30(20234 : 20) EE - K&
EEBMAENERBAEZET —FE
HEEBZARREIR 2EE - kO
A EE 2023 FAHR -

FERR

AEENEERRIERENER
HEER TESRTA  REAEH
R BHEREFER B kA
T EEY - BRSO E YR
He ASBITEABUEFR T4
ERITE RMEMEXMEHE
HiEX RekBRSFEMHTFR
EREENERSRBERTER
EENMBEHEE RAEEEER
REI T FHEERNEERR - ®
HAaMBAARERNEREER
HEMNGREBERBEE) KRAKEDN
EEER  HEXREBAFAEEM
EMma M EEEENEE -
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Interest rate risk (Continued)

During the year, the Group has not entered into significant
hedging activities to hedge against the exposure to cash flow and
fair value interest rate risk. At the end of the reporting period,
89% (2023: 76%) of the Group’s borrowings were fixed rate
borrowings.

At the end of the reporting period, if interest rates of bank
balances, pledged bank deposits and interest-bearing borrowings
denominated in US$ and RMB had been 25 (2023: 75) and 30
(2023: 20) basis point higher/lower respectively and all other
variables were held constant, the Group's profit for the year and
retained profits would increase/decrease by RMB17,807,000
(2023 increase/decrease by RMB2,967,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in interest rates had occurred throughout the year and
had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for bank
balances, pledged bank deposits and interest-bearing borrowings
in existence during the year. The 25 (2023: 75) and 30 (2023: 20)
basis point increase or decrease on the bank balances, pledged
bank deposits and interest-bearing borrowings denominated in
US$ and RMB respectively represent management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period
until the next annual end of the reporting period. The analysis was
performed on the same basis for 2023.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to structured
deposits, derivative financial instruments, long-term time
deposits, short-term time deposits, cash and cash equivalents
and trade and other receivables. Substantially majority of the
Group's structured deposits, derivative financial instruments,
long-term time deposits, short-term time deposits, cash and cash
equivalents were deposited in the creditworthy global financial
institutions and state-controlled financial institutions in the PRC,
which management considers they are without significant credit
risk. The carrying amount of financial assets recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position, which is net of loss
allowance, represents the Group's exposure to credit risk without
taking into account the value of any collateral held or other credit
enhancements.
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FERRE)
JEWIR

REBZHERNNDABEFTIRE -
AEBARRERUNEEHEZE
LTERERINEELELIFE
HEE - ERFPERZERSHEHE
B-RIBER - BETEIEERN
fili o

AEENEERRIESSRERP
BRSO TE FRPEEMTE
MEZRNENRRDEEEHERRR
EERE BRERER) -

AEENEFPEBBEZEPHAN
EUREFZARBERSE#SE R
REPREBAENGRIZINE LS
HIBHRE S - AEBHEABHE
STEEWRFIARMECL - WIREESER
S HMEETEECLIERE BB
#H UWBEVYTERERLEAEX
KB BEER - WIREB AT
BRRFEEZETTRAE A&
EHBEHEESENGEEARD
TEHEAERRBEBE=FNHER
ERBRERTER  WREE A
MATE A= ETHE - UkBE K
EESBIBEA L HRNLEERRZ
FOZER BERGRASEHE
Wt B 5% 78 HA 4F B 0 oK SR AS B R R /9
hEt - BERERA  BEREZRIWR
BREREREERBRRER202445F
2023412 A 31 B & & B8R A
FIINESBRBELTER - FRMHF
KTk EARB AL EES) o

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

The majority of the Group's sales are conducted on a cash-before-
delivery basis. The Group has implemented policies to ensure that
sales of products are made to direct retailers, who wish to trade
on credit terms, with an appropriate credit history which is subject
to periodic reviews. Individual credit evaluations are performed on
all customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the
individual characteristics of each customer. The default risk of
the industry and country in which customers operate also has an
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.

The Group's customer base consists of a wide range of clients
and the trade receivables are categorised by common risk
characteristics that are representative of the customers’ abilities to
pay all amounts due in accordance with the contractual terms. The
Group applies a simplified approach in calculating ECL for trade
receivables and recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime
ECL at each reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment. The expected loss rate used in the Group's
estimation on ECL is calculated for each category based on actual
credit loss experience over the past three years and adjusted for
current and forward-looking factors to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over which the historical
data has been collected, current conditions and the Group's
estimate on future economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables. The management considered that these factors
do not indicate any significant credit risk and additional loss
allowance for provision for trade receivables as at 31 December
2024 and 2023 to be insignificant. There was no change in the
estimation techniques or significant assumptions made during the
year.
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EERK(E) Credit risk (Continuea)
JEW AR (42 ) Trade receivables (Continued)

MR20244 2023128318 A
BERE @8R RmEREZRANE

The information about the exposure to credit risk and ECL for
trade receivables based on past due status as at 31 December

ERRERECLHERB T -

2024 and 2023 are summarised below.

7A2024% 128318

As at 31 December 2024

HAREE

Gross carrying

FEEXE

amount Credit-impaired
AR¥F
RMB’000
REIHA Not past due 1,428,335 No
2B R ERE Past due but not impaired
30 A Within 30 days 52,349 No
31-90 K 31 -90 days 44,557 No
im0k Over 90 days 71,215 No
1,596,456
72023F12H831H As at 31 December 2023
WRARTEE EFEEEXIE

Gross carrying

amount  Credit-impaired
AREFT
RMB’000
REIHA Not past due 1,450,842 No
SR HERERE Past due but not impaired
30 KA Within 30 days 46,039 No
31-90 K 31 -90 days 38,296 No
#8318 90 X Over 90 days 44,806 No
1,579,983
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FERRE)
JEW R ()

2024 % K% 2023F 12 A31HE &
HAB AR MR (B R PR AR SR B e T B R
EEERFEBTLHNBYIER,A
o AEBUTRBEZSEBA R
AR EELEEZUESAEE  MES

RARSRERZBKE -

BE R B HA o R 48R0 (B 7O FE Ua SR IR £
RADRBENGCENEZEPER -

MR2024512 A31H - AN & [F W &
R R EFE T EER2023
F o AE) o

T EAF - AEAF  F
+508

<
T
Ty
FN

ZN

TEBERABEWHERNT - 524
AIMAMEALTRE  ERXSE
FHIBAEE  UWmBRHAHNRS
i RHEBNEORBRERMmME
BERR AR  EUGELLFIBER R E
R1I2ERECLETE - R TR
B R B R O o 7R 20244 20234
12A31H  EER/ZECRMEE
MEHEEBEYTEKXN - UAEB
ERERRAELER IS HTNERS
HEHEERE -

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The trade receivables as at 31 December 2024 and 2023 that were
past due but not impaired related to a number of independent
customers that had a good track record of settlement with the
Group. The Group had not impaired these debtors as there had
not been a significant change in credit quality and the Directors
believed that the amounts would be fully receivable.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade receivables as at
31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

Amounts due from an associate, joint ventures and related parties

The Group considers that the amounts due from an associate,
joint ventures and related parties have low credit risk based on the
counterparties’ strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term and low risk of default. Impairment
on amounts due from these parties is measured on 12-month
ECL and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. At 31
December 2024 and 2023, the Directors considered the ECL of
these financial assets to be insignificant and no loss allowance for
provision for amounts due from these parties is recognised.
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FERR(E)
JEWE A FIENE JER

7 55 [ 4 B U B A R B A W ERIE
ETRENEEEN 12 HECL.
It S5 R & [F B SR I H b fE R IE HY
EERBRARSGETNEN &
AMASERELERAOER S
T EANGEEEREREBEEL=R
FEEMETE o

FEHETECLF - AEBEZERIER
FEREEBAERNE BTG
Mo HERER BENES -
EREEE  BEMEERRET
AR AREZEBHAM—BLER
N REZFEENITE - hFtE
LERMEENENHNE  URESE
BEATEAORMELX - FR - K
EEEEERAANEBRYEAETE
HA B %0 4 B 25 T H th pE U SROA
MEREMERRENOMESES
A R #66,471,00070(2023 % -
M) ERZZHE TP B R
Ex HEAREERRBENEES
B RELEMBEEREEIN B
BERRFAESHMEENECLY~E
RN FAEBERMIERRRK

RAEBE -

REER  AEBZERERER
BRERERKREREBANEESS
B B E100% (20234 : 66.86%)
N EWR A (2023F « ZA)EBA
HEESEFRRARE 100% (2023 F -
100%) -
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Credit risk (Continued)
Loan and other receivables

The Group performs impairment assessment on loan and other
receivables from various parties based on 12-month ECL. The
credit risk of the Group's loan and other receivables arises from
default of the counterparties, with maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these receivables. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessments of the credit quality.

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into account the
historical actual credit loss experience and the financial position
of the counterparties, the value of collateral, past collection
history, current creditworthiness, adjusted for forward-looking
factors that are specific to the debtors and general economic
conditions of the industry in which the counterparties operate, in
estimating the probability of default of these financial assets, as
well as the loss upon default in each case. During the year, the
management of the Group considered that the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering other receivables from two
debtors which resulted in the recognition of written off of other
receivables of RMB 66,471,000 (2023: Nil). Other than those
financial assets being written off, the management considers the
ECL of remaining financial assets to be insignificant after taking
into account the financial position, quality of the counterparties,
the value of collateral and past settlement records. There was no
change in the estimation techniques or significant assumptions
made during the year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had a concentration
of credit risk as 100% (2023: 66.86 %) of loan and consideration
receivables which was due from the Group’s largest debtor, and
100% (2023: 100%) of loan and consideration receivables was
due from the Group's two (2023: three) debtors.
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TEE SR Liquidity risk

REBEHERRBERRARERZ The Group's objectives when managing liquidity risk are to
EZAERHIRSHEEIANERS maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed
T IZEEREZEREREE - I credit facilities. Also, the Group's policy is to regularly monitor
B AEBFHERBEREBHZ current and expected liquidity requirements, in particular those
mMBELT R LEEEAAI R relating to capital expenditure and repayments of debts. At the
EEEEEZETENESERK - N & end of the reporting period, the Directors expected that the Group
HEANABRMAR  BFHEHPR had no significant liquidity risk in the near future.
EEWEREE SRR

REBZERABEREERIZAY The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end of
BHA 2% TEEERAARTIRE the reporting period based on contractual undiscounted payments
EmEFTRMAT is summarised below:

1550 L 280 E

1R BE2FR  BESER

REREH  Morethan  More than
Within ~ 1yearbut 2 years but 5FENL

1 year or within less than Over EXl
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total

ARBFT AR®FT ARETT ARETT ARETZ
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000  RMB'000

20245128318 At 31 December 2024

JEIT R SR Trade payables 8,136,600 — — — 8,136,600

Hi R 5a R Other payables and
[REveia deposits received 8,820,390 — — — 8,820,390
HERRE Lease liabilities 161,041 80,471 34,843 — 276,355
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings 11,822,526 211,267 1,521,036 — 13,554,829
28,940,557 291,738 1,555,879 — 30,788,174
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FEBELER(E) Liquidity risk (Continued)

(£ KN

TERsk  BR2FA EBESEA

REREHX  Morethan  More than

Within Tyearbut 2 yearsbut SELE

1 year or within less than Over Gl
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years Total
ANEREFT  AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

72023128318 At 31 December 2023

TR Trade payables 8,572,717 — — — 8572717
HibENHIER Other payables and
Bl E deposits received 7,799,603 — — — 7,799,603
HEAR Lease liabilities 156,571 120,866 63,476 4,458 345,371
BEREE Interest-bearing borrowings 8,810,381 5,166,210 175,098 — 14,151,689
25,339,272 5,287,076 238,574 4,458 30,869,380
EFaealE KL TERAGEE The amounts repayable under loan agreements that include a
EHFBER T ETAEEERkEE clause that gives the lenders the unconditional right to call the
REGER - HEEESERNLE® loan at any time are classified under the “on demand” bracket.
il ARERER ER - BEE In this regard, interest-bearing borrowings of RMB3,440,000,000
EVTEHEEASTFEEERE (2023: RMBZ2,687,476,000), with the scheduled payment due date
FEREF - A R #3,440,000,000 within 1 year, as at the end of the financial period have been so
T(20234F : A B2 687,476,000 classified even though the Directors do not expect that the lenders
)2 BEEEGIEEREBHA A would exercise their rights to demand repayment and thus these
FR)NEEHE KR Ll A RSB - borrowings would be repaid according to the following schedule
ZEEENKRKBER M ZENER as set out in the loan agreements:
ES N
2024 2023
ARETFT AREFT
RMB’000 RMB’000
BEERE Interest-bearing borrowings
1R Within 1 year 3,468,875 2,723,711
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(a)

URABEIRNEREERAR

TREJNNRBEMBREEL
F13R[AABEFEIMETE
MRRBESERGIEN=EF
B URARBEFERETE
HRMBEHREANEAAEEN
TREELEBE  ARBER
ENDREHIER Y BEET
EEERFEZHANZES
& AESRFBOT -

- BN (&sER) A&
BRI fEAt 8 B P ERIE R BB
mE EHERAEERBEN
WECRERE)

- WA KBREREE R
HRESD - AT B KR
BRZEERAENE

(a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

The following table presents the financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value or required to disclose
their fair value in these consolidated financial statements
on a recurring basis across the three levels of the fair value
hierarchy defined in HKFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement,
with the fair value measurement categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant to the
entire measurement. The levels are defined as follows:

- Level 1 (highest level): quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Group can access at the measurement date;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly;

A
— MR (FHEELR)  EXE - Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for the asset
BREcEENRBENS or liability.
Ao
2024 2023
I fiEn K ait Fah ) 2513 it
Level 1 Level2 Level3 Total Level 1 Level2 Level 3 Total
ABETL AREFT AREFT ARETR ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETL
RMBU0O  RMBUOO  RMBU00  RMBUO | RMBUD  AMBOOD  RMBUOO  AMBOOD
(3 Assets
FHAEEHZEEE  Financal assets at FURL
-REES - Investment funds - — 48205 408205 - - 51351
- LiRAES - Equity securiy,lted 880 - - 880 - - - -
- B - Structured deposits - - 61 328160 - = 5000 50000
~FETBAEYER - Bankfinancial products, unlisted - - - - - — 665210 665,10
-fE2RIE - Derivative financial instruments - 3/ - B8N — 169,185 — 169,185
EER00 Desipnated FUOC
-fETREES - Equity securities, unlisted - — 15450 154560 - — 154907 154907

80 33877 890926 1,230,523 169,185 1145230 1314415

#H E2024%F K& 2023F 12 A 31
RIEFE 8 BHEBELRA 1A
FR2 BB JNERBEER
HELRI3HARR 38 -

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, there
were no transfers between level 1 and level 2 fair value
measurements and no transfers into and out of level 3 fair
value measurements.
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(a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

(@) HUAREEIIRNEREERER
(%)

B E2024F KX 2023412 A 31
RIEFEREHEALBER

The details of the movements of the recurring fair value
measurements categorised as level 3 of the fair value

Jall

ENBRMANZHFMEH N

hierarchy for the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023

I are shown as follows:
2024 2023
Assets Assets
RFVPLER BRPLEE
WemEE KER0C HEREE ETROC
Financial Designated Finandial Designated
asset at FVPL Fvodl asset at FVPL Fvocl
FLAEG kLA F M Frm
REEE LEMER BUER BARS | REES ERUEY EEER BAER
Bank Bank
financial Equity financial Eouity
Investment ~ Structured  products,  securities, ~ Investment  Structred  products,  Securtes,
funds  deposits unlisted unlisted funds  deposits unlisted unlisted
ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT | ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFR
RMBO00  RMBUOO  RMBYVOO  RMBUOO | AMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOD
HEA At beginning of the year 5113 50000 665210 154907 254349 - - 158518
BA\/HE Purchases/additions 133782 267,897 - - 20,764 50000 665,210 -
ik Disposals (690) - (669,850) - - - - -
#E Settlements - - - - - - - -
B35 8hs Y (6E) Total gains or losses)
recognised:
i - inprofitor loss - 10264 4,640 - - - - -
-Et2EER - in other comprehensive
loss - - - (347) - - - (3611)
REER At the end of
the reporting period 408,205 328,161 - 154,560 25113 50,000 665,210 154,907
RS BERAT
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(a)

URABEIRNEREERAR

(%)

ERERBI2RERIZ 2 AAEE
TRz hERM

()

(i)

FFVPLEFER) % & E -

FRZERSNAR(E
ERERNEERREK
BERREEREZREE
TEEFBLAEREZE
EARENRRNR(E
BRFfE - FRAERRI3 2
BESHBE EHREM
FLHRE - EHRER
RREBEMMERZ2EMS
WE - MIFLHRENR
REERHERESK
BH A EEATHERER
MEEEEBEERINMG
BT E (2023 F -
i F R R FEEEE
&) o FHEIE LT A RIH
NI EERERE LR
AEEMIGEBRHLEX
F2BE  BRBHFERE
BRERAILBARZF
BHTHE

ZFVPLEE B ) & 8 &
B REEMEARIELT
RITFERS E i)

R 3 Z BT R R IE
EHRITEMEMNAR
EBEHABBRITRELE
RBM LS

(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques used in level 2 and level 3 fair
value measurement

(i)

(i)

Financial assets at FVPL: Investment funds

The fair value of these investment funds in level 3 is
mainly estimated either based on the net asset value
of the investment fund reported to the investors by
the investment manager or the fair values of the
companies invested by the funds as at the end of
the reporting period. All of the investment funds in
level 3 included both listed investments and unlisted
investments. The fair values of listed investments are
estimated with reference to quoted market price,
while the fair values of unlisted investments are
estimated by the respective investment managers
using valuation techniques including mainly price-to-
sales (“P/S") ratio model and net asset value approach
(2023: P/S ratio model and net asset value approach).
In determining the fair value of unlisted investments,
it includes assumptions that are not supported by
observable market prices or rates, including expected
annual growth rates and comparable companies’
average P/S ratio.

Financial assets at FVPL: Structured deposits and
unlisted bank financial products

The fair value of structured deposits and unlisted
bank financial products in level 3 are estimated by
respective bank’s investment managers based on the
income approach.
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(a)

Jal

URABEIRNEREERAR
(%)

ERERBI2RERIZ 2 AAEE

SR EERME)
(i) EFEFVOCI - FE L R
Fias

LRI3 2 IELETRAES
AR EERMAEELE
TR RER (2023 -
T FEA)EETE - 5F
HIELEMZRAFESFHA
AEERBSE—EHIER
ERmISERI LRI
Z2BE - BREEHERE
MA L& ATz FTH

(v) PTHEZBTA : JNERH
=y

ZR2INERBEHZA
AREEDIHRITRERA
SMNEFE RN RKBESRE

BREETE -

BREMERRERAR
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation techniques used in level 2 and level 3 fair
value measurement (Continued)

(iir)

(iv)

Designated FVOCI: Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in
level 3 are mainly determined by the investment
manager using P/S ratio model (2023: P/S ratio
model). In determining the fair value of the unlisted
equity securities, it includes assumptions that are
not supported by observable market prices or
rates, including expected annual growth rates and
comparable companies’ average P/S ratio.

Derivative financial instruments: Foreign currency
forward contracts

The fair value of foreign currency forward contracts in
level 2 is determined by the banks using present value
of future cash flows based on the forward exchange
rates at the end of the reporting period.
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(a) UDABEIIENESREERER (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(%) (Continued)
FTERTEERATEANELLER Quantitative information of the significant
RERES & unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in
significant unobservable inputs
LR3AREBEFEZEZET The quantitative information of the significant unobservable
ERGAFTANZE/LEER inputs and sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable
MRREZEHMT inputs for level 3 fair value measurements are as follows:
RMEERAEE
KEERE
hEaENTE
R0k Impact on fai
1283182 value and
DAER the Group's total
Fair value TIEEBANRBY A ERNGEE comprehensive
at 31 December (EREMRERETE) income for
MBS Sensitivity of fair value to changes AENTREE the year
it AFEFT  Valuation TUEEHA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEEFT
Destcription ABO00 techniques Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possihle range A0
RAPLRBNERAE
Financial assets at FVPL
faEs THERY  BHEEREIY FRRBAREER ADABEER RIM: 5% 45,59
Investment funds 408205 PSratiomodel  Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 15% the fair value and vice versa;
THBAT TmHE THBAT, VRS - ARARRER 410% 412715
B068Z253% R
Average PIS ratio of comparable ~ The higher the average /S ratio of comparable companies,
companies ranging from 0.68 the higher the fairvalue and vice vers3,
10253 times
FEREEZ  [REELAERERR FEE/TMLAREMR  ATRANEELR B4 3 E4-47% #- 46,007
([%&#))
Net asset Fair value of individual assets less — The higher the estimated fair value of the Net Assets, the Ranging from
value approach  libilites (the "Net Assets") higher the estimated far value +/- 3% to +/- 47%
kBRI bk el ElAEES ADAERER ROAR: B +3.3% E4H4.12% U307
Structured deposits 308,161 Income approach  Expected retum rate The higher the expected return rate, the higher the fai Ranging from
value and vice versa; +-33% 0 +-4.12%
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(@) HUAREEIIRNEREERER (a)

(%)

TETTHEERACANELER

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value

(Continued)

Quantitative information of the significant

RERES R (Z) unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in
significant unobservable inputs (Continued)
MEBERAEE
REERE
hEsENYY
RAUE Impact on fair
1283182 value and
MEE the Group's total
Fair value TUBRBANZBELAEENGRE comprehensive
at 31 December (RHREMRERRTE) income for
W4 HERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes RENTREE the year
i AREFT  Valuation — FUEEHA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEEFT
Description AMBO00  techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AMB000
fEEROCl
Designated FVOCI
krTRAES THEEY  REEERE15% ERRPIREME - ARRBEES  R2AR- 5% #3506
Equity securities, unlisted 154,560 PiSratio model Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 15% the fair value and vice versa;
THBRA FHHE TARAF T EEER  EAAEELR +-37% 429,541
5068 Rz
Average P/S ratio of comparable  The higher the average P/S ratio of comparable
companies of 0,68 times companies, the higher the fair value and vice versa;
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(a) UAABHEIIENSRESEREE (a) Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(%) (Continued)
FTEFTHERAGCANELES Quantitative information of the significant
RBRE S8 (E) unobservable inputs used and sensitivity to changes in
significant unobservable inputs (Continued)
MEERERE
AEERE
hELEHE
RABE Impact on fair
12A3182 value and
DER the Group's total
Fair value TUBRBANSBEOAEENSRE comprehensive
at 31 December (AREMRERETE) income for
w3 HERE Sensitivity of fair value to changes RENTREE the year
i AREFT  Valuation ~ FUBEBA in unobservable inputs (assuming other Reasonably NEEFT
Description AB0O00  techniques  Unobservable input factors remain unchanged) possible range AMB000
BRPLRENEREER
Financial assets at FVPL
REES THERE  BEREEREN% FERMARELS  EDAREMS R2AR 45% #1536
Investment funds 275,113 PfSratiomodel Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate,
of 12% the higher the fair value and vice verss;
YRR Ham ik AuEAA HamERES - AOAEERER +-19% +16,774
BOSIRER04E R
Average P/S ratio of comparable  The higher the average P/S ratio of comparable
companies ranging from 0.51 1o companies, the higher the fair value and vice versg;
0.74 times
FEEREL WENEELREEARE FRELHEOABEES AFELLEEES B4 T%E+-56% +- 43,866
(T#EE)
Net asset Fair value of individual assets less ~ The higher the estimated fair value of the Net Assets, Ranging from
value approach  liabilities (the "Net Assets”) the higher the estimated fair value +- 7% to +/- 56%
FETRTEHER W% EuaE ERNGEER EOABENS MR BHLI%EH-45% 444,809
Unlisted bank 665,210 Income Expected return rate The higher the expected return rate, the higher the Ranging from
financial products approach fair value and vice versg; +-21% 10 +-45%
BREER LGV Bha% EONAEHE ADABEER RZOA: e 3%EH-4% #3663
Structured deposits 50000 Income Expected return rate The higher the expected return rate, the higher the fair Ranging from
approach value and vice vers3; +-3%10 +- 4%
R0
Designated FVOCI
FImRARS THERE  BEREEREN% ERREARENR  ADAREMS  R2AA: 4-5% #5304
Equity securities, unlisted 154907 PISratiomadel Expected annual growth rates The higher the expected annual growth rate, the higher
of 12% the fair value and vice versa;
HEAT HamHRR PLAVNCPAREIE-E S ERE YR +-3% +37953

0.74f%
Average PIS ratio of comparable
companies of 0.74 times

R
The higher the average PIS ratio of comparable
companies, the higher the fair value and vice versa;
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(a)

Jab

URABEIRNEREERAR
(%)

REBDABEFENGEERE

AEBERBAIRGHT SR
BREBAEAZTNFERR3
N EED EBUEEFEHN
FEMRITEMEMLIFLT
BAREFZ AR EE - ERF
THATERSG  AKERA
BESKERELTEEARSG
RERS  HERMEAMIEL
MERITIEM Em 2 A8 -

7R 5% [ B B 755 P B 1 — L B
BEREKRERES EBNTT
R FELEMRITEMERNIR
BREHETEEANRBR
ERBEHETOHGE - ZEK
EERAEEERERE -ME
BE REEAS HBULER
B SELTIRITIEM EmAKR
BRENEEEEAGRE
BREMNGERESFELBRIT—
RET o B 75 B0 & 1 = (8 B IR
FERREES ABUER
B JELEMIRITIEM EMAKR
BERENEAEEATIRES
PRSI/ B S E M A AR
HERE  BREMEIENT
AEREA - BEFELER
SEHOMEEEZP U ELE
HEe HBUEER FLHR
TEMEMORELERER
B AR
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(a)

Financial assets and liabilities carried at fair value
(Continued)

Valuation processes used in level 3 fair value
measurement

In estimating the fair value of investment funds, structured
deposits, unlisted bank financial products and unlisted
equity securities within level 3 of the fair value hierarchy,
the Group uses market observable-data to the extent it is
available. Where level 1 inputs are not available, the Group
obtains the valuations provided by the respective investment
managers or trust administrators for the investment funds,
structured deposits and unlisted bank financial products.

The Group's finance department includes a team that
reviews the valuations performed by the investment
managers or trust administrators of the investment funds,
structured deposits and unlisted bank financial products for
financial reporting purposes. The team reports directly to
the senior management. Discussions of valuation processes
and results are held between the management, investment
managers or trust administrators of the investment funds,
structured deposits and unlisted bank financial products at
least once every year. At each financial year end, the finance
department works closely with the investment managers
or trust administrator of the investment funds, structured
deposits and unlisted bank financial products to establish the
appropriate valuation technigues and inputs to the valuation
models, verifies all major unobservable inputs in the
valuations, assesses valuations movements when compared
to the prior year valuation report and holds discussions
with the investment managers or trust administrator of the
investment funds, structured deposits and unlisted bank
financial products.
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(b) UAABEUNMIRHNERIAELD (b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried at
REE other than fair value
EERE AEERYEHEMS In the opinion of the Directors, no other financial assets and
MEENMEGNREESEAER liabilities of the Group are carried at amounts materially
2024412 A 31 H K& 20234 12 different from their fair values as at 31 December 2024 and
A31EBMARBEEERER - 31 December 2023.
B ARG ERREMIBOEE In addition to the commitments disclosed elsewhere in the
ZHEYE  REBRAB TNHIEE - consolidated financial statements, the Group has the commitments
as follow:
BARX HEE Capital expenditure commitments
2024 2023
AR¥Fr AREFT
EHENEESZ T Contracted but not provided for: RMB’000 RMB’000
EEYE  HER Expenditures on property,
B plant and equipment 1,044,846 1,076,179
REESHE Capital contribution on investment funds 150,135 242,781
1,194,981 1,318,960
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REABVANBERE  ARAM
Bk R MR EBHIIRIT ¢

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, the statement of financial position of the Company
and the movements in its reserves are set out below:

2024 2023
it AR¥FT AR T
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
BE ASSETS
ERBEE Non-current assets
LT SE Property, plant and equipment 142 203
EREEE Right-of-use assets 322 2,841
M E A RIRERS Interest in subsidiaries 8,103,379 8,080,959
PTEEmT A Derivative financial instruments — 169,185
RFVPLERIEN SRS E Financial assets at FVPL 312,844 179,061
EEIL FVOCI BRI A Equity instruments designated
EETHE as at FVOC| 5,895 6,241
8,422,582 8,438,490
REBEE Current assets
AR IE R EMEWFIE  Prepayments and other receivables 2,520 4,557
M8 A Bz FE I GRIA Amount due from a subsidiary 3,422,078 3,397,706
PTEEMTA Derivative financial instruments 338,717 —
RITEEBRNIRS Bank balances and cash 152,981 115,289
3,916,296 3,517,552
HEE Total assets 12,338,878 11,956,042
BREREAE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BARG#EE Capital and reserves
BATHRAR Issued capital 196,684 196,681
B @ (B Share premium 787,836 787,091
B Reserves 45(a) 2,030,339 2,686,719
REERAAE Total equity 3,014,859 3,670,491

3 5 B BREMERRERAR
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2024 2023
ARH¥FT AREFITT
RMB’000 RMB’000
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
EHEEEE Long-term interest-bearing borrowings 1,495,256 4,489,394
HERE Lease liabilities 91 2,571
1,495,347 4,491,965
nBAE Current liabilities
E MR SR Other payables 42,679 42,580
BEEEEZREHIS Current portion of
interest-bearing borrowings 7,785,761 3,750,860
HEAE Lease liabilities 232 146
7,828,672 3,793,586
HEE Total liabilities 9,324,019 8,285,551
BRRERBEREEERE Total equity and liabilities 12,338,878 11,956,042
NEEAR R F N 202563 A24 & The statement of financial position was approved and authorised
FERAERKEERE  UHUATA for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2025 and signed
TREEZ on its behalf by
%4 Wei Hong-Ming HH#E—EB Junichiro Ida
ZE HEDirector EZEDjrector
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360

(a) HEE2EH (@) Movements of the reserves
#E
RARE MERE  BRERR B
i i (FUEE) bapl: 1 o REER L2
Investment
revaluation
Capital ~ Exchange reserve Share-based
redemption  translation (Non- Hedging payment Retained
reserve reserve  recycling) reserve reserve Profits Total
A\BEFT  AREFL  AREFL  AREFL  ARETLT  ARETT  ARETZ
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB000
RABE1R18 At 1 January 2023 400 98,507 2,087 184 190,693 1,599,901 1,891,772
RERGT Profit for the year — - — - — 3,295,267 3,295,267
rEFEM2ENE(ER) Other comprehensive income
(loss) for the year - 15,008 (3,611) 41,789 - - 53,186
REEREERTIRG Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - (501) - (501)
BlREET Shares option lapsed - — - - (63,240) 63,240 -
MHEEREE Y2 Effect on the change of functional
currency (41 (113,103) 685 1,152 29,222 161,451 79,366
BERIRE 2002 554 2022 final and special final dividend
RERRERE approved and paid - - - - — 63237) (2632371
H203F128318 At 31 December 2023 359 412 (839) 43125 156,174 2,487,488 2,686,719
R2024%£1818 At 1 January 2024 359 42 (839) 43125 156,174 2,487,488 2,686,719
TEERT Profit for the year - - - - - 2,488,285 2,488,285
TEEER2ERS Other comprehensive loss for the year - 31 (347) (26,805) - - (27383)
REEREERTRG Shares issued under share option scheme - - - - (185) - (185)
BRERN Shares option lapsed - - - - (74,500) 74,500 -
BHEREE03EREE 2023 final and special final dividend
HRIRERE approved and paid - - - - - BM007)  (3.117,097)
R0UE128318 At 31 December 2024 359 181 (1,186) 16,320 81,489 1,933,176 2,030,339

M2024F12A31H8  AQF
DRz #ERIEREEF
EEHhaBrzeB R AR
2,721,012,0007C(2023 4 -
ARH#3,274,579,0007T) °

BREMERRERAR

TINGYI (CAYMAN ISLANDS) HOLDING CORP.

At 31 December 2024, the Company'’s distributable reserves

including retained profits and share premium amounted to
RMB2,721,012,000 (2023: RMB3,274,579,000).
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TIEEHARRERLEERSE
ZIEMBRR BEERE
ABAFEREBEERNER
RAEEBEENERS
RRFIEMMBRARNER S

RETEK -

N > Paray
RN

fn-ES

The following included the principal subsidiaries directly or
indirectly held by the Company and, in the opinion of Directors,

Bl are significant to the revenue for the year or form a substantial

excess length.

portion of total assets of the Group. The Directors consider that
giving details of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of

R/
£ EEiE HRERCRTRE JEfk BRAELL Bl E3:3
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# 3
Directly Indirectly
REEGRMARAF HE US$72,000,000 100% BERHEHFE
Tianjin Tingyi Food Co, Ltd? PRC US$72,000,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RAEERRARAR HE US$90,618,400 100% BERHEHFE
Hangzhou ngyl Food Co, Ltd? PRC US$90,618,400 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
EREERRARAR HE US$17,000,000 100% BERHEHFE
Shenyang Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$17,000,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RERRRRARLA T US$17,800,000 100% BERHEHFE
Wuhan TingYi Food Co, Ltd. PRC US$17,800,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
AZERARARLA hE US$44,300,000 100% BERHEHFE
Xian Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$44,300,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
REERRARERAT HE US$14,200,000 100% BERHEHFE
Harbin Ting Yi Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$14,200,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
ERERRGARAA HE US$6,862,700 100% BEREEHFE
Nanjing Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. # PRC US$6,862,700 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RHE (RH) TRRRARAR hE US$32,500,000 100% BERHEHFE
Master Kong (Kunming) PRC US$32,500,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., Ltd. noodles
TFERRRARAA hE US$29,000,000 100% BERHEHFE
Jiangmen Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. PRC 15$29,000,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RARGRRARA HE US$8,333,300 100% BHERHEHFE
Cheng Du Tlngyl Food Co, Ltd.# PRC U5$8,333,300 Manufacture and sale of instant
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HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

AR/
£ EXHE EREABRTRE JEft IR AELL bl TEER
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# 3
Directly Indirectly
RHE (BB) FREARERAR G US$5,000,000 - 100% BERHESRAE
Master Kong [Chongging] PRC US$5,000,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
Convenient Food Co., LTD. noodles
IHERRRARLA G US$50,000,000 - 100% SHERHEEE
Zhengzhou Tingyi Food Co., Ltd. * PRC US$50,000,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
RYRERGARAR G US$21,000,000 - 100% BERHESRE
Changsha Tingyi Food Co,, Ltd. # PRC 1S$21,000,000 Manufacture and sale of instant
noodles
LEFRARERARLA G RMB15,000,000 - 100%  fRHEEERE
Shanghai Kang Yi Corporate Management PRC RMB15,000,000 Provision of management service
Limited *
ROEARERE (E) AR PE US$283,715,400 - 100% BARR
Master Kong Instant Noodle Investment PRC 1US$283,715,400 Investment holding
(China) Co., Ltd.
RAEHRBVIERAR RERANE US$55,263 90.50% — REBR
Master Kong Beverages (BV) Co., Ltd. BVI 1S$55,263 Investment holding
RHBRRERERAT RS US§10,527.37 30.40% 4751%  RARR
KSF Beverage Holding Co., Ltd. Cayman Islands Us$10,527.37 Investment holding
RHCFERAD (L) BRAT G RMB1,000,000 - 7191% REEEEARE
KSF Beverage Management (Shanghai) Limited® PRC RMB1,000,000 Provision of management and
consulting services
REEZRmAN G US$60,840,000 - 7191% RERHEEAR
Tianjin Tingjin Food Co ltd. * PRC US$60,840,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
EHE2R MRS G US§20,000,000 - 7191%  RERHEAR
Guangzhou ngjln Food Co., Ltd. PRC 15$20,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
RERZRmAN G US$73,500,000 - 7191% RERHEERR
Wuhan Tingjin Food Co Ltd. PRC US$73,500,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
ERRZRARAN G US$24,000,000 - 7191% SERHEELS
CHONGQING TING IN FOOD CO,, LTD. * PRC US$24,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
EEEZRmAN P US$15,000,000 - 191% #HER@
Qingdao Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$15,000,000 Sale of beverages
BREZADAN G US§13,700,000 - 7791% HEREERR
Fujian Tingjin Food Co. Ltd. PRC US$13,700,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
REERZARAR G US$ 16,176,500 - 7191% HEREESR
Harbin Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$16,176,500 Manufacture and sale of beverages

3 Bz BREMEERERAE
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HZE2024F12 A31 BIEFE Year ended 31 December 2024

ERAL/
2 EEWY HMEACRITRE JE(E AL FEER
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
B i
Directly Indirectly
AREEERMA] h U$10,000,000 7791% BEREEHM
Hefei Tingjin Food Co. Ltd.“ PRC US$10,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
ERERARARL el Us$18,973,239 7791% BEREESS
Kunming T\ngjm Food Co, Ltd PRC US$18,973,239 Manufacture and sale of beverages
PMNEERmAD i US$44,000,000 7791% HEREERR
Zhengzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. PRC US$44,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNEERmARAR i US$24,489,800 7791% HEREERS
Lanzhou Tingjin Food Co., Ltd. * PRC US$24,489,800 Manufacture and sale of beverages
LARELEEREARAA P RMB15,000,000 7791% REEEZHERE
Shanghai Kang Yun Corporate Management PRC RMB15,000,000 Provision of management and
Limited® consulting services
EOE (35) SmERAT G US$41,000,000 7791% BEREERR
Master Kong (Shenyang) Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC US$41,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
OB (BR) BRERAT f US$48,500,000 7791% BEREESRR
Master Kong (Xi‘an) Beverage Co., Ltd * PRC 1US$48,500,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
EOE (K2) BmERAT P U5$36,326,500 7791% BEREERR
Master Kong (Tianjin) Beverage Co., Ltd.* PRC US$36,326,500 Manufacture and sale of beverages
ANEZRRERA el US$41,326,500 7791% BEREESS
Yangzhou Tingjin Food Co, Ltd. PRC US$41,326,500 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BN mBERAE i U$62,193,900 7791% HEREERR
Guangzhou Tingjin Beverage Co., Ltd.* PRC US$62,193,900 Manufacture and sale of beverages
FHE (BERE) SRARAT el US$18,367,300 7791% BEREERR
Master Kong (\/\/ulumuqi) Beverage Co., Ltd. ¥ PRC US$18,367,300 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BHEZRRERA i US$43,622,400 7791% HEREESR
LANGFANG TINGJIN FOOD 0., LTD. PRC US$43,622,400 Manufacture and sale of beverages
HFMNEEEMA] i US$73,724,500 7791% BEREEHRR
Suzhou Tingjin Food Co. Ltdf PRC US$73,724,500 Manufacture and sale of beverages
nNEZRRERA % US$38,100,000 7791% BEREESRS
Hangzhou Tingjin Food (o, Ltd. * PRC US$38,100,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BEEERDARA e U$27,000,000 7791% HEREERR
Jinan Tingjin Food Co,, Ltd. PRC US§27,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BERNERRERAT e 15$2,000,000 7791% HERR
Nanning Master Kong Food Co., Ltd. * PRC US$2,000,000 Sale of food
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EEauizA]
£ EXuE ERERBRITRE JEfE R gL ) TEXK
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# [}:3
Directly Indirectly
LERERMARD e US$7,300,000 - 7191% #HEAm
Shanghai Kong L|ng Food Co,, ltd.* PRC US$7,300,000 Sale of beverages
RAESRRE (TE) BRA hE US$547,689,139 - 11.91% RARR
Master Kong Beverage Investment (China) Co., Ltd. PRC US$547,689,139 Investment holding
TEERLR (B) BRAT Bt US$129,736,518 - 791% REZR
CHINA BOTTLERS (HONG KONG) LIMITED Hong Kong US$129,736,518 Investment holding
RABRRRAERAT G US$358,216,517 - 791% REZR
Master Kong PBB Investment Co. Ltd. * PRC US$358,216,517 Investment holding
AEHH (BN) ARAR G US$197,800,000 - T191%  RERHEHD
PepsiCo Beverages (Guangzhou) Limited PRC 15$197,800,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BNBZTEBHARLA G US$66,650,000 - T191% BERHERR
Guangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited*  PRC US$66,650,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
IRBETEBHARLA G US$14,119,449 - 71.91%"  HERHEERR
Beijing Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC US$14,119,449 Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RERFARAHERAA G US§20,000,000 - T401%  RERHEAR
* Changchun Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC 1S§20,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
RRAFURHHARAT G RMB100,000,000 - T91%  RERHERR
Tianjin Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC RMB100,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
AABERHARAR & US$6,600,000 - 7191% SERHEERS
CHENGDU PEPSICO BEVERAGES COMPANY LIMITED PRC US$6,600,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BN EEHHARLA i US$1,350,000 - 71.91% REREELR
Lanzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited * PRC US$1,350,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
* ERRFARSHERAA G US$17,845,000 - B354%  RERHERR
* CHONGQING PEPSI-TIANFU BEVERAGE PRC US$17,845,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
COMPANY LIMITED
RBETEBHARLA G US$12,250,000 - 71.91% SERHEERM
Shenzhen Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited #  PRC US$12,250,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
* RN EFARARERAR G US§10,400,000 - 5843% RERHEHAR
* Hangzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Ltd. PRC US$10,400,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
RYBETEAHERAT G US$21,000,000 - 7191% BEREERD
Changsha Pepsi-Cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC US$21,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
EAEEDES Sar ] N G RMB19,764,000 - 7191% BEREERE
Fuzhou Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC RMB19,764,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages

3 54 BREMEERERAE
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AfREL/
£ EEiE ERERCETRE Jek LAl E3:3 3
Place of
incorporation/ Registered capital/ Proportion of
Name operation issued share capital ownership interest Principal activity
E# ik
Directly Indirectly
BERHE (BE) ARAF G US$9,000,000 - 9% BEREEHR
Pepsi Beverage (Nanchang) Company Limited® PRC US$9,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BRAFTRARERAR G US$5,000,000 - T191% RERHEHRR
Xi'an Pepsi-Cola Beverage Company Limited PRC US$5,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BN EFIHERAR G US$21,000,000 - T191% RERHERR
Zhengzhou PepsiCo Beverages Company Limited  PRC US$21,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
BEEEZIRRNERAR i U$$35,000,000 - T191% BEREERR
Harbin Pepsi-cola Beverage Co., Ltd. PRC 1S$35,000,000 Manufacture and sale of beverages
EHRERRAT RERLES US$147,232,000 - 100% &ERR
WEALTH CITY INVESTMENT LIMITED BVI US$147,232,000 Investment holding
PERRERERAR RBRAEE Us§1 100% - REER
China Dingya Holding Limited BVI Us$1 Investment holding
LEEREAFCEERARLA G US$135,000,000 - 100% RENFERRS
Shanghai Jingiu Minghao Enterprise Elaboration ~ PRC US$135,000,000 Provision of properties management
Co., Ltd. * service
JR&(BVIEIER IR A ABRAES US§50,000 100% —  REBR
TINGY!I (BVI) INT'L CO, LD. BVI US$50,000 Investment holding
REERESBVERAA ZERNES US$ 1 100% —  REBR
Master Kong Bakery (BVI) Co, Ltd. BVI Us$1 Investment holding
RIS EARGWARLT HBELRS U210 —  BEER
Master Kong Instant Foods (BVI) Co, Ltd. BVI Us§2 Investment holding
FEHBEHERAGKE (PE)ERAF lei US$98,900,000 - 100% REBR
Master Kong Instant Foods Investment (China) PRC 1U$$98,900,000 Investment holding
Co, Ltd*
* ZEWBATEMATINGE/EE * These subsidiaries are registered as Sino-foreign equity joint venture
Eo companies.
" HBEHI N EA T BRERNTE19 © " Further details are set out in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements.
# EXFER AR # English translation for identification purposes only.
HiMAREBRPEERNZHE R The other subsidiaries in the PRC are established and registered as
B KM AR EIINGRE - wholly-owned foreign enterprises.
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Forvis Mazars CPA Limited

42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road,

Wanchai, Hong Kong
BABTBEEI8HTIRES 4218
Tel 35 (+852) 2909 5555

Fax f5&: (+852) 2810 0032
www.forvismazars.com/hk

To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman
Islands) Holding Corp. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) set out on pages 201 to 365, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2024,
and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment
amounted to RMB21,522 million at 31 December 2024. Of which,
the carrying amount of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at
31 December 2024 was RMB9,966 million. Any impairment of those
assets identified may have material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed internal and
external sources of information, including but not limited to technical
obsolescence to usage, significant change in use of assets with adverse
effect on the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and economic
performance of an asset was expected to be worse than expected, to
assess whether there is any indication that machinery and equipment
may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be conducted. The
carrying amounts of the assets will be written down to their recoverable
amounts which are the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on
machinery and equipment by estimating the recoverable amounts of the
cash generating units (“CGUs") to which the assets belong principally
based on their value in use or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable
amount of certain individual assets with reference to their fair value less
costs of disposal.

We identified the impairment of machinery and equipment as a key
audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and the judgement and estimation involved in the
impairment review and test of machinery and equipment including the
consideration of the indicators of impairment and the determination of
the key assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(p), 5(ii) and 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures, on a sample basis where appropriate, in relation

to management’s impairment assessment of machinery and equipment

included:

a)

Obtaining the understanding of the design and implementation
related to the management'’s impairment assessment;

Discussing the process and basis used to identify indicators of
impairment of machinery and equipment with management
and reviewing utilisation records and profitability of machinery
and equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing
whether management had performed impairment testing in
accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment model applied by
the management in calculating the impairment charges and the
judgements applied in determining the CGUs to which the assets
belong;

Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow
model used in the value in use calculation;

Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the food and beverage industry and market;

Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future
production plans and approved budgets and assessing the
reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets;

Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of disposal by making
reference to the market price of an active market, if applicable;
and

Considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in respect of
the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

Valuation of certain financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVPL”) and equity instruments designated as at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”)
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

The total amounts of investment funds classified under FVPL and
Designated FVOCI which categorised as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
are RMB408 million and RMB155 million respectively at 31 December
2024.

At the end of each of the reporting period, the management determines
the fair value of investment funds classified under FVPL and Designated
FVOCI with reference to the valuations performed by the investment
manager or trust administrator of these investments by applying
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques, in particular those
that used significant inputs that are not supported by observable market
data, prices or rates and are based on assumptions which involved
judgement. The sensitivity to changes in unobservable inputs used in the
fair value measurement to reasonably possible alternative assumptions
used in the valuations may have significant impact on the valuation of
these financial assets.

We identified the valuation of investment funds classified under FVPL
and Designated FVOCI which categorised as level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy as a key audit matter because of their significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the judgement and estimation
involved in determination of the fair value of investment funds classified
under FVPL and Designated FVOCI.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(j), 5(ii), 22 and 43 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures, on a sample basis where appropriate, in relation to
the valuation of investment funds classified under FVPL and Designated
FVOCI included:

a)  Obtaining the understanding of the design and implementation
related to the management’s assessment on the valuation of
investment funds classified under FVPL and Designated FVOCI;

b)  Obtaining and examining the terms in the relevant investment
agreements of the financial assets;

¢)  Obtaining and understanding the Group's valuation process;

d)  Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies
and assumptions adopted by the investment managers or trust
administrators;

e)  Discussing with the investment managers or trust administrators
and challenging the reasonableness of the assumptions, key inputs
and underlying data used; and

f) Reviewing and evaluating the reasonableness of the sensitivity
analysis.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information in the 2024 annual
report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information, and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law and regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Forvis Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 March 2025

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of s W}/__\faﬂchai, Hong Kong
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. BRE(FREE18RTIRERL2E

Tel &3 :+852 2909 5555
Fax {£E : +852 2810 0032
forvismazars.com/hk

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp. (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 201 to 365, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2024, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (‘HKSAs”) issued by the
HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the current year. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Forvis Mazars CPA Limited
DHEE U BBAERAS)
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)
Impairment of machinery and equipment

The carrying amount of the Group’s property, plant and equipment amounted to RMB21,522 million at 31
December 2024. Of which, the carrying amount of the Group’s machinery and equipment as at 31
December 2024 was RMB9,966 million. Any impairment of those assets identified may have material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviewed internal and external sources of information,
including but not limited to technical obsolescence to usage, significant change in use of assets with
adverse effect on the Group, prolonged period of time being idle and economic performance of an asset
was expected to be worse than expected, to assess whether there is any indication that machinery and
equipment may be impaired.

If any such indication exists, an impairment test will be conducted. The carrying amounts of the assets will
be written down to their recoverable amounts which are the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. The Group shall perform impairment assessment on machinery and equipment by estimating
the recoverable amounts of the cash generating units (“CGUSs”) to which the assets belong principally
based on their value in use or, if applicable, to measure the recoverable amount of certain individual assets
with reference to their fair value less costs of disposal.

We identified the impairment of machinery and equipment as a key audit matter because of its significance
to the consolidated financial statements and the judgement and estimation involved in the impairment
review and test of machinery and equipment including the consideration of the indicators of impairment
and the determination of the key assumptions applied in the impairment model.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(p), 5(ii) and 15 to the consolidated financial statements.
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures, on a sample basis where appropriate, in relation to management's impairment
assessment of machinery and equipment included:

a) Obtaining the understanding of the design and implementation related to the management’s
impairment assessment;

b) Discussing the process and basis used to identify indicators of impairment of machinery and
equipment with management and reviewing utilisation records and profitability of machinery and
equipment, where such indicators were identified, assessing whether management had performed
impairment testing in accordance with the requirements of HKFRSs;

c) Assessing the appropriateness of the impairment model applied by the management in calculating
the impairment charges and the judgements applied in determining the CGUs to which the assets
belong;

d) Verifying the mathematical accuracy of the discounted cash flow model used in the value in use
calculation;

e) Evaluating the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our knowledge of the food and beverage
industry and market;

f)  Reconciling input data to supporting evidence, such as future production plans and approved budgets
and assessing the reasonableness and feasibility of such plans and budgets;

g) Verifying the estimated fair value less costs of disposal by making reference to the market price of an
active market, if applicable; and

h) Considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in respect of the impairment assessment.
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key Audit Matter

Valuation of certain financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”) and equity
instruments designated as at fair value through other comprehensive income (“Designated FVOCI”)
classified as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy

The total amounts of investment funds classified under FVPL and Designated FVOCI which categorised
as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy are RMB408 million and RMB155 million respectively at 31 December
2024.

At the end of each of the reporting period, the management determines the fair value of investment funds
classified under FVPL and Designated FVOCI with reference to the valuations performed by the
investment manager or trust administrator of these investments by applying valuation techniques. These
valuation techniques, in particular those that used significant inputs that are not supported by observable
market data, prices or rates and are based on assumptions which involved judgement. The sensitivity to
changes in unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement to reasonably possible alternative
assumptions used in the valuations may have significant impact on the valuation of these financial assets.

We identified the valuation of investment funds classified under FVPL and Designated FVOCI which
categorised as level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as a key audit matter because of their significance to the
consolidated financial statements and the judgement and estimation involved in determination of the fair
value of investment funds classified under FVPL and Designated FVOCI.

Related disclosures are included in notes 3(j), 5(ii), 22 and 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our key procedures, on a sample basis where appropriate, in relation to the valuation of investment funds
classified under FVPL and Designated FVOCI included:

a) Obtaining the understanding of the design and implementation related to the management’s
assessment on the valuation of investment funds classified under FVPL and Designated FVOCI;

b) Obtaining and examining the terms in the relevant investment agreements of the financial assets;
c) Obtaining and understanding the Group’s valuation process;

d) Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodologies and assumptions adopted by the
investment managers or trust administrators;

e) Discussing with the investment managers or trust administrators and challenging the reasonableness
of the assumptions, key inputs and underlying data used; and

f)  Reviewing and evaluating the reasonableness of the sensitivity analysis.

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information in the 2024 annual report of the Company but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information, and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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To the shareholders of
Tingyi (Cayman Islands) Holding Corp.
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken
to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law and
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Forvis Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 24 March 2025

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is:

Chan Chi Ming Andy
Practising Certificate number: P05132
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